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Enclosed please find a copy of the cover letter which was submitted with the application in
the above-referenced case . Please note the highlighted statement in the second paragraph regarding
service to the Public Counsel . In the past, it has been my understanding that a statement of this
nature in the cover letter has been sufficient to comply with 4 CSR 240-2.080(4) . However,
I have recently become aware that the Commission may now require a formal Certificate of Service .
Therefore, I am enclosing an original and fourteen copies of a separate Certificate of Service
indicating compliance with the above-referenced CSR.

I thank you in advance for your cooperation . I apologize for any inconvenience this may have
caused to the Commission .

Sincerely,

ARMSTRONG TEASDALE LLP

Sherry L. Doctorian

0000059

St. Louis . Kansas City . Jefferson City . Washington, D.C. . Belleville . Olathe . Shanghai



In the Matter of the Application of Computer
Business Sciences, Inc ., for an a certificate of
service authority to provide facilities-based
Basic Local Telecommunications and
Interexchange Service in the State of Missouri
and to classify said services and the company
as competitive.

ARMSTRONG TEASDALE LLP

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Case No .
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Sherry L!~Doctorian

	

MO #34636
3405 West Truman Blvd., Suite 210
Jefferson City, MO 65102-2046
(573) 636-8394
(573) 636-8457 (Facsimile)

Attorneys for Computer Business Sciences, Inc .

FILED
BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

	

JUL 1 6 1999OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

SeNiceCorrPublicsision

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the Application of Computer Business

Sciences, Inc., for an a certificate of service authority to provide facilities-based Basic Local

Telecommunications and Interexchange Service in the State ofMissouri and to classify said services

and the company as competitive and exhibits were served, via hand delivered, on the 15" day ofJuly,

1999, to the Office ofthe Public Counsel .

I hereby certify that I served a copy ofthe foregoing document this
/

~a day ofJuly, 1999,
via hand delivery, to the Office of the Public Counsel and to the General Counsel of the Missouri
Public Service Commission .
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Sherry L. D ctorian



State ofDelawa,

Office of the Secretary ofState

I . EDWARD _i . FREEL . SECRETARf OF :STATE OF THE ''SfnTE OF

iELAWARE . fro HEREBY CERrTF'i 'COMFUrCR IiUSINES-i SCIENCES .

'= DULN INCORPORATED UNDER TiiE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE ~~"! .':

IS Ii"I GOOD STANDING AND HAS A LE'"AL CORFORATE EXI ;-Ei1CE SO '=t:R

A'3 THE RECORDS OF THIS OFFICE SHOW AS OF THE TWENTY-FIRST UA't

OF -JANUARY, A .D .. IFT9 .

aND I DO HEREBY FURTHER. ^ERTIF'( THAT ?'IiE FRAriCHISE TA'XE':

HAVE "rJT BEEN ;°1-3-SEED TO DATE .

Edward l Freel. Secretary of5rare

ALZ'MEVTICATION:

	

ca"d i 0 .)

DATE: ,~.~_-_i_o "



CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF

COMPUTER BUSINESS SCIENCES. INC.

ARTICLE I

The name ofthe corporation is Compute Business Sciences. me

ARTICLE 11

The address ofthe registered office ofthe coraortion in the State of Delaware is 1013 Center Rd . .
Wilmington. DE :4805. The name ofthe registered agent ssuch address is Corporation Service Company.

ARTICLE III

The purpose ofthe corporation is to engage insty lawful act or activity for which corporations may
be or;ttc-d under the General Cnrpomdon Law ofthe State of Delaware .

ARTICLE IV

The tomi Mumbo- ofshares of al : classes ofsock which thecorporation has aunherityto issue s 7hirry
Ono Million (3 i,000.000) shares, consisting of two classes: Thirty Million (30.000.000) shares of Common
Stock. $(1.00 t par value per sh=e, mad One Mlllien ([.000,000 shares of Prferred Stock. S0.001 par value
per shat_.

The Board ofDirectors is authorized. subject :o arty limitations presc-r_d by the law ofthe State cf
D--:.ware.oprovide for the issuancz ofdue shags of Preferred Stock in one or mere serves, and, by riling a
certifc.azzif_esigrmt :onpursuanttotheappiiabietawof :heStateofDelaware,mestabfish3om tae :o time
the .number ofshares to be included in each such series. to fix doe designation, powers, preferences and rights
of the shares of each such series and any qualifications. ;iaications or ;estrictions thereof. ando roes.case or
dec^ase the number of shares of arty such series (bun net below the number of shares of such series titer.
outscaeding) .-he number. ofauchorimd sharesofP^:-red Stock may also be inased or decreased (but not
below :be number ofshares thereofthen ousmadiV by the atFsmatlve voce of :beholder! of a majesty of
the stock of the corporation entided to vote. unless a vote of any other holders !s required pursuant to a
cariticrc or certificates establishing a $eries of Prefer-d Stock

Except as ctaerwise exprecaly provided in any atiicate ofdesignation desiena :̂ng any series of
Prefe^red Stock pursuant :o :he foregoing Provisions of this Arsdt W, any nc%v series ofPmfe-ed Stack may
be dcaignated.5xct and derermiced os provided herein by the Board of Directors without approval of die
holders ofCommon Stock orthe holders ofPreferrecStock, at any series thereof, adany such new series may
have powers, pretererca and rights. including. without Nmitation. voting rights, dividend rights liquidation
rients . redemption rightsand conversion nuts, senior to,junior :e orpan passuwith he rights ofthe Common
Stock. the Preferred Stock. or any kntre crass or series of Preferrd Sock or Common Stock



The Board of Directors ofthecorporation shall have the power to adopt amend or repeal Bylaws at
the corporation.

provide .

ARTICLE V

ARTICLE YI

A. Election of directors need not be by written ballot unless the Bylaws of the corporation shalt so

B . Special meetings ofstockholdes ofthecorporation may be called only by the Board of0irec:ors
pursuantto a resolution adopted by ama;ority of the total numberofauthar:rd diree:nrs (whether ornot there
exist any vacancies in previously authorized directorships :c the time any such resolution :s presented to the
Board for adoptions, the Chairman ofthe Boarc or the Chief =ce^_utive Officsr.

ARTICLE VII

Sublet to the rights of the hoiders ofany serics of ?,,referred Stock then outstanding, newiv created
direrorships muleng iom any increase in the authorized number ofdirectors or any vac> .uics in the Board
of Directors :resulting

	

cam death. resignation or ocher _arse may be tilled (a) by the sockhoiders at any
mccenng, :bl by a majority of the directors, although less than a gaortms. or (c) by a sore mmaating director.
and dirr_:crs so chosenshallhold offee ".ora temt mc:ring at thenest annual meocing ofscockhoidzrs atwhich
L':eterm ofoffice ofthe class :a which they havebeen eleven aspires. and until t~vrrespective successors are
elected. excspt ir. ate case of the death, resignation, crremovatofany director. No decrease in the number of
directors anstitudng the Board of Direenrs shall saorm die t:m ofany Incumbentdirector .

ARTICLE VIII

A. To the fullest exreat pccmircd by law, no dipeccor of;he corpora:ion shall be personally liable for
monetary damages for breach of fiduciary ditty as a director. Without limiting die erc. of the creasd :rg
sezence . if d7e Celawarc Gercral Corporation Law is hercfter =ended to authorize *e mr::er eiiminador.
c r lintiunon of:he liability o:a d: :ector. that the liabiiky ofa director ofthe corporation shall be elimiutec
or limited to the fullest &%tent permitted by the Maws: General Corporation Law. as so amended.

B. To the .-.swat permitted by applicable law . this corporation is also aud:er'zed to provide
indemnification of ;and advancement ofcpenses ctrl agent (and any other persons to which Delaware law
permits kit corporation to provide indemnification) thmugh bylaw previsions, agreement with such agents
or otter persorm vase ofstockholders ordisinteres :ed directors orotherwise. i n excess of tie indemnification
and advancement othenvise permuted by Scction 115 ofthe Delaware Ceneral Corporation Law . subject only
to limits created by applicable Delaware law(stznuory or nenacrltory), with respect to actions for breae't of
duty to the corporation . jet stockholders. and others .



C Neither any amendment nor repeal ofanv ofthe toregoing provisions ofthis Article VIII. nor :ht:
adoption ofaeyprowsionofthis Certifeate Oflnmtpmvtion inconsistent with this Article VEIL shall eliminate.
reduce or otbcrxise adversely atTect any limitation on the personai liability ofa director ofthe corporation
existing at the time of such amendment. «pa! or sapt:an ofsuch an ;nconsistent provision.

Thenameandmailing address ofibeincotpocnor :sliehardL.Femsmin.30_0 KewGardens Road .
KnvGardens. New York It4IS.

The undersigred incarporaor hereby aeknowtedgrs that the tbrin oing cerificaze is its act and de-_d
and that the face rated herein am true .

Date : January 6. 1999

ARTICLE Ix
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Secretary of State

$15500

Rebecca McDowell Cook
Secretary of State

CORPORATION DIVISION - CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

WHEREAS,
COMPUTER

BUSINESS SCIENCES, INC
+~~--v

USING IN MISSOURI THE NAME
COMPUTER BUSINESS SCIENCES, INC .

HAS COMPLIED WITH THE GENERAL AND BUSINESS CORPORATION LAW
WHICH GOVERNS FOREIGN CORPORATIONS ; BY FILING IN THE OFFICE
OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF MISSOURI AUTHENTICATED EVIDENCE
OF ITS INCORPORATION AND GOOD STANDING UNDER THE LAWS OF THE
STATE of DELAWARE .

NOW, THEREFORE, I, REBECCA McDOWELL COOK, SECRETARY OF
STATE OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT SAID
CORPORATION IS FROM THIS DATE DULY AUTHORIZED TO TRANSACT
BUSINESS IN THIS STATE, AND IS ENTITLED TO ALL RIGHTS AND
PRIVILEGES GRANTED TO FOREIGN CORPORATIONS UNDER

	

ENERAL
AND BUSINESS CORPORATION LAW OF MISSOURI .

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I HAVE SET MY
HAND AND IMPRINTED THE GREAT SEAL OF
THE STATE OF MISSOURI, ON THIS, THE
17TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 1999



EXHIBIT 2
MANAGEMENT BACKGROUND AND EXPERIENCE

The management of CBS is built around expertise in managing and building networks . They have
expertise in regulatory, financing, marketing, and technical deployment of voice and data networks.

Doron Cohen

Team Members

Mr. Cohen is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Computer Business Sciences, Inc. and has
served as the President and ChiefExecutive Officer ofits parent company, Fidelity Holdings, Inc.,
since its incorporation in November 1995 . From 1991 to 1995, Mr. Cohen served as President and
ChiefExecutive Officer of Holtzman Enterprises.

Kimberly Peacock

Ms. Peacock, in her current capacity as Chief Technology Officer of Fidelity Holdings and President of
the telephony subsidiary of Fidelity Holdings, Inc., IG2, Inc., is the chief architect of the Network and
associated platforms . Ms. Peacock has been involved in technical planning for over 15 years and
brings an incredible wealth ofknowledge to CBS. She has served as a consultant for many companies
on the Internet and in Telecommunications, including GE Comstor, GE Ameridata, BrookeHill
Equities, Kornreich & Kornreich, among others .

Bruce A. Hall

Mr. Hall joined the company as Vice President of Operations in December 1997 . Prior to this, Mr. Hall
spent almost 30 years in the Telecommunications Industry with Bell Atlantic . He served in many
capacities including Vice President of sales with NYNEX Business Information Systems and most
recently as Director of Operations for Queens .

Richard L. Feinstein

Mr. Feinstein has served the Company's Chief Financial Officer since December 1997 . In January of
1998 he was promoted to Senior Vice President-Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Fidelity
Holdings . From 1994 to December 1997, Mr. Feinstein maintained his own financial and management
consulting practice . From 1989 to 1994, Mr. Feinstein served as Managing Director and Chief
Financial Officer of Employee Benefit Services, Inc. From 1978 to 1989, Mr. Feinstein was a partner in
KPMG Peat Marwick.

Moise Benedid

Mr. Benedid has served as the President of the Company's Canadian subsidiary Info Systems since
August 1996 . From November 1994 through July 1996, Mr. Benedid served as Vice President in
charge of marketing and technical support for TelePower International, Inc. and from December 1992
to November 1994 he served as President ofPowerpoint Microsystems, Inc.

Zvi Barak, PhD

Dr. Barak has served as the Director of Research and Development of the Company's Computer
Telephony and Telecommunications division since April, 1996. From 1992 to August 1996, Dr. Barak



served as Presiden

	

f Info Systems.

	

He currently serves as the President of Computer Business
Sciences Israel Division .

The strength of CBS's management team stems from the combined expertise in both management and
technical areas. This will prove to be a competitive advantage as the Company matures. In addition, the
leadership and alignment characteristics ofCBS's management team have resulted in the establishment
ofbroad and flexible goals designed to meet the ever-changing demands of the quickly moving market
place requiring our services .

CBS plans on hiring additional personnel within one month after the initial ATM Network deployment.
CBS a sales staff ofthree to four sales people who will be added to manage the relationships with
Network Service Providers.

Additionally, our management advisors provide tremendous support for management decisions and
creativity .

Technical Directors

Dale Hams, PhD

Executive Director, Center for Telecommunications Consulting Professor of Electrical Engineering -
Contact: Telephone: 650-725-0433, Fax: 650-725-7126 E-mail : harris(@isl.stanford.edu

Education: B.S ., University ofTexas at Austin; M.S . and Ph.D, University of California at Berkeley .

Research Interests: Intelligent telecommunications networks ; broadband network design and
multimedia applications ; distance education and asynchronous learning networks .

Professional Experience : Director of Strategic Technology Assessment and Executive Director of the
Advanced Technology Division, Pacific Bell (1983-1991); California Institute of Technology faculty
(1985) ; Project Manager of Electronic Messaging Systems, Bank of America (1981-1983); Director of
Technology Systems, Letterman Army Institute of Research (1977-1981); Harvard University faculty
and staff(1972-1977).

Recent Professional Activities: Year 2000 IEEE Global Communications Conference Technical
Program Chairman; Academic Advisory Council for The Corporation for Educational Network
Initiatives in California (CENIC); Scientific Advisory Board, Swedish Institute of Computer Science
and the Royal Institute of Technology; Editorial Board, Intemetwork Magazine ; IEEE 1994 Global
Communications Conference Technical Program Chairman ; Chairman, Bellcore Applied Research
Advisory Committee; Vice Chairman, IEEE 1990 Global Communications Conference Executive
Committee; National Technological University Management of Technology Industrial Executive
Committee; Exchange Carriers Standards Association International Relations Committee ; University of
Southern California Communication Sciences Institute Advisory Board; University of California at
Davis Department ofElectrical Engineering Board ofAdvisors .

Memberships : Tau Beta Pi ; Senior Member of IEEE Communications, Computer and Engineering
Management Societies; New York Academy of Sciences .

Honors: US Distance Learning Association award for "Most Significant Advancement in Research in
the Field of Distance Learning"; Department of the Army Commendation (for information systems
development) ; Muscular Dystrophy Association Fellow; National Institutes of Health Fellow;
University of Texas Engineering Fellow .



Publications : 15 journal publications ; author of chapters in four books; numerous conference papers .

Current Students :

Gwon, Y.J., "High-Speed Networks and Server System"
Jensen, J., "Adaptive Learning System"

David L. Tennenhouse, PhD

David is an Associate Professor of Computer Science and Electrical Engineering at MIT's Laboratory
for Computer Science . He is leader of the Telemedia, Networks and Systems Group, which is
addressing "systems" issues arising at the confluence of three intertwined technologies : broadband
networks, high definition video, and distributed computing .

David studied electrical engineering at the University of Toronto, where he received his B.A.Sc. and
M.A.Sc. Degrees. In 1989 he completed his Ph.D . at the Computer Laboratory of the University of
Cambridge. His Ph.D . research focused on ATM-based site interconnection issues . This work, which
was conducted within the Unison Project, led to the early implementation of an ATM-based wide are
testbed.

Current Research

At the core of the group's activities are two large systems projects : the ViewStation research program,
on distributed video systems, and the Aurora gigabit testbed. The ViewStation program is pioneering a
very software intensive approach to the capture, processing, transmission, storage, and display of full
motion video sequences . AURORA is one of five gigabit networking testbeds funded by the
Corporation for National Research Initiatives under a grant from NSF and ARPA. The TNS group's
contributions to AURORA, which are mostly related to gigabit endworking includes work on : local
distribution, host interfacing, and end system protocol software .

dlt(E),tns .lcs .mit.edu

Fouad Tobagi, PhD

Professor ofElectrical Engineering and, by courtesy, Computer Science
High-Speed and Multimedia Networking and Communications

Contact: Telephone: 650-723-1708, Fax: 650-725-6221
E-mail : tobagiQa stanford.edu

Education : Engineering Diploma, Ecole Centrale des Arts et Manufacturers (Paris, France); M.S .,
Ph.D ., Computer Science, University ofCalifornia, Los Angeles.

A member of the Stanford Faculty since 1978 . Professor Tobagi is also a cofounder of Starlieht
Networks, a venture concerned with multimedia networking and video servers, where he has been
serving as chief technical officer since November 1991 .

Research Interests : Broadband Integrated Services Digital Networks, High
Speed ATM Networks (switching, routing, and congestion control), Multimedia Applications (on-line
distance learning and desktop video conferencing), Multimedia Systems (video servers and storage
systems for multimedia information, including disk arrays and tertiary mass storage systems), and



Multimedia Forking, including network infmastructurelocal and wide area networks), network
protocols (multipoint session layer protocols, real-time multicase transport protocols, multicase and
QoS routing protocols), and network management and control (resource allocation and reservation,
admission control) .

Professional Experience: Professor Tobagi has served as editor for the IEEE Transactions on
Communications, as well as otherjournals . He was coeditor for a number of special issues of the IEEE
Journal on Selected Areas in Communications and of the Proceedings of the IEEE; topics include Local
Area Networks, Packet Radio Networks, and Large Scale ATM Switching Systems for B-ISDN. He is
currently on the editorial boardofthe ACM Journal on Multimedia Systems, the Journal on Multimedia
Tools and Applications, and the Journal on Wireless Networks . Since 1991, he has also been affiliated
with Starlight Networks, Inc., a company concerned with multimedia networking and video servers,
where he has been serving as ChiefTechnical Officer.

Honors : Professor Tobagi is a Fellow ofthe IEEE. He wasthe winner of the
1981 Leonard G. Abraham Prize Paper Award in the field of Communications Systems, and winner of
the IEEE 1984 Communication Magazine Prize paper award.

Publications : Author of several book chapters and numerous papers ; coeditor of Advances in Local Area
Networks, a book published in the series "Frontiers in Communications" published by the IEEE Press.

Current Students :
Chan, G. "Scalable Video Services"
Fraleigh, C. "Congestion Control in Datagram Networks"
Karam, M. "Priority Functions in Switched Networks"
Markopoulou, A. "Reliable Multicast Protocols and Performance"
Noureddine, W. "Quality ofService Architecture and Protocols"



EXHIBIT 3
PROOF OF FINANCIAL ABILITY

Computer Business Sciences, Inc. ("CBS") is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fidelity Holdings, Inc.,
a diversified and public holding company (FDHG: NASDAQ) which derives revenues from its
operating subsidiaries . As shown in the Company's recently filed SEC 10Q filing, attached hereto,
Fidelity's consolidated revenues for the nine month period ended September 30, 1998 increased
approximately $60.8 million, or 1,700% over the comparable prior period to $64,314,214. At the
end of this period, cash and cash equivalents for the Company amounted to $1,086,819 . As shown
in the Company's most recently filed SEC Form 8K, attached hereto, in January 1999 Fidelity
Holdings and CBS finalized with Zanett Securities Corp. an $11 .3 million debt facility, a portion of
which is dedicated to the CBS project. CBS's financials are combined with those of Fidelity
Holdings when filing with the SEC. Fidelity's 10K for 1998 is also attached hereto .

CBS believes that it is in the position to offer customized service bundles by capturing the customers'
network entry point (copper loop) and delivering local broadband with quality of service guarantees .
Further, CBS can do this at a significant savings from current offerings where services are
individually purchased from cable companies and telephone companies . CBS, by financing on a
customer basis, can build its asset base while not incurring debt . This will allow the Company
greater flexibility to adapt to market pricing and expand its network. As rolling out xDSL service is
extremely capital intensive (Approx: $1,200 per customer) CBS intends to package and sell xDSL
service in 1,000 customer multiples to a mezzanine funding source such as GE Capital. CBS will
pay for the initial deployment of 1,000 units of xDSL service equipment and once subscribed to
would seek funding for those units to replenish the cash shortage due to the purchase . CBS will then
either seek additional private placement monies or an 1130 to repay the mezzanine funding .

Exhibit 3



Fidelity Holdings, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

yBasic S 023 S (0.06)

Diluted S 0.21 S (0.05)

Income (loss) from continuing operations
Basic 5 030 S (0.06)

Diluted S 0.15 S (0.05)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Basic S (0.13) $ 0.12

Diluted S (0.10) S 0.10

Net income
Basic S 0.07 S 0.06

Diluted S 0.05 $ 0.05

Weighted average number of shares used in computation

Basic 7,336,794 6,454,350

Diluted 9,636,794 7,550,546

Years ended December
1998

31,
1997

Revenues
Sales S 98,578,970 S 953,033

Cost ofsales 84.121 .863

Gross profit 14,457,107 . 953,033

Operating expenses 11,681,617 1,215,289

Interest expense 754.189 121.005

Operating income (loss)
from continuing operations 2,021,301 (383,161)

Income tax expense 51=1.000 -

Income (loss) from continuing operations 1,:07,301 (383,261)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations (979.161) 752.400

Net income S 528.1110 S 369.139

Per common share
Operating income (loss)
from continuine operations - before tares
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FILER :

(Mark One)

COMPANY DATA :
COMPANY CONFORMED NAME :
CENTRAL INDEX KEY :
STANDARD INDUSTRIAL CLASSIFICATION :
IRS NUMBER :
STATE OF INCORPORATION :
FISCAL YEAR END :

FILING VALUES :
FORM TYPE :

	

20QSB
SEC ACT :
SEC FILE NUMBER :

	

000-29182
FILM NUMBER : .

	

99624578

BUSINESS ADDRESS :
STREET 1 :
CITY :
STATE :
ZIP :
BUSINESS PHONE :

I_I

	

TRANSITION REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File Number : 0-29182

80-02 KEW GARDENS RD SUITE 5000
KEW GARDENS
NY
11415

7185206500

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D .C . 20549

FORM 10-QSB

IXI QUARTERLY REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 1999 or

For the transition period from to

FIDELITY HOLDINGS, INC .
-----------------------

(Exact name of small business issuer as specified

Nevada
----------------------------
(State or other jurisdiction

of incorporation or organization)

80-02 Kew Gardens Road, Suite 5000
Kew Gardens, New York 11415
---------------------------

(Address of principal executive offices)

018) 520-6500

'Issuer's telephone number

Check whether the issuer (1) filed all reports required to be filed
by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act during the past 12 months (or for
such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports),
and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days .

Yes IXI No 1_1

APPLICABLE ONLY TO ISSUERS INVOLVED IN BANKRUPTCY
PROCEEDINGS DURING THE PRECEDING FIVE YEARS

FIDELITY HOLDINGS INC
0001009779
RADIO TELEPHONE COMMUNICATIONS [4812]
113292094

NV
1231

in its charter)

11-3292094
------------
(IRS Employer

Identification No .)



Check whether the registrant filed all documents and reports required to
be filed by Section 12, 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act after the distribution
of securities under a plan confirmed by court . Yes IXI No I_I
<PAGE>

State the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of
common equity, as of the latest practicable date : The number of shares of the
registrant's common stock outstanding as of May 12, 1999 was 8,522,121 .

<PAGE>

Part 1 . FINANCIAL INFORMATION

<PAGE>

APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE ISSUERS

Item 1 . Financial Statements

FIDELITY HOLDINGS, INC AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS, March 31, 1999 (UNAUDITED)

PART 1 . FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1 . Financial Statements

FIDELITY HOLDINGS, INC . AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

<S>

MARCH 31,
1999

Unaudited
------------

DECEMBER 31,
1998

Audited
------------

ASSETS :
Current Assets :

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,693,185 $ 820,832
Net investment in direct financing leases, current 421,488 498,418
Accounts receivable 10,852,629 4,836,699
Inventories 22,294,477 18,999,822
Net assets held for sale 6,369,927 7,074,164
Other current assets 2,373,524 444,797

Total current assets
------------

45,005,230
------------

32,674,732
Net investment in direct financing leases,

net of current portion 724,427 785,023
Property and equipment, net 9,887,079 9,782,799
Excess of costs over net assets acquired 10,204,475 10,306,950
Notes receivable - officer 949,819 799,819
Other assets 229,944 77,417

Total assets
------------
$ 62,000,974

------------
$ 49,426,735

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY :
Current Liabilities :

Notes payable - floor plan $ 22,369,559 $ 17,791,253
Notes payable - bank -- 450,000
Convertible debentures payable 2,750,000 600,000
Accounts payable 6,160,147 2,299,306
Accrued expenses 2,264,181 2,007,836
Current maturities of long-term debt 841,664 869,813
Customer deposits 1,016,212

------------
697,087

------------
Total current liabilities 35,401,763 24,715,295

Long-term debt, less current maturities 7,833,654 7,953,278
Due to employees 249,851 249,851
Other 38,160

------------
54,795

Total liabilities 43,523,428
------------

32,973,219



</TABLE>
<PAGE>

FIDELITY HOLDINGS, INC . AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Unaudited

Three Months Ended March 31,

<S>

1999

<C>

1998

<C>
Revenues :

Sales $ 45,842,659 $ 165,152
Cost of sales 38,792,945

------------
--

------------
Gross profit 7,049,714 165,152

Operating expenses 5,571,251 247,480
Interest expense 444,283

------------
26,223

------------
Operating income (loss) before income
tax expense (credit) 1,034,180 (108,551)

Income tax expense (credit) 190,000
------------

(21,000)
------------

Income (loss) from continuing operations 844,180 (87,551)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (728,492)

------------
18,979

------------
Net income (loss) $ 115,688 $ (68,572)

Per common share :
Net income (loss) from continuing operations :

Basic $ 0 .10 $ (0 .01)
Diluted 0 .08 (0 .01)

Net income (loss) from discontinued operations :
Basic $ (0 .09) $
Diluted (0 .07)

Net income :
Basic $ 0 .01 $ (0 .01)
Diluted 0 .01 (0 .01)

Average number of shares used in computation :
Basic 6,494,642 6,895,700
Diluted 11,469,404 7,395,700

Commitments
Stockholders' equity

Preferred stock, $ .O1 par value :
2,000,000 shares authorized,
1,150,000 shares issued and outstanding 11,500 11,500

Common stock, $ .O1 par value
50,000,000 shares authorized, 8,643,898
and 8,036,514 shares issued and
outstanding in 1999 and 1998 86,439 80,365

Additional paid in capital 16,766,543 14,799,800
Cumulative translation adjustment (3,856) (4,977)
Retained earnings 1,682,516 1,566,828
Treasury stock, at cost: 15,618 shares

and 0 shares in 1999 and 1998, respectively (65,596)
------------

--
------------

Total stockholders' equity 18,477,546
------------

16,453,516

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 62,000,974
------------
$ 49,426,735



January 1, 1998

	

250,000

	

a

	

2,500

	

6,895,700

	

$

	

68.957

	

$ 5,414 .293

	

$ 1,038,688

	

$
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Issuance of preferred
Stock for acquisition of
Major Automotive Group

	

900,000

	

9,000

	

--

	

--

	

5,991,000

Issuance of common stock
for services and equipment

	

--

	

--

	

1,140,$14

	

11,408

	

3,394,507

Repurchase of cos®on
stock

</TABLE>

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
1,150,000 $

	

11,500

	

8,643,898

	

$

	

86,439 $ 16,766 .543 $ 1,682 .516

	

$

	

(3.856)
---------------------

	

---------------------

Treasury Stock

	

Total
at cost

	

Stockholders'
Shares Amount Equity

-------- --------- --------------
Balance
January 1, 1998

	

--

	

$

	

--

	

S 6,524,735

Issuance of preferred
Stock for acquisition of
Major Automotive Group

	

6,000,000

Issuance of common stock
for services and equipment

	

3,405,915

Net income

	

528,140

Translation adjustment

	

(5,274)

Balance

December 31, 1998

	

--

	

--

	

16,453,516

---------------------------------------------
15,618

	

$

	

(65,596) $ 18,477,546

Net income

Translation adjustment

Balance

December 31, 1998
----- -

11150,000
--------------------------

11 .500 8,036 .514 80,365
--------------------------------------------------------------------

14,799,800

528,140

1,566,828

15 .27%

(4 .977

Issuance of common stock
for services and deposits -- -- 607,384 6,074 1,966,743

Net income -- -- -- -- -- 115,689

Translation adjustment -- -- -- -- -- -- 1,121

Issuance of common stock
---------------------------------------------

for services and deposits -- -- 1,972,817

Net income -- -- 115,688

Translation adjustment -- -- 1,121

Repurchase of common
stock 15,618 (65,596) (65,596)

FIDELITY HOLDINGS, INC .
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF

Unaudited

AND SUBSIDIARIES
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

<TABLE>
«4PTION>

Preferred Stock Croon Stock Additional Retained Currency
---------------------- ---------------------- Paid in Earnings Translation
Share. Amount Shares Amount capital (Deficit) Adjustment

----- ------ - ----- ----- ----- -- ------- ------------
<S> <C> <1

--
<C> - <C>

Balance



<TABLE>
<CAPTION>

FIDELITY HOLDINGS, INC . AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

UNAUDITED

Three Months Ended March 31,

<S>
Cash flows from operating activities :

Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income

to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities :
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation
Deferred income taxes
Noncash item-stock-based compensation

(Increase) decrease in assets :
Net investment in direct financing leases
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Other assets

Increase (decrease) in liabilities :
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Floor plan notes payable
Deferred revenue
Customer deposits

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Cash flows used in investing activities :
Additions to property and equipment,

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities :
Repurchase of common stock
Line of credit
Proceeds from long-term debt
Payments of long-term debt
Proceeds from convertible debentures
Increase in due from shareholders

</TABLE>

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities

Effect of exchange rates on cash

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Supplemental Disclosures Of Cash Flow Information :
Cash paid during the period for :

Interest
Income taxes

1999

<C>

1998

<C>

$ 115,688 $ (68,572)

102,475 84,738
59,194 100,311

-- (21,000)
196,142 --

137,526 (33,380)
-- (2,100)

(6,015,930) (156,118)
(3,294,655) 45,883

(456,342) (27,540)

3,860,841 216,888
512,345 (227,960)

4,576,306 --
-- (24,457)

319,125
-----------

(44,584)
-----------

114,715
-----------

(157,891)
-----------

(163,479)
-----------

(18,254)
-----------

(163,479)
-----------

(18,254)
-----------

(65,596) --
(450,000) 100,000

-- 204,760
(164,408) (192,461)

2,750,000 --
(150,000)

-----------
--

-----------

1,919,996
-----------

112,299

1,121
-----------

70
-----------

1,672,353
-----------

(63,776)
820,832 217,191

-----------
$ 2,693,185

-----------
$ 153,415

$ 444,283 $ 26,223
$ 501,500 $ --



1 . Basis of Presentation

FIDELITY HOLDINGS INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unaudited

MARCH 31, 1999

In the opinion of the Company, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements contain all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments) necessary to fairly present the Company's financial position and
its results of operations and cash flows as of the dates and for the periods
'indicated .

Certain information and footnote disclosures normally contained in financial
statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
have been omitted . These condensed consolidated financial statements should be
read in conjunction with the audited December 31, 1998 consolidated financial
statements and related notes included in the Company's Form IOKSB for the year
ended December 31, 1998 . The results of operations for the three months are not
necessarily indicative of the operating results for the full year .

Amounts for the three months ended March 31, 1998 have been reclassified to
conform with the March 31, 1999 presentation .

<PAGE>

Item 2 - MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL

The following discussion of the operations, financial condition, liquidity
and capital resources of Fidelity Holdings, Inc . and its subsidiaries (the
"Company") should be read in conjunction with the Company's unaudited
Consolidated Financial Statements and related note thereto included elsewhere
herein .

This discussion contains, in addition to historical information,
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties . The Company's
actual results could differ significantly from the results discussed in the
forward-looking statements .

The Company

CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

On May 19, 1998, the Company acquired, from a related party, the Major
Automotive Group of dealerships ("Major Auto") and related real property and
leases . In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, the
consolidated results of operations of the Company include the results from Major
Auto only since the date of acquisition on May 19, 1998 . Accordingly, while the
results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 1999 include the
results for Major Auto, there are no comparable results for the first quarter of
1998 .

Previously, as a holding company, Fidelity Holdings, Inc . was involved in
the acquisition and development of synergistic technological and
telecommunications businesses . The Company's Board of Directors has determined
to explore the divestiture of the Company's non-automotive operations in order
to maximize shareholders' value from those operations and to maintain the
Company's focus on the regional consolidation of retail automotive dealerships .
Accordingly, all non-automotive operations have been classified collectively as
"Discontinued Operations ." Continuing operations are represented by the
Company's Major Auto subsidiary and the Company's automotive leasing subsidiary,
Major Fleet and Leasing, Inc . ("Major Fleet") .

Results of Continuing Operations - Three Months Ended March 31, 1999 and Three
Months Ended March 31, 1998



<PAGE>

Revenues . Revenues for the three-month period ended March 31, 1999
increased approximately $45 .7 million over the prior comparable period . Such
increase was almost solely attributable to the revenues of Major Auto, which
were $45,672,235 for the 1999 quarter . There was no comparable amount in the
corresponding period in 1998 . A comparison of the average monthly revenue for
Major Auto for the seven and one-half month period it was owned by the Company
in 1998 with the average monthly revenue generated by Major Auto during the
first three months of 1999 shows an approximate 17% increase . Management
believes that this increase in average monthly sales is primarily attributable
to Major Auto's successful efforts in selling used vehicles at its expansive
facility in Long Island City, New York . More than 400 used cars were sold during
each of the months in the 1999 period . Major Auto's initiatives included
extensive Internet promotions, local advertising in all media and the branding
of its used car operation as "Major World ." Additionally, the relatively mild
winter in the New York Metropolitan area contributed to increased

sales during these months when automotive sales, traditionally, decrease . The
results of this quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results for any
future period or the full year of 1999 .

Cost of Sales . The cost of sales of $38 .8 million for the three months
ended March 31, 1999 is solely attributable to Major Auto's operations . There is
no comparable amount for the prior year .

Gross profit . Of the total gross profit of almost $7 .1 million for the
three months ended March 31, 1999, Major Auto generated $6 .9 million . Gross
profit as a percentage of sales for Major Auto during the 1999 first quarter was
15 .19 . Although there was no comparable amount for the first quarter of 1998,
the gross profit percentage for Major Auto in 1998 during the seven and one-half
months since its acquisition on May 14, 1998 was 13 .8% . Management believes that
the increase in gross profit percentage is primarily attributable to the
increased volume of used vehicle sales as a percentage of total sales during the
first quarter of 1999, as compared with the seven and one-half month 1998
period .

Operating expense . In the three months ended March 31, 1999, operating
expenses increased approximately $5 .3 million to almost $5 .6 million, from
$247,000 . Substantially all of this increase resulted from the acquisition of
Major Auto . Operating expenses attributable to Major Auto aggregated $5 .1
million in the first quarter of 1999 .

Interest expense . Interest expense had a net increase of $418,000 to
$444,000 in the first quarter of 1999 from interest expense of $26,000 incurred
in the comparable prior period . This is primarily related to the floor plan
interest of $178,000 and interest incurred in financing the acquisition of Major
Auto amounting to $188,000 and, to a lesser extent, $50,000 of interest accrued
on outstanding convertible debentures .

Discontinued operations . The Company experienced a loss from discontinued
operations in the first quarter of 1999 of $(728,492) compared with a profit of
$18,979 in discontinued operations in the comparable prior period . This is
primarily the result of the Company's decision in the third quarter of 1997 to
acquire the territorial and other rights and equipment of its existing Master
Agents . Accordingly, the Company ceased selling to Master Agents during the
third quarter of 1997 and has had no revenue from this source since then .
Additionally, the Company has been seeking the appropriate economically viable
means to divest itself of its non-automotive operations, including its telephony
technology, IG-2 project and plastics operations . In order to do so at the
maximum potential valuation, the Company has incurred the costs necessary to
maintain and enhance those facets of its business in order to make them
marketable . All such costs are included in discontinued operations .

Assets, Liquidity and Capital Resources - March 31, 1999

At March 31, 1999, total assets of the Company were $62 million, an
increase of approximately $12 .5 million from December 31, 1998 . This increase is
primarily related to the increase in Major Auto's accounts receivable of
approximately $5 .0 million, the increase in Major Auto's inventories of



approximately $3 .3 million and a net increase in cash of approximately $2 .0
million . The increase in accounts receivable and inventories is directly related
to Major Auto's increased sales levels during the first quarter of 1999 . The
increase in cash is primarily attributable

<PAGE>

to the proceeds from the sale of $2 .75 million of 129 convertible debentures
during the period . Included in the Company's current assets is $6,369,927 of net
assets held for sale . This amount represents the total of assets less related
liabilities from the Company's former Technology and Plastics Divisions, the
operations of which the Company is seeking to divest in an economically
productive manner .

The Company's primary source of liquidity for the three months ended March
31, 1999 was $1,919,966 from its financing activities . This was the net effect
of the proceeds from the sale of $2,750,000 in 128 convertible debentures as
offset by payments of outstanding debt of $614,408, an increase in due from
shareholders of $150,000 and the purchase of treasury stock for $65,596 .

Additional net cash of $114,715 was generated from operating activities
comprised of :

<PAGE>

(a)

	

Cash from income of $473,499, resulting from net income of $115,688,
as adjusted by non-cash charges of $357,811 ; and

(b)

	

An increase in liabilities of $9,270,617, primarily from the
increase in notes payable, accounts payable and accrued expenses
aggregating $8,951,492 ; less

(c)

	

A net increase in operating assets of $9,629,401, primarily from
increases of $6,015,930 in accounts receivable and $3,294,655 in
inventories .

The changes in accounts receivable, inventories and payables cited in (b)
and (c) above, are substantially attributable to the higher level of activities
associated with Major Auto's increased sales during the first quarter of 1999 .

The net increase in cash from operating activities was more than offset by
the cash used in investing activities of $163,479 for the net additions to
property, plant and equipment .

The foregoing activities, i .e . financing, operating and investing,
resulted in a net cash increase of $1,872,353 for the three months ended March
31, 1999 .

The Company believes that the cash generated from existing operations,
together with cash on hand, available credit from its current lenders, including
banks and floor planning, will be sufficient to finance its current operations,
planned expansion and internal growth for at least the next twenty-four months .

On May 3, 1999 the Company announced the declaration of a stock dividend
payable as one share of common stock for each two shares held of record . The
dividend is payable to shareholders of record as of May 18, 1999 .

Year 2000 Issue

The Year 2000 issue arises because many computerized systems use two
digits rather than four to identify a year . Date sensitive systems may recognize
the year 2000 as 1900 or some other date, resulting in errors when information
using year 2000 dates are processed . In addition, similar problems may arise in
some systems that use certain dates in 1999 to represent something other than

a date . The effects of the Year 2000 issue may be experienced before, on or
after January 1, 2000, and, if not addressed, the impact on operations and
financial reporting may range from minor errors to significant systems failures,
which could affect an entity's ability to conduct normal business operations .
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Item 1 . Legal Proceedings

Item 2 . Changes in Securities

<PAGE>

None

Item 3 . Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None

None

Item 5 . Other Information

None

Item 6 . Exhibits and Reports on Form S-K

The Company recognizes the need to ensure its operations will not be
adversely impacted by the inability of the Company's systems to process data
having dates that could be affected by the Year 2000 issue . The Company is
currently addressing the risk with respect to the availability and integrity of
its financial systems and operating systems . While the Company believes its
planning efforts are adequate to address the Year 2000 concerns, there can be no
assurance that the systems of other companies, including suppliers, customers
and others on which the Company's operations rely are, or will be made,
compliant on a timely basis and will not have a material effect on the Company .
However, all such significant systems are being evaluated for compliance . The
cost of the Company's Year 2000 compliance effort is not expected to be material
to the Company's results of operations or financial position .

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

The Company is not engaged in any litigation other than as previously
reported .

Item 4 . Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

The Company filed a report on Form S-K on February 3, 1999 in connection
with the private placement of its securities with certain independent investors .
The Form 0-K and the exhibits attached thereto are incorporated herein by
reference .

Exhibit 27 . Financial Data Schedule

SIGNATURES

In accordance with the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act, the
registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized .

FIDELITY HOLDINGS, INC .

Date : May 14, 1999

	

/s/ Doron Cohen
--------------------------
Ooron Cohen, President
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<LEGEND>
THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION EXTRACTED FROM THE
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND
RELATED FOOTNOTES OF FIDELITY HOLDINGS, INC . AND SUBSIDIARIES AS OF AND FOR
THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 1999 AND IS QUALIFIED IN ITS ENTIRETY BY
REFERENCE TO SUCH FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FOOTNOTES .
</LEGEND>

<S> <C>
<PERIOD-TYPE> 3-MOs
<FISCAL-YEAR-END> DEC-31-1999
<PERIOD-START> JAN-01-1999
<PERIOD-END> MAR-31-1999
<CASH> 2,693,185
<SECURITIES> 0
<RECEIVABLES> 10,852,629
<ALLOWANCES> 0
<INVENTORY> 22,294,477
<CURRENT-ASSETS> 45,005,230
<PP&E> 6,115,231
<DEPRECIATION> (1,228,152)
<TOTAL-ASSETS> 62,000,974
<CURRENT-LIABILITIES> 35,401,763
<BONDS> 11,425,318
<PREFERRED-MANDATORY> 0
<PREFERRED> 11,500
<COMMON> 86,439
<OTHER-SE> 18,379,607
<TOTAL-LIABILITY-AND-EQUITY> 62,000,974
<SALES> 45,842,659
<TOTAL-REVENUES> 45,842,659
<CGS> 38,972,945
<TOTAL-COSTS> 5,571,251
<OTHER-EXPENSES> 0
<LOSS-PROVISION> 0
<INTEREST-EXPENSE> 444,263
<INCOME-PRETAX> 1,034,180
<INCOME-TAX> 190,000
<INCOME-CONTINUING> 844,180
<DISCONTINUED> (728,492)
<EXTRAORDINARY> 0
<CHANGES> 0
<NET-INCOME> 115,688
<EPS-PRIMARY> .01
<EPS-DILUTED> .O1



IOKSB-manual Report for 1998"



(Mark One)

[X]

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington,D.C.20549

FORM 10-KSB

ANNUAL REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998

TRANSITION REPORT UNDERSECT10N 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACTOF 1934

for the transition period from-to

Commission file number 0-29182

Fidelity Holdings, Inc.
(Name of Small Business Issuer in Its Charter)

Nevada 11-3292094
(State or Other Jurisdiction of

	

(I.R.S . Employer
Incorporation or Organization)

	

Identification No.)

80-02 Kew Gardens Road, Suite 5000
KewGardens. NewYork

	

11415
(Address ofPrincipal Executive Offices)

	

(Zip Code)

Issuer's Telephone Number, Including Area Code (718) 520-6500

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) ofthe Exchange Act: None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act:

Common Stock, par value $ .O1 per share
(Title ofClass)

Check whether the issuer: (1) filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange
Act during the past 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes_X

	

No
Check if disclosure of delinquent filers in response to Item 405 of Regulation S-B is not contained in this

Form, and no disclosure will be contained, to the best ofregistrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information
statements incorporated by reference in Part III ofthis Form 10-KSB or any amendment to this Form 10-KSB . [ ]



Issuer's

	

venues for its most recent fiscal year. $98,578,9

The approximate aggregate market value of the Company's common stock held by non-affiliates, computed by
reference to the price at which the stock was sold, or the average bid and asked prices of such stock, as of April 9,
1999 was $59,000,603 . The number of shares outstanding of the Company's common stock on April 8, 1999, was
8,522,121 shares .

Item 1. Description ofBusiness.

General

PART I

The statements which are not historical facts contained in this Annual Report are forward looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, possible delays in the
Company's expansion efforts, divestiture efforts, changes in automotive, telephony and
communication markets and technologies, government regulation, the nature of possible supplier or
customer arrangements which may become available to the Company in the future, possible
technological obsolescence, uncollectible accounts receivable, slow moving inventory, lack of
adequate financing, increased competition and unfavorable general economic conditions . The
Company's actual results may differ materially from the results discussed in any forward looking
statement.

Fidelity Holdings, Inc. ("the Company") was incorporated in Nevada on November 7, 1995 . The Company
historically has operated as a holding company and, accordingly, derived its revenues solely from its operative
subsidiaries . The Company's first full year ofoperations was 1996 . The operating subsidiaries ofthe Company have
been grouped into two divisions: Automotive and Technology. The Automotive Division operates through Major
Automotive Group ("Major Auto"), a leading consolidator of automobile dealerships in the New York Area which
operates through five retail automobile dealerships . The operations of the Company's Leasing division are included
in the Automotive Division and consist of providing leases and other financing. Such activities are directed
primarily toward the automotive vehicle market. The Technology Division has operated through voice processing
and computer telephony technology divisions. Unless otherwise indicated, all references to the Company include
reference to the subsidiaries of the Company.

Through its Technology Division, the Company has provided a broad range oftelecommunications services .
Included in its telecommunications product lines are its (i) proprietary software which enables consumers to place
long-distance telephone calls at discounted rates and (ii) a variety of sophisticated interactive voice response
applications . This division also developed, and presently markets and sells, a proprietary computer software systetr
that provides multi-lingual accounting and business management applications .

Included in the Technology Division is the Company's plastics and utility products operations whicl
currently consists ofa development-stage company which was acquired in 1996 . Its proprietary prototypes include
line of spa and bath fixtures for use in whirlpool baths, spas, tubs and swimming pools and a light-weight
structurally strong, prefabricated conduit for underground electrical cables . As this division's products are stii
under development, no commercial sales have as yet been trade.

Discontinued Operations

In December 1998, the Company announced its intention to explore the possible divestiture of its no .
automotive activities, specifically, its Technology Division, by way of sale, merger, consolidation or otherwise . T
Company continues to maintain these activities in order to maximize their value to potential acquirors. T



Company belieWat this course of action will serve to enhance

	

holder value by providing the investment
community the opportunity to focus separately on each business, thdWwing for appropriate valuations by market
segment. Accordingly, all such non-automotive activities have been classified as discontinued operations in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Automotive Division

MajorAuto Acquisition

On April 21, 1997, the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Major Acquisition Corp ., entered into
a merger agreement (the "Merger Agreement") with Major Automotive Group, Inc. ("Major Auto") and its sole
stockholder, Bruce Bendell, who is the Company's chairman and the beneficial owner of approximately 44.14% of
the Company's outstanding common stock. Mr. Bendell owned all of the issued and outstanding shares of common
stock ofMajor Chevrolet, Inc. ("Major Chevrolet") and Major Subam, Inc. ("Major Subam") and 50% of the issued
and outstanding shares of common stock of Major Dodge, Inc. ("Major Dodge") and Major Chrysler, Plymouth,
Jeep Eagle, Inc. ("Major Chrysler, Plymouth, Jeep Eagle"), which, collectively, operated five franchised automobile
dealerships(collectively, the "Major Auto Group").

On May 14, 1998, pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Bruce Bendell contributed to Major Auto all of his
shares of common stock of Major Chevrolet, Major Subam, Major Dodge and Major Chrysler, Plymouth, Jeep
Eagle. Major Acquisition Corp. then acquired from Bruce Bendell all of the issued and outstanding shares of
common stock of Major Auto in exchange for shares of a new class of the Company's preferred stock. Major
Acquisition Corp . purchased the remaining 50% of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of Major
Dodge and Major Chrysler, Plymouth, Jeep Eagle from Harold Bendell, Bruce Bendell's brother, for $4 million in
cash pursuant to a stock purchase agreement. In addition, Major Acquisition Corp . acquired two related real estate
components (the "Major Real Estate", defined hereinafter) from Bruce Bendell and Harold Bendell (collectively "the
Bendels") for $3 million,

The preferred stock issued to Bruce Bendell is designated as the "1997-MAJOR Series of Convertible
Preferred Stock." It has voting rights and is convertible into the Company's common stock (the "Common Stock') .
The number of shares of Common Stock into which the 900,000 shares of 1997-MAJOR Series of Convertible
Preferred Stock issued to Mr. Bendell is convertible is 1 .8 trillion shares . The foregoing acquisitions from Major
Auto and Harold Bendell are collectively referred to herein as the "Major Auto Acquisition."

The Merger Agreement allocated the value of the consideration paid to Bruce Bendell as follows: (i) 61% to
Major Chevrolet; (ii) 5.8% to Major Subam; (iii) 16.6% to Major Dodge; and (iv) 16.6% to Major Chrysler,
Plymouth, Jeep Eagle. The stock purchase agreement allocated the value of the consideration paid to Harold Bendell
50% to each of Major Dodge and Major Chrysler, Plymouth, Jeep Eagle.

To finance the cash portion of the Major Auto Acquisition, aggregating $7 million ($4 million for Harold
Bendell and $3 million to purchase the Major Real Estate), Major Acquisition Corp . borrowed $7 .5 million from
Falcon Financial, LLC ("Falcon") pursuant to a loan and security agreement dated May 14. 1998, for a 15 year term
at an interest rate of 10.18%. Prepayment is not be permitted for the first five years, after which time prepayment
may be made, in full only, along with the paymentofa premium.

The collateral securing the Falcon loan transaction includes the Major Real Estate and subject to the interests
of any current or prospective "floor plan or cap loan lender." the assets of Major Acquisition Corp . Major
Acquisition Corp. is required to comply with certain financial covenants related to net worth and cash flow . In
addition, the Company provided an unconditional guarantee of the Falcon loan pursuant to a guarantee agreement
dated May 14, 1998.

General

Major Auto is one of the largest volume automobile retailers in New York City. Major Auto owns and
operates the following five franchised automobile dealerships in the New York metropolitan area: (i) Chevrolet; (ii)
Chrysler and Plymouth ; (iii) Dodge; (iv) Jeep; and (v) Subam. Major Auto also distributes General Motors vehicles



in the UkmlWough its dealerships, Major Auto sells new a,,,,,,~~~ used automobiles, provides related financing,
sells replacement parts and provides vehicle repair service andm1Wance.

Major Auto's president, Bruce Bendell, has approximately 27 years experience in the automobile industry.
He began selling and leasing used vehicles in 1972 and has owned and managed franchised automobile dealerships
since he acquired Major Auto's Chevrolet dealership in 1985 . Under Mr. Bendell's leadership, Major Auto has
expanded from a single-franchise dealership having approximately $10 million in revenues and 25 employees in
1985 to a five-franchise dealership group having approximately $150 million in revenues (including revenues of
approximately $98 million since May 14, 1998, the date of its acquisition by the Company) and 175 employees in
1998 .

Industry Background

Automobile manufacturers distribute their new vehicles through franchised dealerships . According to
industry data from the National Automobile Dealers Association ("NADA data"), in 1998, total dollar sales,
consisting of the sale of all new and used vehicles and service and parts, of all franchised new-car dealerships
increased 11% to a record high ofapproximately $560 billion. Franchised dealerships located in the New York State
had an estimated total dollar sales of $25.3 million.

According to NADA data, on average, in 1998 new vehicle sales constitute 59% of a franchised
dealership's total sales. Unit sales of new vehicles rose 7.3% in 1998 to a total of 16 .2 million units sold. At an
average retail selling price of $23,633 per vehicle, new vehicle sales totaled approximately $383 billion in 1998 .
From 1993 to 1998 sales revenue from the sale ofnew vehicles increased approximately 51%. The annual net profit
ofthe typical United States franchised dealer's new vehicle department is estimated to be $50,173 retailed.

According to NADA data, on average in 1998, used vehicle sales constitute 29.4% of a franchised
dealerships' total sales. In 1998, franchised new vehicle dealers sold 12 .2 million retail used vehicles. At an average
selling price of $12,501 per vehicle, used vehicle sales totaled approximately 5153 billion in 1998 . From 1993 to
1998 sales revenue from the retail sale of used vehicles increased approximately 69% and the combined sales
revenue from the retail and wholesale sale of used vehicles increased approximately 56%. The annual net profit of
the typical United States franchised dealer's used vehicle department is estimated to be $154,311 including
wholesale and retail. The NADA data cites that for all United States dealerships, the net profit from sales of used
vehicles is approximately three times the net profit from the sales of new vehicles . No assurance can be given that
results of Major Auto's operations will conform to NADA's industry data .

The following table sets forth information regarding vehicle sales by franchised new vehicle dealerships for
the periods indicated:

UNITED STATES FRANCHISED DEALER'S VEHICLES SALES

(1) Sales revenue figures were generated by multiplying the total unit sales by the average retail selling price ofthe
vehicle for the given year.
Source : National Automobile Dealers Association (NADA) Data 1999 (1998 data preliminary and estimated) .

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998

(Units in millions ; dollars in billions)

New vehicle unit sales 13 .9 15 .1 14 .8 15 .1 15 .1 16.2

New vehicle sales revenuu(t) $253 .0 3290 .0 5303 $328.0 5338 .2 5383 .0

Used vehicle unit sales-retail 9.9 10.9 11 .4 11 .9 12 .0 12.2

Used vehicle retail sales revenue 390.4 $111 .0 5126 .0 SI37 .0 5145 .2 8153 .0

Used vehicle unit sales-
wholesale 6.4 6.8 7.0 7.2 7.1 7.1
Used vehicle wholesale sales
revenue 524.0 527.7 530.3 $33.4 534.6 535.7



in additiAlRb revenues from the sate of new and used vehiciftutomotive dealerships derive revenues
from repair and warranty work sale of replacement pans, financing atlMdit insurance and the sale of extended
warranty coverage . According to NADA data, revenues teething from service and parts sales increased
approximately 3% in 1948 for franchised dealerships, a portion of which is accounted for by the increase in the
amount of used vehicle reconditioning. Revenue from parts and services constitutes, on average, approximately
11 .6% ofa franchised dealership's total sales and generates an annual net profit ofapproximately $150,000 .

Automotive dealerships profits vary widely and depend in pan upon the effective management of
inventory, marketing, quality control and responsiveness to customers . According to NADA data, in 1998, total
franchised dealership gross profits were, on average, S3 .1 million with an average net profit of$403,000 .

To reduce the costs of owning a new vehicle, automobile manufacturers in recent years have offered
favorable short-term lease terms, This has attracted consumers to short-term leases and has resulted in consumers
returning to the new vehicle market sooner than if they had purchased a new vehicle with longer-term fmathcing. in
addition, this has provided new ezr dealerships with a continuing source ofoff-lease vehicles and has also enabled
dealerships' parts and service departments to provide repair service order factory warranty for the lease term .

The automotive dealership industry has been consolidating in recent years. Until the 1960s, automotive
dealerships were typically owned and operated by a single individual who controlled a single franchise, However,
because ofcompetitive and economic pressures in the 1970s and 1980s, particularly the oil embargo of 1973 and the
subsequent loss ofmarket share experienced by United States automobile manufacturers to imported vehicles, many
automotive dealerships were forced to close or to sell to better-capitalized dealer groups . Continued competitive and
economic pressure faced by automotive dealers and an easing of restrictions imposed by automobile manufacturers
on multiplo-dealer ownership have led to further consolidation, According to NADA data, the number of franchised
dealerships has declined from 36,336 in 1960 to 22,400 atthe beginning of 1998 .

Major Auto believes that franchised automobile dealerships will continue to consolidate because the capital
required to operate dealerships continues to increase, many dealership owners are approaching retirement age and
certain automobile manufacturers want to consolidate their franchised dealerships to strengthen their brand identity .
For example, management believes that General Motors Corporation is implementing a strategy to reduce its
franchised dealerships by 1,500 from 8,400 by the year 2000. Ford Motor Co . has also been trying to reduce the
number of its franchises as pan of a campaign to upgrade its retail networks and make these dealers that remain
more profitable . Major Auto believes that dealership groups that have significant equity capital and experience in
acquiring and running dealerships will have an opportunity to acquire additional franchised dealerships .

Operating Strategy

Major Auto's operating strategy is to continually increase customer satisfaction and loyalty and to increase
operating efficiencies. Key elements of this operating strategy are as follows:

Major World Branding. Major Auto has established its Major World brand and www.majorworld.com
Internet brand for its current used car operations and those ofMajor Auto's participating regional dealerships . With
centralized buying and advertising as its focus, Major World is a natural extension of the Company's efforts in its
regional acquisition strategy and its accomplishments in used car sates through its dealerships in the metropolitan
NewYork area.

Internet Sales and Other Technology. Major Auto believes that it has achieved a competitive advantage
through the use of technology. Major Auto was one of the first dealership groups to provide its customers with a
1-800 telephone number and price quotations via facsimile . During the past several years, Major Auto has increased
its revenue to a present level of more than $1 trillion each month from its Internet website, www.majolworld.com
and other electronic media such as Bloomberg, Major Auto presently enables its customers to obtain credit
approvals over the telephone via its proprietary Talkie-AmoCom, a customized application of the Company's
'"Talkie" telephone interactive voice response system (see "Computer Telephony and Telecommunications Division
- Talkie"), that operates 24 hours per day, seven days per week and in nine different languages. Major Auto is
presently expanding its use ofTalkie-AumCom to permit customers to obtain answers to the most frequently asked



questions, obtai iTRce quotes, place orders, schedule and confirm SAM* e appointments, obtain directions to the
dealership and request faxes of product and price information . Majr~to is also intending to expand its use of
Talkie-AutoCom to call its customers automatically to notify them of required maintenance, sales and promotions
and to solicit customer satisfaction information . In addition, Major Auto intends to explore new ways to use
technology to provide better customer service. Major Auto has developed and is in the process of beta-testing an
Internet-based marketing system called MajorAuction.com to provide electronically, visual and textual information
regarding vehicles sold by Major Auto and enable customers to : (i) purchase a new or used vehicle on-litre ; (ii)
participate in a real-time auction for a specific vehicle ; and (iii) arrange for the related financing .

Focus on Used Vehicle Sales. A key element of Major Auto's operating strategy is to focus on the sale of
used vehicles . In 1998, approximately 12.2 million used cars were sold retail by dealers, more than fifty percent
more than the number of such sales in 1980 . Sales of used vehicles are generally more profitable than sales of new
vehicles . Management believes that the New York metropolitan area is one of the largest markets for used car sales
in the United States and that Major Auto sells more used cars in the New York metropolitan area than any other
automobile dealership or dealership group. Major Auto strives to attract customers and enhance buyer satisfaction
by offering multiple financing and leasing options and competitive warranty products on every used vehicle it sells .
Major Auto believes that a well-managed used vehicle operation affords it an opportunity to : (i) generate additional
customer traffic from a wide variety of prospective buyers; (ii) increase new and used vehicle sales by aggressively
pursuing customer trade-ins ; (iii) generate incremental revenues from customers financially unable or unwilling to
purchase a new vehicle; and (iv) increase ancillary product sales to improve overall profitability. To maintain a
broad selection of high-quality used vehicles and to meet local demand preferences, Major Auto acquires used
vehicles from trade-ins and a variety of sources nationwide, including direct purchases from individuals and fleets,
and manufacturer' and independent auctions. Major Auto believes that the price at which it acquires used vehicles is
the most significant factor contributing to the profitability of its used vehicle operations . Major Auto believes that,
because ofthe large volume ofused vehicles that it sells each month and the more than 27 year of experience in the
used vehicle business of its senior management, it is able to identify quality used vehicles, assess their value and
purchase them for a favorable price.

Emphasize Sales ofHigher Margin Products and Services. Major Auto generates substantial incremental
revenue and achieves increased profitability through the sale of certain ancillary products and services such as
financing, extended service contracts and vehicle maintenance . Major Auto provides its employees with special
training and compensates them, in part, with commissions based on their sales of such products and services . Major
Auto believes that these ancillary products and services enhance the value of purchased or leased vehicles and
increase customer satisfaction .

Provide a Broad Range of Products and Services. Major Auto offer a broad range of products and
services, including an extensive selection of new and used cats and light trucks, vehicle financing, replacement parts
and service . At its four locations, Major Auto offers, collectively, six makes of new vehicles, including Chevrolet,
Chrysler, Plymouth, Dodge, Jeep and Subaru. In addition, Major Auto sells a variety of used vehicles at a wide
range of prices. Major Auto believes that offering numerous makes and models of vehicles, both new and used .
appeals to a broad cross section of customers, minimizes dependence on any one automobile manufacture, and helps
reduce its exposure to supply problems andproduct cycles.

Operate Multiple Dealerships in Target Market. Major Auto's goal to become the leading automotive
dealer in its target market by operating multiple dealerships in that market. To accomplish this, Major Auto seeks to
acquire new franchises in its existing market and to expand its existing franchises to new markets. This strategy
enables Major Auto to achieve economies of scale in advertising, inventory management, management information
systems and corporate overhead

Target Sales to Ethnic Groups. Because the New York metropolitan area, Major Auto's primary market, is
ethnically diverse, Major Auto targets its selling efforts to a broad range of ethnic groups. In addition to offering
pre-paid international telephone calling time, Major Auto employs a multi-lingual sales force and intends to expand
its electronic media to accommodate multiple languages .

Leverage the Sale of International Calling Time. Major Auto offers customers pre-paid international
telephone calling time in connection with the purchase or lease of its automobiles . To accomplish this, Major Auto



utilizes the Company's proprietary Talkie technology, which is abl

	

rovide users with international calling time
at sharply discounted rates. Because Major Auto purchasestelephone from the Company at below-market rates,
the cost to Major Auto of implementing this program is minimal compared with the savings realized by its
customers. Major Auto's primary market, the New York metropolitan area, is home to many diverse ethnic groups
who have family and friends whom they call frequently in their native countries. By offering pre-paid international
telephone calling time with the purchase or lease of a vehicle, Major Auto believes that it adds value to its customers
and thereby increase customer satisfaction and loyalty .

Employ Professional Management Techniques. Major Auto employs professional management techniques
in all aspects of its operations, including information technology, employee training, profit-based compensation and
cash management. Each ofMajor Auto's four dealership locations, its centralized used vehicle operation and its two
service and parts operations is managed by a trained and experienced general manager who is primarily responsible
for decisions relating to inventory, advertising, pricing and personnel, Major Auto compensates its general managers
based, in part, on the profitability of the operations they control rather than on sales volume . Major Auto's senior
management meets weekly with its general managers and utilizes computer-based management information systems
to monitor each dealership's sales, profitability and inventory on a daily basis and to identify areas requiring
improvement. Major Auto believes that the application of its professional management techniques provides it with a
competitive advantage over other dealerships and dealership groups .

Growth Strategy

The Company intends to expand its business by acquiring additional dealerships and improving their
performance and profitability by implementing its operating strategy. As part of its growth strategy, the Company
intends to focus its efforts on dealerships or dealer groups that, among other criteria, possess either the sole franchise
of a major automobile manufacturer or a significant share of new vehicle sales in each targeted market and that it
believes are underperforming. In evaluating potential acquisition candidates, the Company will also consider the
dealership's or dealer group's profitability, customer base, reputation with customers, strength of management and
location (e .g ., along a major thoroughfare or interstate highway), and the possibility that the Company will be able
to acquire additional franchises in that market to achieve larger market share. Major Auto believes that the most
attractive acquisition candidates can be found in the New York metropolitan area, but the Company may consider
acquisitions in other markets. The Company's financing ofsuch acquisitions may involve expending cash, incurring
debt or issuing equity securities, which could have a dilutive effect on the then outstanding capital stock of the
Company. The Company, like all other automotive dealership holding companies, will continue to be subject to the
requirement ofobtaining prior approval for each acquisition from the appropriate automotive manufacturer.

Upon completing an acquisition, the Company attends to implement its operating strategy, which include=
selling more new and used vehicles, increasing finance revenues, enhancing employee training, lowering purchasen_
costs for used car inventories, supplies and outside vendor expenses. The Company also intends to install it
management information system in acquired dealerships as soon as possible after the acquisition, which will allocc
its senior management to carefully monitor each aspect of the dealership's operations and performance. Wheneve
possible, the Company intends to implement its strategies and operation procedures prior to the closing of x
acquisition to enable it to accelerate the implementation of its operating strategy after closing . See "Operatin ,
Strategy." No assurance can be given that the Company will successfully locate suitable acquisition candidates, c
even if such candidates are located and acquired, that such acquisitions will ultimately prove profitable to t0
Company.

the Company believes that Major Auto's management team has considerable experience in evaluating
potential acquisition candidates, determining whether a particular dealership can be successfully integrated into
Major Auto's existing operations and implementing its operating strategy to improve their performance and
profitability following the acquisition. For example, Bruce Bendell, Major Auto's President, acquired a Nissan
dealership in Oyster Bay, New York in January 1997 . The Nissan dealership is not owned or operated by Major
Auto, but is majority-owned by Mr. Bendell and minority-owned by another individual otherwise unaffiliated with
the Company or Mr. Bendell. The Company andMr. Bendell are currently negotiating a letter ofintent concernnr
the Company's acquisition ofOyster Bay Nissan. See "Proposed Acquisitions." Upon Mr. Bendelrs acquisition c
the Nissan dealership, it was selling 90 new and 20 used vehicles per month and was not generating any profits fir ,
such sales. Under Mr. Bendell's leadership, the dealership has expanded its sales to over 200 new and used vehicl



per month. The*any also believes that an increasing number ofa6ition opportunities will become available
to it . See "Industry Background."

Dealership Operations

Major Auto owns and operates five automobile dealerships at four locations in Long Island City, New
York. Major Auto conducts its parts and service business and its used vehicle business from three additional
locations in Long Island City . Major Auto offers the following six makes of new vehicles : Chevrolet, Chrysler,
Plymouth, Dodge, Jeep and Subaru . Each location is run by a separate general manager who is responsible for
overseeing all aspects of the business conducted at that location. Each of the parts and service locations has two
general managers, one for parts and one for service. Each general manager meets with Major Auto's senior
management, including Bruce Bendell and Harold Bendell, on a weekly basis.

Bruce Bendell and Harold Bendell are responsible for senior-level management of the dealerships . The
Bendell brothers' management control is accomplished through (i) their ownership of 100 shares of the Company's
1997A-MAJOR AUTOMOTIVE GROUP Series of Preferred Stock (of which shares Bruce Bendell has a proxy to
vote the 50 shares of the 1997A-MAJOR AUTOMOTIVE GROUP Series of Preferred Stock owned by Harold
Bendell for a seven-year period which commenced on January 7, 1998) which carries voting rights allowing them to
elect a majority of the Board of Directors of Major Auto, and through (ii) a related management agreement. See
"Description of Securities-Preferred Stock.1997A-MAJORAUTOMOTIVE GROUP Series of Preferred Stock" and
"Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" below. Should either of the Bendell brothers cease managing the
dealerships, the management agreement provides that ownership of his 1997A-MAJOR AUTOMOTIVE GROUP
Series ofPreferred Stock shares and his management rights under the management agreement will be automatically
transferred to the other, and should both brothers cease managing the dealerships for any reason, the shares and
management rights will be automatically transferred to a successor manager designated in a successor addendum to
each dealership agreement or, failing such designation, to a successor manager designated by the Company (subject
to approval by the applicable manufacturers) .

New Vehicle Sales. Major Auto sells the complete product line of cars, sport utility vehicles, minivans and
light trucks manufactured by Chevrolet, Chrysler, Plymouth, Dodge, Jeep and Subaru . For the period from May 14,
1998 (date of acquisition) through December 31, 1998, Major Auto's dealerships sold 1,995 new vehicles generating
total sales of approximately $47,000,000, which constituted approximately 48% of Major Auto's total revenues .
Major Auto's gross profit margin on new vehicle sales for the period from May 14, 1998 (date of acquisition)
through December 31, 1998, was approximately 9.4% which is higher than the industry average for all of 1998 of
6.5%. The relative percentages of Major Auto's new vehicle sales among makes of vehicles for the period from May
14, 1998 (date ofacquisition) through December 31, 1998, was as follows:

Percentage of
Manufacturer

	

New Vehicle Sales
Chevrolet

	

36%
Chrysler, Plymouth
and Jeep

	

32%
Dodge

	

26%
Subaru

	

6%

The following table sets forth information with respect to Major Auto's new vehicle sales for the period
May 14, 1998 (date of acquisition) through December 31,1998:

NEWVEHICLE SALES
(dollars in thousands)

Unit sales 1,995
Sales revenue $47,000
Gross Profit S 4,400
Gross Profit Margin 9 .4"/"



Major Auto purchases substantially all of its new v~ inventory directly from the respective
manufacturers who allocate new vehicles to dealerships based upooamount of vehicles sold by the dealership
and the dealership's market area. As required by law, Major Auto posts the manufacturer's suggested retail price on
all new vehicles, but the final sales price of a new vehicle is typically determined by negotiation between the
dealership and the purchaser.

In addition to its dealership operations, Major Auto has a distributorship agreement with General Motors
pursuant to which Major Auto distributes in the Ukraine new vehicles manufactured by General Motors . Major Auto
generally receives a deposit on the purchase price of the vehicle from the Ukrainian dealer and releases the vehicle
to the dealerupon full payment ofthe balance of the wholesale purchase price plus a percentage of the dealer's profit
on the sale . Major Auto intends to expand its distributorship operation in the future to include the sale of used
vehicles . To facilitate this facet of its operations, the Company recently entered into a consulting agreement with
Clemont Investments Ltd. ("Clemont"), a consulting fur which provides business advisory services regarding the
establishment in Europe ofbranches at operations of U.S . based companies. See "Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions ."

Used Yehicle Sales. Major Auto offers a wide variety of makes and models of used vehicles for sale . For
the period from May 14, 1998 (date of acquisition) through December 31, 1998, Major Auto sold 3,177 used
vehicles generating total sales of approximately $44,000,000, which consorted approximately 45% of Major Auto's
total revenues . Major'Auto's gross profit margin on used vehicle sales for the period from May 14, 1998 (date of
acquisition) through December 31, 1998, was approximately 14 .8% as compared with the industry average for all of
1998 of 10.8%. Major Auto believes it is the largest seller of used vehicles (based on unit sales and sales revenue)
in the New York metropolitan area .

Major Auto has consolidated its used vehicle operations for its various dealerships at a single site. Major
Auto acquires the used vehicles it sells through customer trade-ins, at "closed" auctions which may be attended by
only new vehicle dealers and which offer off-lease, rental and fleet vehicles, and at "open" auctions which offer
repossessed vehicles and vehicles being sold by other dealers .

Major Auto believes that the market for used vehicles is driven by the escalating purchase price of new
vehicles and the increase in the quality and selection ofused vehicles primarily due to an increase in the number of
popular cars coming offshort-term leases .

The following table sets forth information with respect to Major Auto's used vehicle sales for the period
from May 14, 1998 (date ofacquisition) through December 31, 1998 :

Parts and Service. Major Auto provides parts and service primarily for the makes of new vehicles that it
sells, but also services other makes of vehicles . For the period from May 14, 1998 (date of acquisition) through
December 31, 1998, Major Auto's parts and service operations generated total revenues of approximately
$6,700,000, which constituted approximately 7% of Major Auto's total revenues at a gross profit margin o :
approximately 37%.

The increased use of electronics and computers in vehicles has made it difficult for independent repai:
shops to retain the expertise to perform major or technical repairs . In addition, because motor vehicles ar. I
increasingly more complex and there are longer warranty periods, Major Auto believes that repair work wil
increasingly be performed at dealerships, which have the sophisticated equipment and skilled personnel necessary t
perform the repairs.

USED VEHICLE SALES
(dollars in thousands)

Unit sales 3,177
Sales revenue $43.900
Gross Profit 56,500
Gross Profit Margin 14.8%



Major Auto considers its parts and service department to

	

integral part o£its customer service efforts
and a valuable opportunity to strengthen customer relations anddn.customer loyalty, Major Auto attempts to
notify owners of vehicles purchased at its dealerships when their vehicles are due for periodic service, thereby
encouraging preventative maintenance rather than post-breakdown repairs.

Major Auto's parts and service business provides a stable, recurring revenue stream to its dealerships . In
addition, Major Auto believes drat, to a limited extent, these revenues are countercychcal to new vehicle sales, since
vehicle owners may repair their existing vehicles rather than purchasing new vehicles . Major Auto believes that this
helps mitigate the effects ofa downturn in the new-vehicle sales cycle.

Sales and Marketing

Major Auto does not operate abody shop, but instead contracts with third parties for body repair work .

The following table sets forth information with respect to Major Auto's sales ofparts and services for the
period from May 14, 1998 (date ofacquisition) through December 31, 1998 :

Vehicle Financing. Major Auto provides a wide variety of financing and leasing alternatives for its
customers. Major Auto believes that its customers' ability to obtain financing at its dealerships significantly
enhances Major Auto's ability to sell new and used vehicles . Major Auto believes that its ability to provide its
customers with a variety of financing options provides Major Auto with an advantage over many of its competitors,
particularly smaller competitors that do not have sufficient sales volumes to attract the diversity offinancing sources
available to Major Auto.

In most instances, Major Auto assigns its vehicle finance contracts and leases to third parties, instead of
directly financing vehicle sales or leases, which minimizes the credit risk to which Major Auto is exposed.
Major Auto typically receives a finance fee or commission from the third party who provides the financing .
In certain limited instances in which Major Auto determines that its credit risk is manageable, estimated by
Major Auto to be approximately 5% ofits vehicles sales and leases, Major Auto directly finances the
purchase or lease of a vehicle . In such instances, Major Auto will bear the credit risk that the customer will
default, but will have the right to repossess the vehicle upon default. Major Auto maintains relationships
with a wide variety offinancing sources, including commercial banks, automobile finance companies, other
financial institutions and the Company's subsidiary Major Fleet . Major Fleet purchases less than 10% of
Major Auto's leases, and none ofMajor Auto's finance contracts.

Major Auto believes marketing and advertising are significant to its operations. As is typical in its industry .
Major Auto receives a subsidy for a portion of its expenses from the automobile manufacturers with which Major
Auto has franchise agreements . The automobile manufacturers also assist Major Auto to develop its own advertising
by providing it with market research

Major Auto's marketing effort is conducted over most forms of media including television. newspaper.
direct mail, billboards and the Internet. Major Auto's advertising seeks to promote its image as a reputable deale:
offering quality products at affordable prices and with attractive financing options . Each of Major Auto's dealership :
periodically offer price discounts or other promotions m attract additional customers. The individual dealership=_
promotions are coordinated by Major Auto and, because Major Auto owns and operates several dealerships in the_
New York City market, it realizes cost savings through volume discounts and other media concessions .

SALES OF PART'S AND SERVICES
(dollars in thousands)

Sales Revenue $6,700
Gross Profit $2,500
Gross Profit Margin 37%



Ma*to's operations have been enhanced by its ability to achieve economies ofscale with respect to its
marketing an ertising . Nationwide, the average cost ofmarke nd advertising per new vehicle sold in 1998
was approximately $428 . Notwithstanding that advertising costs OW New York metropolitan area are generally
higher than the national average, Major Auto's cost ofmarketing and advertising per vehicle sold have consistently
been less than the national average. These lower costs result from the fact that Major Auto : (i) has favorable
contracts with four major area daily newspapers; (ii) advertises in lower-cost niche markets (such as local ethnic
markets, employee purchase programs and discount buying services); and (iii) utilizes telephonic marketing and
electronic marketing via services such as the Internet and Bloomberg.

Relationships with Manufacturers

Each of Major Auto's dealerships operates under a separate franchise or dealer agreement which governs
the relationship between the dealership and the relevant manufacturer. In general, each dealer agreement specifies
the location of the dealership for the sale of vehicles and for the performance of certain approved services in the
specified market area . The designation of such areas, the allocation of such areas and the allocation of new vehicles
among dealerships is discretionary with the relevant manufacturer. Dealer agreements do not generally provide a
dealer with an exclusive franchise in the designated market area. A dealer agreement generally requires that a dealer
meet specified standards regarding showrooms, the facilities and equipment for servicing vehicles, the maintenance
ofinventories, the maintenance ofminimum net working capital, personnel training and other aspects ofthe dealer's
business . The dealer agreement also gives the relevant manufacturer the right to approve the dealer's general
manager and any material change in management or ownership of the dealership. The dealer agreement provides the
relevant manufacturer with the right to terminate the dealer agreement under certain circumstances, such as : (i) a
change in control of the dealership without the consent of the relevant manufacturer; (ii) the impairment of the
financial condition or reputation of the dealership ; (iii) the death, removal or withdrawal of the dealership's general
manager; (iv) the conviction of the dealership or the dealership's general manager of certain crimes ; (v) the dealer's
failure to adequately operate the dealership or to maintain wholesale financing arrangements ; (vi) the bankruptcy or
insolvency of the dealership; or (vii) the dealer's or dealership's material breach of other provisions of the dealer
agreement Many of the dealership agreements require the consent of the relevant manufacturer to the dealer's
acquisition of additional dealerships . In addition, Major Auto's dealership agreement with General Motors, with
respect to its Chevrolet dealership, gives General Motors a right of first refusal to purchase such dealership, which
means that if ever Major Auto proposes to sell its Chevrolet dealership, it must first offer General Motors the
opportunity to purchase that dealership .

The dealership agreement with General Motors imposes several additional restrictions on the Company. As
a consequence of the Major Auto Acquisition, the Company's Chevrolet franchise, and any other General Motors'
franchises that the Company may subsequently acquire, could be at risk if. (i) any person or entity acquires more
than 20% of the Company's voting stock with the intention of acquiring additional shares or effecting a material
change in the Company's business or corporate structure; or (ii) if the Company takes any corporate action that
would result: (a) in any person or entity owning more than 20"/" of the Company's voting stock for a purpose other
than passive investment; (b) an extraordinary corporate transaction such as a merger, reorganization, liquidation or
transfer of assets ; (c) a change in the control of the Company's Board ofDirectors within a rolling one-year period :
or (d) the acquisition of more than 20% ofthe Company's voting stock by another automobile dealer or such dealer's
affiliates . If General Motors determines that any of the actions described in the preceding sentence could have a
material or adverse effect on its image or reputation in the General Motors' dealerships or be materially incompatible
with General Motors'' interests, the Company must either (x) transfer the assets of the General Motors' dealerships to
General Motors or a third party acceptable to General Motors for fair market value or (y) demonstrate that the
person or entity will not own 20% of the Company's voting stock or that the actions in question will not occur.

In addition, the General Motors dealer agreement requires that the Company comply with General Motors'
Network 2000 Channel Strategy ("Project 2000") . Project 2000 includes a plan to eliminate 1,500 General Motors
dealerships by the year 2000, primarily through dealership buybacks and approval by General Motors of
inter-dealership acquisitions, and encourages dealers to align General Motors divisions' brands as may be requested
by General Motors, The dealer agreement will require that the Company bring any General Motors dealership into
compliance with the Project 2000 plan within one year of the acquisition . failure to achieve such compliance may
result in termination of the dealer agreement and a buyback of the related dealership assets at book value by General
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lieves that Major Auto's Chevrolet dealership currently complies with the Project 2000
guidelines .

The Company has also agreed that its dealerships offering new vehicles manufactured by General Motors
will not attempt to sell new vehicles of other manufacturers .

New York law, and many other states' laws, limit manufacturers' control over dealerships. In addition to
various other restrictions imposed upon manufacturers, New York law provides that notwithstanding the terms of
the dealer agreement with the relevant manufacturer, the manufacturer may not: (i) except in certain limited
instances, terminate or refuse to renew a dealership agreement except for due cause and with prior written notice ; (ii)
attempt to prevent a change in the dealer's capital structure or the means by which the dealer finances dealership
operations; or (iii) unreasonably withhold its consent to a dealer's transfer of its interest in the dealership or fail to
give notice to the dealer detailing its reasons for not consenting .
Competition

The market for new and used vehicle sales in the New York metropolitan area is one of the most
competitive in the nation . In the sale of new vehicles, Major Auto competes with other new automobile dealers that
operate in the New York metropolitan area . Some competing dealerships offer some of the same makes as Major
Auto's dealerships and other competing dealerships offer other manufacturer's vehicles . Some competing new
vehicle dealers are local, single-franchise dealerships, while others are multi-franchise dealership groups. In the sale
of used vehicles, Major Auto competes with other used vehicle dealerships and with new vehicle dealerships which
also sell used cars that operate in the NewYork metropolitan area. In addition, Major Auto competes with used car
"superstores" that have inventories that are larger and more varied than Major Auto's .

Major Auto believes that the principal competitive factors in vehicle sales are the marketing campaigns
conducted by automobile manufacturers, the ability of dealerships to offer a wide selection of popular vehicles,
pricing (including manufacturers' rebates and other special offers), the location of dealerships, the quality of
customer service, warranties and customer preference for particular makes of vehicles . Major Auto believes that its
dealerships are competitive in all ofthese areas .

In addition, Major Auto, due to the size and number of automobile dealerships it owns and operates, is
larger than most of the independent operators with which it competes . Major Auto's size has historically permitted it
to attract experienced and professional sales and service personnel and has provided it the resources to compete
effectively . However, as the Company enters other markets, it may face competitors that are larger and that have
access to greater resources.

Major Auto believes that its principal competitors within the New York metropolitan area are United Auto
Group, a publicly traded company, and Potamkin Auto Group, Bum's Auto Group and Auto-Land, each of which is
privately held

Governmental Regulation

Automobile dealers and manufacturers are subject to various Federal and state laws established to protect
consumers, including the so-called "Lemon Laws" which require a dealer or manufacturer to replace a new vehicle
or accept it for a full refund within a specified period of time, generally one year, after the initial purchase if the
vehicle does not conform to the manufacturers express warranties and the dealer or manufacturer, after a reasonable
number of attempts, is unable to correct or repair the defect . Federal laws require that certain written disclosures be
provided on new vehicles, including mileage and pricing information . In addition, Major Auto's financing activities
are subject to certain statutes governing credit reporting and debt collection.

The imported automobiles purchased by Major Auto are subject to United States custom duties and, in the
ordinary course of its business, Major Auto may from time to time be subject to claims for duties, penalties,
liquidated damages or other charges. Currently, United States customs duties are generally assessed at 2.5% of the
customs value of die automobiles imported, as classified pursuant to the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United
States .



As with autMile dealerships generally, and parts and servic

	

erations in particular, Major Auto's
business involves the use, handling and contracting for recycling or dis

	

ofhazardous or toxic substances or
wastes, including environmentally sensitive materials such as motor oil,

	

sue motor oil and filters, transmission
fluid, antifreeze, freon, waste . paint and lacquer thinner, batteries, solvents, lubricants, degreasing agents, gasoline
and diesel fuels. Accordingly, Major Auto is subject to Federal, state and local environmental laws governing health,
environmental quality, and remediation of contamination at facilities it operates or to which it sends hazardous or
toxic substances or wastes for treatment, recycling or disposal . Major Auto believes that it is in material compliance
with all environmental laws and that such compliance will not have a material adverse effect on its business,
financial condition or results ofoperations.

Leasing Operations

In October 1996, the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of stock ofMajor Fleet &

Leasing Corp . ("Major Fleet') . Major Fleet has historically provided lease financing solely for motor vehicles .

Major Fleet typically arranges for sale or lease to its customers of new or used vehicles of all makes and
models . Major Fleet will purchase the desired vehicle from an automobile dealer and either resell it to its customer
for a markup over its cost, or lease the vehicle to the customer and provide the related lease financing. If a customer
of Major Fleet wants to purchase or lease a new vehicle that is available from one of Major Auto's dealerships, in
almost all cases, Major Fleet will acquire the vehicle from Major Auto and then resell or lease it to its customer .
Major Fleet estimates that it , acquires approximately 50% ofthe vehicles it sells and leases from Major Auto.

In most instances, Major Fleet will broker vehicle finance contracts for, or assign its leases to, third parties
instead of directly financing vehicle sales or leases . This minimizes the credit risk to which Major Auto is exposed.
In these instances, Major Fleet typically receives a finance fee or commission from the third party who provides the
financing. In certain instances, Major Fleet directly finances the lease of a vehicle . When Major Fleet provides lease
financing, it bears the credit risk that its customers will default in the payment of the lease installments . In order to
minimize its risk of loss, Major Fleet carefully evaluates the credit of its lease customers. It also requires that its
lease customers have adequate collision and liability insurance on the leased vehicle and that Major Fleet be named
as loss payee and additional insured on the customer's collision and liability insurance policies . Major Fleet does not
finance the purchase of the vehicles, so if a customer desires purchase financing, the customer will need to obtain
financing from a third party ; however, as discussed above, Major Fleet will broker financing contracts .

ProposedAcquisitions

The Company and Mr. Bendell are currently negotiating a letter of intent concerning the Company's
acquisition of Oyster Bay Nissan. There can be no assurance that the Company and Mr. Bendell will agree on
acceptable terms. Based upon preliminary financial and other information its the Company's possession relating to
the business and operations of Oyster Bay Nissan, the Company does not believe that such acquisition, if
consummated would have material impact on the financial positions of the Company. However, if the purchase
price for such acquisition were to have a significant cash component, the Company would likely be required to raise
additional capital, either by incurring debt or issuing equity, to finance the consummation ofsuch acquisition.

In January 1999 ; Fidelity Holdings and Major Auto entered into an agreement with Universal Ford, Inc. to
acquire Universal Kia, a Kia automobile dealership located in Long Island City, New York . The purchase price of

Universal Kja is based on Universal Ma's historical operating results and is expected to aggregated less than
$200,000.

Also in January 1999, the Company signed a letter of intent to acquire the 80% of the Long Island, New
York based Major ofthe Five Towns (formerly Nissanland and Kialand), currently doing business as Major Nissan
and Major Kia, that is owned by the Company's Chairman and CEO, Bruce Bendell. The purchase price is
$1,250,000 subject to receiving a fairness opinion from an independent appraiser. This dealership has three separate
showroom locations. Nicholas Guadagno, who is President and a 20% shareholder of Major ofthe Five Towns, will
continue to manage day-to-day operations after the completion ofthis acquisition.
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This acquisition will enable the Company to
enter the Northern New Jersey market and thus expand Major Auto's regional presence in the retail automobile sales
industry in keeping with one ofthe Company's key corporate objectives. It is also expected that after the acquisition
of Compass, ArthurPicot, currently President of the two dealerships, will remain with the Company. It is expected
that, with the more, than thirty years experience Mr. Picot has in the area, and with the resources of Major Auto, he
will be helpful in expanding its operations . The Company is planning in change the name of these dealerships to
Major Lincoln-Mercury and Major Dodge. It will then utilize its "Major World" brand of marketing at these two
dealerships.

No assurance can be given that the Company will successfully consummate any or all of the
aforementioned potential acquisitions, or, if consummated, that such acquisitions will ultimately prove profitable to
the Company.
Technology Division (See "Discontinued Operations,")

The Company has announced its intention to explore due possible divestiture of its Technology Division,
way ofsale, merger, consolidation or otherwise andis actively seeking oppornutities to do so . The Company
believes that each of its non-automotive operations included in the Technology Division is potentially or currently
economically viable. Therefore. in an effort to maximize the value of each of these operations to be divested, with
the goal being to realize the largestpossible benefit from the divestiture, the Company continues to maintain and
enhance each suchoperation See "Discontinued Operations .'

The Company, through Computer Business Sciences, Ins� a Delaware corporation ("Computer Business
Sciences" or "CBS"), 786710 Ontario Limited, an Ontario corporation doing business as Info Systems, Ins, ("Info
Systems"), U.S . Computer Business Sciences Ltd, an Israeli corporation ("Computer Business Sciences (Israel)"),
Roynani Service Bureau, Inc., a Florida corporation ("Roynard") and IG21M, Inc., a Delaware corporation
("IG2rr, the five wholly-owned subsidiaries (provided that certain outside investors have warrants to purchase
shares of CBS common stock, Sec "Recent Developments ."} comprising its Computer Telephony ant
Telecommunications operations, currently develops, manufactures, markets, sells and services two product lines.
'the fast product line utilizes "Talkie" technology, which consists of proprietary computer software and hardware
that (i) permits end users of the technology to place long-distance international telephone calls at discounted rate ,
and (ii) offers end users a broad range of interactive voice response applications such as voice-mail, automatic
receptionist, automated order entry, conference calling and faxing. The second product line, "Business Contre
Software," is a proprietary computer software system that provides mule-lingual general accounting and bushes:
management applications,

The Company is planning to exploit its technological capabilities in telephony by emphasizing high $pee:
broadband, multimedia transmission over telephone, including voice, data, video confarencing and other areas, i-
order to enhance the Technology Division's value to potential acquirers, See `Planned Activities ."

The Company originally acquired the technology for its tciecommnmieations products (see "rallde" below.
in April 1996 through its acquisition from Dr. Zvi Barak and Sarah Barak (the "Baraks") of all of the issued an
outstanding capital stock of Info Systems, A portion of the purchase price for such capital stock consists of twen
monthly installment payments of $15,000 each from the Company To the Baraks. In order to secure such installme
payments, the Company has granted a security interest to the Baraks in the capital stock of Info Systems and
other assets purchased by the Company from the Baraks . On December 31, 1998 the Company entered inn
definitive agreement with the Baraks regarding payment of all amounts due them. The agreement calls for a sr
of payments ranging in amounts from 520,000 to $45,000 to be made to the Basks over the period Decembe
1998 through May 18, 1999 . The Company has made all payments as of the date of this Annual Report as scher
To secure its obligations the Company has deposited with an escrow agent 550,000 plus 140,000 shares
common stock Additionally, in satisfaction of certain adjustments to their employment agreements and
packet expenses insured by them . the Company issued to the Basks 11,960 shares of common stock . The
have the right to sell such shares back to the Company for a price per share of$5,00 at any time up to oney
the date ofissuanm. March 3, 1999 .



Talkie

"Take" is the trademark for, and the name used by the Company to describe, the technology relating to t
Company's telephonic and interactive voice response software applications . The Company has three products th
use Talkie technology . The fast product, the 'alkie Power Web Line Machine," is a computer based telepho:
"switch" that enables small or start-up telephone companies to purchase blocks of international telephone caller
time from suppliers such as AT&T and MCI and resell the time in smaller units to callers at discounted rates. T
second product is a group of related telephonic and interactive voice response software programs, such
voice-mail, automatic receptionist, automated order entry, conference calling and faxing. The third product, call
"Talkie-Globe," is an international call-back, debit card and long-distance reselling system.

The Take Power Web Line Machine is a programmable electronic telephone switch based on persor
computer technology . It consists of a proprietary software program and hardware components, most of which ,-
available from a number of different sources. The machine currently contains 96 channels, but may be expanded
carry up to 120 channels. Each channel provides 43,200 available minutes of telephone time per 30-day month t-
may be sold. As is typical of industry utilization of available telephone time, approximately 30%-40% of the
available minutes are actually sold . Ofthe 43,200 available minutes, approximately 10,560 are considered peak tir
(defined to be the 480 minutes comprising the typical eight-hour work day in the destination country and assumi
22 work days in the typical 30-day month) and the balance are considered off-peak time ; however the determinat :
of actual peak minutes in a destination country is based upon demand for calling time, which in turn is based tic
such factors as calling patterns and the differences in time zones between the country from which a call is plac
and the destination county. Peak minutes are generally able to be sold at higher rates than off-peak minutes.

The Talkie Power Web Line Machine includes an integrated programmable telephone call switch,
system known as the Talkie Web Smart Switch . The programmability of this switching system allows the mach .
to handle a variety of international telephone-based services including resale of long-distance telephone time
Company purchases in bulk, international call-back services (described below), telemarketing, Internet access
facsimile transmission.

Historically, the Company, through its subsidiary Computer Business Sciences, sold the Take Power
Line Machines to various service providers (known as "master agents") . A master agent then established a telepiv
connection between a foreign country and the Take PowerWeb Line Machine, which is located at the Commpr
offices in Kew Gardens, New York . This connection is typically a dedicated telephone line that runs from the Ta.
Power Web Line Machine to certain equipment located in the foreign country that is used to connect the dedic_
line to the local telephone lines. The master agent typically leased the dedicated telephone line, which has a spec
capacity for simultaneous calls, from MCI Communications Corp . or Sprint Corporation for a fixed monthly
Callers in the foreign country place a local call to connect to the dedicated telephone line and are provided a Ur.
States dial tone by the Talkie Power Web Line Machine. The caller then dials the number for the desired destina:
and the call is carried over the dedicated telephone line to the Take Power Web Line Machine and then redirec
to the desired destination . Because the Take Power Web Line Machine's software program is able to process e
voice and data, callers may place international telephone calls and send facsimiles to the desired destination and r-
also connect to the Internet.

The master agent generated revenues by selling the available telephone time generated by the Take Po
Web Line Machine to callers in the foreign country. There were two elements to the master agent's cost of carryv
call from the foreign country to the desired destination: the cost of the dedicated telephone line from the Ta
Power Web Line Machine to the foreign country (which is typically a fixed monthly cost) and the cost of the
directed from the Take Power Web Line Machine to the desired destination (which is based upon United St
calling rates) . The master agent charged the caller in the foreign country a markup over the cost of the call to
desired destination . The cost to the caller is considerably lower than the alternative of placing the same call thrc
the caller's own local telephone system which, in many cases, is a state-owned monopoly . The experience of
Company's master agents, generally, was a very substantial reduction in per minute call costs. The Compa
billing records indicate that the reduction in most cases is a factor of 15, that is, the country-to-country portion c



international callftally costing $0.75 per minute, costs 50.05 per minute when placed through the Talkie Power
Web Line Mach nce the master agent arranged for a certain m1w volume of calls from a given foreign
country, the master agent recouped the cost of the dedicated telephoilWe to that foreign country and thereafter
generated profits.

TheCompany has decided to acquire from all of its master agents their rights to their respective territories
and the Talkie Power Line Web Machines previously sold to them. The Company believes that it can maximize its
profitability and, thereby, enhance its value to potential acquirms, by selling for itself the telephone minutes to the
existing and additional territories . Negotiations are continuing with each of the Company's master agents to finalize
the memoranda of understanding with respect to these acquisitions. See also "Arrangements with Nissko" below.

Arrangements with Nissko

In March 1996, the Company's subsidiary Computer Business Sciences formed a joint venture with Nissko
Telecom, L.P . ("Nissko") . The joint venture is a general partnership named Nissko Telecom Associates
("Associates") . Computer Business Sciences owns 45% of the joint venture and Nissko owns 55%. Nissko is a
limited partnership the general partner of which is one of the Company's master agents, Nissko Telecom, Ltd. (the
"Agent"), and the limited partners of which are four individuals, three of whom, including Yossi Koren, a former
director of the Company, are shareholders of the Agent (such three individuals being collectively referred to herein
as the 'Nissko Principals") . Pursuant to an informal agreement, the Agent has granted to Associates the right to
market and sell the available telephone time generated by the Talkie Power Web Line Machines that the Agent
purchases as a master agent, in exchange for a 55% Agent's interest in the joint venture through its general
partnership interest in Nissko . Through its interest in Associates, Computer Business Sciences realizes 45% of the
revenues generated from Associates' sale of such telephone minutes.

Under the terms of its master agent agreement, the Agent (i) paid Computer Business Sciences a deposit of
$629,000 at the time the agreement was executed toward the purchase of the l5 machines that the Agent is obligated
to purchase and (ii) issued to Computer Business Sciences 45%of its then issued and outstanding common stock. In
return, (i) the Company issued to the Nissko Principals, including Yossi Koren. who subsequently became a director
of the Company, (a) warrants, exercisable through the date that is 60 days after the effectiveness of any public
offering of the Company's securities, to acquire an aggregate of 750,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock at
an exercise price of $1 .25 per share (the "Class A Warrants") and (b) warrants, exercisable through March 19, 1995
(which have since expired by their terms), to acquire an aggregate of 750,000 shares of the Company's Common
Stock at an exercise price of 51.25 per share (the "Class B Warrants") and (ii) Computer Business Sciences agreed
to make a $10,000 contribution to the capital of the Agent upon its purchase of each of the first 15 machines . (See
"Restructuring ofNissko Arrangements" below.)

To secure certain payments under the master agent agreement with the Agent, Brace Bendell, the
Company's Chairman and Chief Executive Office, and Town Cohen, the Company's President and Treasurer, have
each pledged to the Agent 500,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock. In the event that certain financial
covenants are not met or superseded by definitive documentation resulting from the MOU (as hereinafter defined),
the Nissko Principals will have the right to foreclose on the pledged Common Stock.

If the proceeds of liquidating the pledged shares are sufficient to cover the deficit, the Nissko Principals
will be required to transfer to Mr . Bendell and Mr. Cohen in equal amounts the remaining 55% of the Agent's issued
and outstanding common stock. Messrs . Bendell and Cohen have agreed that upon receipt of that stock, they will
transfer it to the Company in exchange for reimbursement by the Company for the market value of their shares of
the Company's Common Stock foreclosed upon by the Nissko Principals .

Resiructuring ofNissko Arrangements

The Company has entered into a Memorandum ofUnderstanding (the "MOU") with the Agent, the Nissko
Principals, and with the remaining limited partner ofNissko, Robert L. Rimberg. The MOU provides that : (i) Nissko
will transfer to the Agent, and the Agent will assume, all of the assets and liabilities of Nissko ; and (ii) Computer
Business Sciences will acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of the Agent in a tax-free
reorganization . Upon execution of the MOU, an aggregate $653,750 deposit that the Nissko Principals and Mr.



Rimberg had

	

ously paid towards the full exercise price of the Class A Warrants was converted to a partial
exercise of th]ss A Warrants. Upon such conversion, the Comg~issued an aggregate of523,000 shares of its
Common Stock to the Nissko Principals and Mr. Rimberg, 173,583ich were issued to Yossi Koren, formerly a
director of the Company. Permitted resales will be expressly subject to the voting rights of Bruce Bendell who holds
a proxy to vote 500,000 of these shares during the two-year restriction period. Subsequently, the parties agreed to
remove the contractual two-year restriction on sales of these shares to make such restriction consistent with current
restrictions under the Securities Act of 1933 .

The MOU provides that upon execution of definitive documentation containing the terms and conditions
outlined in the MOU, (i) each of the Nissko Principals will receive 257,500 shares ofthe Company's Common Stock
and Mr. Rimberg will receive 27,500 shares of the Company's Common Stock, resoles ofall of which shares will be
subject to restrictions on transfer and voting that are identical to those described immediately above, and (ii) each of
the Nissko Principals will receive warrants to acquire up to 68,917 shares of the Company's Common Stock and Mr.
Rimberg will receive warrants to acquire up to 20,250 shares of the Company's Common Stock, in each case for
$1 .25 per share. Such warrants represent the unexercised balance of the Class A Warrants remaining after the
conversion of the $653,750 partial payment into a partial exercise as described above. Of these warrants
representing 227,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock, warrants for 144,714 shares, in the aggregate, were
exercised ratably by the Nissko Principals in December 1998, leaving a balance of 82.286 shares represented by
such warrants.

Nissko Jewelry Trading, Inc. ("NJT71, a company 33-113% owned by Mr . Koren, has entered into
agreements for the Agent's benefit with MCI, Sprint and Bell Atlantic (formerly NYNEX). These agreements
provide for the purchase by NIT on behalf of the Agent of telephone time or transmission lines . The MOU provides
that the Company will indemnify NIT against any liability it may incur under these agreements and will place
200,000 shares ofits Common Stock into an escrow account to secure this indemnification obligation.

Upon the effectiveness of the definitive documentation relating to the transactions contemplated by the
MOU the Agent's master agent agreement will terminate and the pledge by each of Mr. Bendell and Mr . Cohen of
500,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock, referred to above, will be released.

It is the Company's intention to reacquire the territorial rights and Talkie Power Line Web Machines from
its other master agents in exchange for shares of Common Stock at fair value. The Company has reached tentative
agreement with each such agent and is presently negotiating definitive memoranda ofunderstanding .

Interactive Voice Response Sofnvare Programs

The second product group, interactive voice response software programs . consists of the following
applications :

Talkie-Ad: permits callers to browse through pre-recorded messages based on their search criteria, similar to a
talking classified ad

Talkie-Attendant. automated receptionist features, including dial "0" for operator, name directories, call blocking,
call screening, music or company messages while on hold, paging, personalized menus, call queuing and
conversation recording .

Talkie-Audio : delivers pre-recorded information in response to telephone inquiries and can serve as a talking
bulletin board.

Talkie-Conference: permits the user to schedule a conference call and then, when the conference call is to occur,
either calls the participants or permits them to dial in, and provides the chairperson with various options during the
call.

Talkie-Dial : places a telephone call, using a user-supplied list of telephone numbers and delivers voice information
with the capability ofasking questions, accepting answers and updating the system to reflect the answers.



Talkie-Fax: permits RR.'ltser to program a facsimile into the system and ~~[~t it to a user-supplied list of numbers
and permits users to transmit to callers upon their request written infomwprogrammed into the system such as
directions, product information, price lists or news releases.

Talkie-Form: permits the user to set up a questionnaire and collect answers to pre-recorded questions .

Tallde-Mail: permits the user to record, send, receive and retrieve voice messages from personal mailboxes.

Talkie-Query: responds to callers' inquiries using information stored in the system database .

Talkie-Traps: accepts orders, issues orders (including delivery instructions) and faxes order confirmations.

Users of the Talkie interactive voice response system can also customize the foregoing applications to create new
applications using Talkie-Gen, which is an application generator that uses a simple programming language.

In addition to the applications listed above, users may also purchase any ofthe following off-the-shelf applications :

Talkie-Dating: permits the user to supply a dating service that will permit the user's customers to place and browse
through personal ads, register for service and record and listen to messages .

Talkie-Follow-Me : permits the user to supply a telephone tracking service that enables the user's customers to obtain
a single telephone number that will continually forward incoming calls to a user-defined series of telephone numbers
(such as work, cellular, home, pager and voice-mail).

Talkie-Wake-Up/Reminder: permits the user to supply a wake-up or reminder service that will call a user supplied
number with a user-supplied message at a specified time .

All ofthe Talkie interactive voice response applications operate in up to nine languages.

Info Systems also provides customers with industry-specific and customized applications of its interactive
voice response technology . For example, Info Systems has developed a product called Talkie AutoCom for use by
automobile dealers . See "Automotive Sales Division-Operating Strategy ."

The Talkie interactive voice response software package is sold by the Company through Info Systems .

Talkie-Globe, the trademark for, and the name used by the Company to describe, its third
telecommunications product, is a software-based integrated call-back, debit-card and long-distance reselling system
and includes all of the Talkie interactive voice response software programs. Typically, international callers based in
countries where the telephone system is a state-owned monopoly must pay high per-minute rates fixed by the
state-owned company. One method of securing a lower rate is the "call-back" system offered by Info Systems'
Table-Globe . Using Tallde-Globe, the foreign caller first places a telephone call from the foreign country to the
United States or Canadian telephone number where the Talkie-Globe system is located and disconnects without the
call being connected so that no charge is assessed for the call . Talkie-Globe recognizes the telephone number from
which the foreign call was placed and then places a call to that telephone number from the location in the United
States or Canada where the Talkie-Globe system is located to the foreign caller and provides the foreign caller with
a dial tone. The foreign caller then places a telephone call through the United States or Canada to the desired
destination . The foreign caller thus pays for two calls : (i) the call back from the Talkie-Globe system located in the
United States or Canada to the caller in the foreign market and (ii) the call that the caller places through the United
States or Canada to the desired destination . The sum of the costs of the two calls placed from the Talkie-Globe
system located in the United States or Canada will be lower than the cost of a single call placed directly from the
applicable foreign market to the desired destination. The Talkie-Globe system also has a debit card feature, which
permits a caller to purchase a stated value ofcalling time, and debits that value as the caller uses the prepaid calling
time .

Talkie-Globe is sold by the Company through Info Systems.



Marketing and Sales

Historically, the Company's strategy with respect to the Talkie Power Web Line Machete has been
threefold . First, it sold additional machines through its existing master agents as they expanded their businesses by
providing telephone service to additional foreign markets. Second, as demand for the machines increased, it
intended to add additional master agents and/or replace any existing master agents who were not complying with
their master agent agreements and to enter into strategic parmetships with such new and replacement master agents
that would permit the Company to share in the revenue generated by the master agents' sale of telephone time .
Third, it intended continually to adapt advancing computer and telecommunications technology to improve and
customize the performance of the machines. Currently, the Company is in the process of acquiring the territorial
rights and equipment from its master agents and intends to operate its Talkie Power Web Line Machines on its own
behalf in preparation for these activities to be divested . The Company anticipates consummating all such
arrangements in the second quarter of 1999 .

The Company installs, maintains and services all Talkie Power Web Line Machines at the Company's
offices in Kew Gardens, New York, where the machines are housed . Historically, for these services, the Company
received both a fixed fee and a volume-based fee. To date, billing arrangements have been informal, and the cost to
each master agent has been calculated by determining the aggregate maintenance and service costs for all the
machines, adding a percentage markup and charging each master agent its ratable portion based upon the number of
machines it has purchased. The Company also customized theperformance of the machines for the respective master
agents and for use in particular countries, for which it has received a fee that is negotiated by the Company and the
applicable master agent based upon the complexity of the customization. As noted above, all master agents have
been required by contract with the Company to locate their purchased Talkie Power Web Line :Machines at the
Company's principal office and to have all required installation, service and maintenance performed by the
Company. In addition to the services it provides with respect to the Talkie PowerWeb Line Machines, the Company
also has provided services for the various other Talkie products and for the Business Control Software, if requested
by the users.

The Company typically sells its interactive voice response software programs to entrepreneurs who wish to
operate a telephone-based service business with low overhead and fixed costs. The typical interactive voice response
software package requires only a personal computer and voice card for use and costs $1,295 . Each of the
off-the-shelf applications costs an additional $795 . The Company intends to maintain and enhance this facet of its
business in preparation for its planned divestiture . As such, is plans include a focus of its efforts with respect to its
Talkie interactive voice response software programs on due market for industry-specific and customized applications
in which it generally realizes higher profit margins in order to maximize its value to potential acquirors. As the
Company targets a given industry, it expects to hire sales personnel familiar with that industry and to attend trade
shows to market its product. In addition, the Company intends to expand sales of its interactive voice response
system into Europe and South America.

The Company typically sells four to five of its Talkie-Globe systems per month to entrepreneurs who wish
to provide a telephone business with low overhead and fixed costs and to small foreign telephone companies. Users
of Talkie-Globe purchase international calling time from long-distance telephone companies such as MCI
Communications Corp . and resell such time at a mark-up. The typical Taikie-Globe system consists of three
personal computers, proprietary software and a voice card andsells for approximately $25,000.

The Company realized gross revenues of$844,000 daring 1997 and S1,089,000 during 1998 from the sale
of its Talkie interactive voice response software programs and ofTalkie-Globe (excluding intercompany sales) . The
Company's gross profit margin on sales of its Talkie products, including interactive voice response software
programs was approximately 28% for 1997 and approximately 35% for 1998 . The results of operations for
information systems has been included with discontinued operations in the Company's consolidated financial
statements.



T4~duct covered by the Company's armored c

	

uit patents is assembled underground from
prefabricated pieces that are typically two to four feet in length. piece consists of a pre-formed plastic shell that
is filled with pourable cement. Each pre-formed shell has a rec

	

Iar cross-section, with a linear ribbed exterior
and tubular interior. Each end of the pre-formed shell has an extension that can be coupled to the next section in
end-to-end fashion.

Potentially, the design of the armored conduit offers several advantages over other types of conduit. First,
because the armored conduit system is assembled from pre-fabricated pieces, if there is a problem with a single
piece, only that piece, rather than the entire conduit system, needs to be replaced. The problem piece will be
replaced with a replacement piece that has a top and bottom half. The bottom halfofthe replacement piece will first
be put in place and coupled to the pieces on either side. The wires will then be placed in the bottom half of the
interior tube. The top half of the replacement piece will then cover the wires and be coupled to the pieces on either
side . Second, the linear ribs on the exterior of the pre-formed shells increase the structural strength of the shells and
permit them to be interlocked when stacked for storage or shipment, thereby reducing the risk of damage. Third, the
outer plastic shell of the armored conduit system protects it from water, chemicals and other elements to which
underground conduit systems are exposed. As a result of all of these advantages, the armored conduit system can be
expected to be more durable than existing types ofconduit .

The Company has been engaged in limited research and development activities relating to the armored
conduit, and expects, given the availability of funding, to continue these activities in order to enhance its value to
potential acquirors.

Research and Development

The Company's wholly-owned subsidiary Computer Business Sciences (Israel) engages in research and
development (i) to improve its existing telecommunications software, and to adapt the software to changing personal
computer environments, (H) to expand the software to new uses and (iii) to develop new software, products and
applications . Computer Business Sciences (Israel) is headed by Dr. Zvi Barak, who was responsible for the
development of the Talkie technology and related Talkie products and of the business control sofhvare. The
Company spent approximately $207,000 and $300,000 on research and development in 1997 and 1998, respectively,
with respect to such division. Research and development with respect to the armored conduit technology and the spa
and bath fixture technology is conducted by the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary Premo-Piast . The
Company spent approximately $33,750 and $200,000 respectively, in 1997 and 1998 on research and developmen .
with respect to such division . Such division currently has no customers.

Intellectual Property

The Company has registered the name "Talkie" as a trade-mark in Canada. The Company has file,
applications with the United States Patent and Trademark Office to register the names "Talkie" and "Talkie-Globe
and "BCS Software" as trademarks in the United States . As an additional method of protecting its proprietor
technology, the Company requires that all of the Talkie Power Web Line Machines that it sells remain at th
Company's offices in Kew Gardens, New York and that all installation, service and maintenance of the machines b
performed solely by the Company. The Company also relies on trade secret protection, confidentiality agreement
and other laws to protect its technology, but believes that these rights maynot necessarily preventthird parties from
developing or using similar or related technology to compete against the Computer Telephony an
Telecommunications divisions products.

The Company owns two United States patents, issued in June 1993 andMay 1994, respectively, relating
the armored conduit technology and also owns a Canadian patent application relating to such technology .
addition, the Company has filed two applications for a United States patent relating to the spa and bath fixtures ar
related installation method for which it received a patent. The Company has also filed two applications relating
the spa and bath fixtures and related installation method under the Patent Cooperation Treaty designating Australi
Canada, China, Japan and the European Patent Office (up to 18 countries) as recipient countries. Under such trear
the Company will have the option to individually file separate applications in the designated countries at
appropriate future date. In addition, the Company relies on confidentiality agreements and other taws to protect
technology . The Company believes that it maybe possible for third parties to develop technology that provides



same features as the Company's plastic products without infringin

	

the Company's rights or making use of its
proprietary tielogy.

Competition

Although the Company has many competitors, many ofwhich enjoy greater resources than it, the Company
believes its Talkie Power WebLine Machine has certain technological features providing it with advantages over its
competitors' products and services . While other companies manufacture and sell traditional telephone switching
equipment, such equipment is expensive to purchase and maintain as compared to the Talkie Power Web Line
Machine. Moreover, the Company believes that the proprietary nature of the Talkie Power Web Line Machine's
software program provides the Company a significant head start over a potential competitor who wishes to develop a
competing product There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to maintain such technological
advantages, if any, in the future .

The Company will compete, after the acquisition of the territorial rights and equipment of its master agents,
with other providers of international telephone service. The market for international telephone service is highly
competitive. In additional to the major service providers such as AT&T,MCI and Sprint, there are numerous smaller
service providers as well as resellers, who do not own and operate equipment but purchase telephone time from
service providers at a discount and resell that time to the public . The Company believes that a primary competitive
factor in the industry is pricing . The Company believes that the use of the Talkie PowerWeb Line Machine, which
is less costly to purchase and maintain than traditional switching equipment, will enable it to offer telephone calling
time at lower rates than competitors whose rate structure must account for the higher cost of such traditional
switching equipment As a result of deregulation in foreign countries, which could result in competition from other
service providers with large, established customer bases and close ties to govemmemal authorities in their home
countries and decreased , prices for direct-dialed international calls, the Company may face increasing competition
which could adversely affect the Company's gross margins on phone services sold for its own account and thereby,
reduce the Company's income .

The Company's Talkie interactive voice response software programs compete with products sold by
approximately two dozen entities in North America, including AT&T, Northern Telecom and others . However, in
the more limited market for industry-specific and custom interactive voice response applications, the Company
knows of only one direct competitor. The Company's Talkie-Globe system competes with telephone callback
products sold by approximately six other entities.

As a result of its reliance on the Company's proprietary software rather than hardware components to
operate, the purchase price and maintenance costs of the Company's Talkie interactive voice response software
programs and Talkie-Globe are believed to be generally lower than those of competing products. In addition,
because software is easier to alter than hardware components, the Company is able to customize its products or
modify its products to incorporate changing technology more quickly and at a lower cost than its competitors .

Notwithstanding the Company's competitive advantages however, many of the producers of products
competitive with the Company's, and companies wishing to enter the market in which the Company's products
compete, have well established reputations, customer relationships and marketing and distribution networks. Many
also have greater financial. technical, manufacturing, management and research and development resources than
those of the Company, may be more successful than the Company in manufacturing and marketing their products
and may be able to use their greater resources and to leverage existing relationships to obtain a competitive
advantage over the Company.

If the Company's armored conduit is developed into a commercially viable product, it will compete with
PVC duct encased in concrete, cement or concrete tubing and metal tubing, all of which are established methods.
The Company's spa and bath fixtures will compete with existing types of such fixture . Because the Company's
fixtures and installation method permit single-person assembly rather than the two-person assembly required by
existing products and installation methods, the Company believes that use of its fixtures will result in significantly
reduced assembly time and costs.
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networks . They may also have greater financial, technical, manufacturing, management and research and
development resources than those of the Company. While the Company believes that its spa and bath fixtures and
installation method and its armored conduit will have significant advantages over existing products, the Company's
competitors may be more successful than the Company in manufacturing and marketing their products and may be
able to leverage existing relationships to obtain a competitive advantage over the Company.

Planned Activities

In February 1999, CBS launched IG2T"t (Internet Generation Two), a multimedia network platform that is
expected to provide high speed Internet access, e-Commerce capabilities, local and long distance service, television
quality video conferencing and television programming through existing telephone wires already installed in the
customer's home and/or small business. IG2TM is believed by the Company to be the next generation platform in
Internet and communications delivery . The Company expects to price IG2TM services at a substantial discount over
current rates charged for telephone, cable and Internet access combined IG2T3", Inc., a subsidiary of CBS, was
designated to deploy IG27M services.

The initial trial rollout, Phase I, presently projected for the third quarter of 1999, targets twenty-two cities
and expands to sixty-three cities by the end of that year . Phase I, using an asynchronous transport mode ("ATM")
technology, is expected to offer guaranteed quality of service, carrier class-level voice over internet ("Voice/11"')
long distance service at aggressively competitive rates. Phases II and III of this enterprise, utilizing state-of the-art
digital subscriber line ("DSL") equipment, are expected to provide a wide array of VoicelIP services including local
dial tone, call-back, dial-around, traditional long distance and high speed internet access . Additionally, because this
technology permits broadband service over existing copper wires, the Company's Technology Division is
positioning itself to offer; at very competitive prices, additional services such as virtual private networks ("VPN"),
movies on demand and pay TV, home shopping, banking, telemarketing, tele-medicine, video conferencing and
distance learning, to enhance its value in the event of divestiture .

Also in February 1999, CBS received approval to operate as a facilities-based Carrier of
Telecommunications Services and Intrastate Interexchange Services in New York, Florida and California . This will
enable CBS through IG2TM to provide XDSL services in these states .

No assurance can be given that the Company will be successful in developing the foregoing products or
services, or that if successfully developed, such products or services will result in revenues to the Company or be
attractive to potential acquirors of this operation.

Recent Developments

in January 1999 the Company and CBS entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with certain
purchasers named therein (the "Purchasers"), pursuant to which the Company and CBS agreed to sell up to 2,750
Units (the "Units"), each Unit consisting of(a) in the first tranche, (i) a 12% Convertible Debenture of the Company
in the principal amount of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) of the Company (the "Debentures"), convertible on
certain termsand conditions into shares of the Company's common stock, par value $0.01 per share (the "Common
Stock"), (ii) 36.3636 shares of Common Stock, (iii) warrants (the "Warrants") to acquire 83.3333 shares of Common
Stock and (iv) warrants (the "CBS Warrants") to acquire 25.4545 shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per
share, of CBS (the "CBS Shares"), and (b), in the second tranche, (i) a Debenture in the principal amount of One
Thousand Five Hundred Sixty-Three and 64/100 Dollars ($1,563 .64) and (ii) Warrants to acquire 130.3030 shares of
Common Stock and (c) in the third tranche, (i) Debentures in an aggregate principal amount of One Thousand Five
Hundred Sixty-Three and 64/100 Dollars ($1,563.64) and (ii) Wan-ants to purchase 130.3030 shares of Common
Stock. The shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Debentures are
referred to herein as the "Conversion Shares" and the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of or
otherwise pursuant to the Warrants are referred to herein as the "Warrant Shares ." The Company closed on the first
tranche of $2.75 million and issued to the Purchasers, in the aggregate, Debentures in the face amount of $2.75
million, 100,000 shares of Common Stock, Warrants to acquire 229,167 shares of Common Stock and CBS
Warrants m acquire 70,000 CBS Shares. Consummation of the second and third tranches is conditioned upon,
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the Company at any time after the date of issue (subject to certain volume limitations). Upon conversion, holders
will be entitled to receive a number of shares of Common Stock determined by dividing the outstanding principal
amount of the Debentures by a conversion price equal to the lesser of 90% of the average closing bid prices for the
Common Stock during a defined period prior to conversion, and $4.20 (but in no event less than $3.00, and subject
to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain dilutive events) . The Warrants are exercisable for shares of Common
Stock of the Company. Upon exercise, holders will be entitled to receive shares of Common Stock for an exercise
price of $4.20 per share. The Warrants will expire on January 25, 2004 . The CBS Warrants are exercisable for
shares of Common Stock of CBS. Upon exercise, holders will be entitled to receive shares of Common Stock for an
exercise price of $0.001 per share. The CBS Warrants will expire on January 25, 2004.In connection with this
transaction, the Company also entered into a Registration Rights Agreement with the Purchasers under which the
Company is required to file a registration statement on Form S-3 by March 11, 1999, subject to certain specified
exceptions, which have been met coveting resales of the Conversion Shares and the Warrant Shares (the "Resale
Registration Statement") . Under the Registration Rights Agreement, the Company may be required to make certain
payments to holders of the Debentures as partial damages if, among other things, the Resale Registration Statement
has not been declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on or before July 9, 1999, subject to
certain specified exceptions. In connection with the placement of the Debentures, the Company paid to Zanett
Securities Corporation, the placement agent for the transaction (the "Placement Agent") a fee and non-accountable
expense allowance of 6.9%, and the Company also issued to the Placement Agent, and its assignees, 50,000 shares
of the Company's Common Stock, 30,000 shares of CBS Common Stock and warrants to purchase an aggregate of
114,583 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price equal to $4.20 per share. See "Management's Discussion and
Analysis ofFinancial Condition."

item 2. Description of Property .

Major Auto owns an approximately 12,000 square foot facility consisting of office and automobile showroom
space in Long Island City, New York, as well as an approximately 40,000 square feet service facility in Long Island
City, New York, both of which it acquired in the Major Auto Acquisition. Apart from the foregoing, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries owns any real estate or plants. All other operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries are conducted from locations leased from unaffiliated third parties .

The Company leases approximately 6,800 square feet on two floors in Kew Gardens, New York . The
lease for the floor that the Company currently uses for executive offices and to house the Talkie Power Web Line
Machines consists of approximately 2,800 square feet and expires on March 31, 2001, but the Company has the
option to extend the lease for one additional five-year term. The current annual rent under such lease is $69,448.50,
but will be increased by 3 .5% on a compounded and cumulative basis each lease year. If the Company elects to
extend such lease, the base rent for the extension period will be the greater of the base rent on March 31, 2001 at the
termination ofthe original lease period or the then fair market rental of the premises .

The lease for the other floor in Kew Gardens, NewYork consists of approximately 4,000 square feet and
is occupied pursuant to the terms of a sublease between Major Fleet, as lessee, and an unrelated third party, as
lessor. The lease expires on January 14, 2000 and contains no renewal provisions . The current annual rent under
such lease is $73,992. Pursuant to an informal arrangement, (i) Computer Business Sciences pays such rent on
behalf ofMajor Fleet, (ii) a portion ofthe leased space is used by Computer Business Sciences for additional office
space and (iii) a portion of the leased space is used by Associates to operate the customer service division of its
reselling operations.

The Company believes that its current facilities are suitable and adequate for its current needs, but could
require additional facilities to accommodate any future expansion.

Computer Business Sciences (Israel) leases from an unrelated third parry approximately 1,517 square
feet of office space in Raanana, Israel. The lease expires on September 1, 1999, but Computer Business Sciences
(Israel) has an option to renew the lease for an additional two-year period. The current annual rent under such lease
is $22,620 and will increase by 6% on July 1, 1999.
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additional two-year period . The current annual rentunder such lease is $19,810 and is not subject to escalation .

Major Subaru subleases from an unrelated third party approximately 2,500 square feet of office and
automobile showroom space in Woodside, New York This lease expired on January 31, 1998 but is continuing on a
month-to-month basis. The current annual rent under such lease is $114,000 .

The Company has an interest in the following leases, under which Major Auto presently pays aggregate
annual rental payments of$423,000 :

Major Chrysler, Plymouth, Jeep Eagle leases from an unrelated third parry approximately 17,400 square
feet of office and automobile showroom and storage space in Long Island City, New York for an annual rental of
$90,000. This lease expires on October 31, 2001, but Major Chrysler, Plymouth, Jeep Eagle has the option to extend
the lease for one additional ten-year term.

Major Auto leases from an unrelated thud party approximately 2,000 square feet oflot space in Astoria,
NewYork adjacent to the train Major Dodge showroom. This lease expired on June 30, 1997 at which time the
annual rent was $33,000. Major Auto is currently renegotiating such lease and remains in possession of the premises
under an oral month-to-month lease . Major Auto does not believe that this property is material to the operation of
Major Auto.

Major Chevrolet leases from an unrelated third party, for $300,000 annually, two adjacent automobile
dealership facilities in Long Island City, New York, comprising approximately 250,000 square feet. This lease
expires on February 1, 2004, but Major Chevrolet has the option to extend the lease for up to three additional
five-year terms.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

On November 22, 1996, the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries Computer Business Sciences
and Info Systems filed an action in the New York Supreme Court, Queens County against Michael Marom
("Marom") and M.M. Telecom, Corp. ("MMT"). The Company and its subsidiaries are seeking damages of
$5,000,000 for breach of contract, libel, slander, disparagement, violation of copyright laws, fraud and
misrepresentation.

On February 4, 1997, the defendants filed a counterclaim against the Company and its subsidiaries
seeking damages of $50,000,000 of compensatory and punitive damages for breach of contract and violation of the
Lanham Act. The defendants allege in their counterclaim that the Company, Computer Business Sciences and Info
Systems misappropriated and altered software developed by Marom in order to prevent competition with the
Company's Talkie-Globe . Both parties to the litigation have filed responses to the counterclaims .

The Company, Computer Business Sciences and Info Systems have filed a Motion to Dismiss Marom
andMMT's counterclaims for failure to state a cause of action . While there was minimum opposition, Marom and
MMTdid cross move to amend their answer and counterclaims to include thirteen causes of action . The Company
has submitted opposition to this amendment attempting to show that the proposed amended counterclaims have no
merit. All papers in the action have been recently submitted and the Company is awaiting a decision from the Court.
The Company and its litigation counsel believe that the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries have a good
basis to oppose Marom's andMMT's counterclaims. The Company
has received notice of a claim by Mr . Daniel Tepper, of Los Angeles, California . Mr. Tepper had contacted the
Company claiming to have acquired, through foreclosure of a security interest, 12,000 shares of its Common Stock
originally issued to Progressive Polymerics International, Inc. ("PPYM") in a private placement. He requested that
the Company issue certificates representing the shares in question that did not beat a legend restricting their transfer,
on the basis that the shares had been held by his predecessor in interest for a length of time sufficient to allow their
unrestricted resale in accordance with Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act. The Company was advised by
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The Company's legal counsel contacted Mr, Tepper in November 1997, seeking to verify details of the
claimed foreclosure in order to verify Mr. Tepper's eligibility to take advantage of his predecessor's holding perio(
for the shares in question Mr. Tepper never responded to that inquiry . Instead on December 23, 1997, Mr . Tepper ;
acting through counsel, asserted a number of claims against the Company, including claims arising out of
transactions dating back to the 1995 acquisition by the Company of the armored conduit patents. See "Description o:
Business-Plastics and Utility Products Operations ."

TheCompany has been advised by counsel that Mr . Tepper's claims are without merit. However, one e'
the allegations made by Mr. Tepper prompted an inquiry by the Company into one of the circumstances of thz .
transaction .

On October 15, 1996 the Company, Progressive Polymerics, Inc. ("Progressive") and PPYM signed a
First Amendment to the Patent Sale and Purchase Agreement (the "First Amendment") between them dates
November 14, 1995. The First Amendment, which was dated September 30, 1996, settled a claim by the Company.
against Progressive and PPYM related to undisclosed additional development costs related to the armored condui
patents. The Company commenced litigation against Progressive and PPYM in which it sought a reduction in th-
purchase price for the armored conduit patents. The First Amendmentchanged the purchase price from $500,000
cash to the stmt 6f (i) $100,000 in cash, (ii) 160,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock and (iii) warrants u
purchase an additional 160,000 shares of the Company's Common Stock

The Company was advised by the President of PPYM, Terrence Davis, prior to signing the Firs
Amendment, that the First Amendment had been approved by a majority of the shareholders of PPYM. Howeve.
Mr . Tepper's claim included an assertion that the version of the First Amendment that PPYM's shareholde
approved failed to include a provision, added just prior to signing, giving the Company the right to repurcha ."-
80,000 of the 160,000 shares issued to PPYM.

Upon receipt of Mr. Teppers claim, the Company contacted Mr. Davis, who confirmed on January
1998 that the version of the Fast Amendment approved by PPYM's shareholders did not include the repurchas
provision. The reason given by Mr . Davis was that, as President of PPYM, he believed he had the authority to agr,
to the repurchase provision on PPYM's behalf without shareholder approval .

The Company has accordingly revived its legal action that was pending against PPYM and Progressi
at the time ofthe First Amendment, in which it sought modification ofthe purchase price due pursuant to the Pate
Sale and Purchase Agreement with PPYM.

The Company, assuming it is successful in the prosecution of this litigation . will then seek to tecot
damages from PPYM and Progressive related to the misrepresentations conceming additional developme
expenditures required in connection with the patents covered by the Patent Sale and Purchase Agreement. The
misrepresentations were the subject ofthe legal action referred to in the preceding paragraph.

Item 4. Submission ofMatters to a Vote of Security-Holders.

None .

PART II

Item 5, Market For Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.

Market Information
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high bid price was $18.50 and the low bid

price was $3.375 ; quarter-end high and low bids were (as reported by Nasdaq Trading &Market Services) which
quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission, and may not reflect actual
transactions :

Shareholders

Dividends

As ofApril 8, 1999 there were 739 holders ofrecord ofthe Company's Common Stock.

The Company has never declared dividends on any class of its securities and has no present intention to
declare any dividends on any class of its securities in the future.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

The securities described below of the Company were sold by the Company during 1998 without being
registered under the Securities Act. All such sales trade in reliance on Section 4(2) of the Securities Act were, to the
best ofthe Company's knowledge, made to investors that, either alone or together with a representative that assisted
such investor in connection with the applicable investment, had such sufficient knowledge and experience in
financial and business matters to be capable of evaluating the merits and risks connected with the applicable
investment.

I . In April 1998, the Company issued $600,000 principal amount of its 10°,'o Convertible Subordinated
Debentures due 1999 (the "Debentures") to one institutional investor and two accredited investors, for aggregate
proceeds to the Company of $600,000 .

2 . In April 1998 the Company issued 350,000 shares to Omni-Teleservices, Inc. at a per share price of
$3.28 in consideration for the acquisition oftelephony territories and equipment.

3 . In June 1998 the Company issued 10,500 shares to Filas Group, Inc. at a per share price of $3 .15 in
consideration for services rendered

4. In July 1998 the Company issued 17,000 shares to 170 Major Auto employees at a per share price of
$2.98 in consideration for services rendered

5. In July 1998 the Company issued 3,000 shares to Stephen Glicker at a per share price of $2 .98 in
consideration for services rendered

6. In August 1998 the Company issued 18,000 shares to Pinky Gems Export Co., Ltd. at a per share price of
$3.28 in consideration for consulting and telephony services and equipment.

7. In August 1998 the Company issued 150,000 shares to Robert LaRea at a per share price of $3 .28 in
consideration for services rendered

Ouarter Ended High Bid Low Bid

March 31, 1999 $18.50 $6.125
December 31, 1998 $6.5625 $3.375
September 30, 1998 $5.8125 53.625
June 30, 1998 $4.875 $4.125
March 31, 1998 $4.625 $4.0625
December 31, 1997 $5 .375 54.00
September 30, 1997 $4.375 53.50
June 30, 1997 $5.50 54.00



8. i10ber 1998 the Company issued 187,500 shares towom Investment at a per share price of $3 .19
in consideration for consulting services.

9. In October 1998 the Company issued 40,000 shares to S & LTelecom at a per share price of $3.19 in
consideration for services and equipment.

10. In October 1998 the Company issued 50,000 shares to Robert Kaszovitz at a per share price of$3.19 in
consideration for services and equipment.

11 . In October 1998 the Company issued 50,000 shares to Riki Roth at a per share price of $3 .19 in
consideration for services rendered

12 . In October 1998 the Company issued 100,000 shares to TULA Business at a per share price of$3.19 in
consideration for consulting services.

of$1,25.
13 . In December 1998 Nissiko Partners exercised wan-ants to purchase 144,814 shares at a per share price

14 . In December 1998 the Company issued 19,800 shares , in the aggregate, to an ofthe Company's
employees at a per share price of $3.48 as a year-end bonus.

Item 6. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition.

The following discussion of the operations, financial condition . liquidity and capital resources of the
Company and its subsidiaries should be read in conjunction with the Company's audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and related notes thereto included elsewhere herein .

This annual report contains, in addition to historical information . forward-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties. The Company's actual results could differ significantly from the results discussed in the
forward-looking statements.

The Company

On May 14, 1998, the Company, a holding company whose primary purpose is the regional consolidation
of the retail automotive industry, acquired, from a related party. Major Auto and related real estate for
approximately $14 million in cash and capital stock. Previously, as a holding company, Fidelity Holdings, Inc. was
involved in the acquisition and development of synergistic technological and relecotttmunications businesses and
sought to capitalize on other opportunities. The Company's Board of Directors is seeking to divest the Company of
its non-automotive operations in order to maintain the Company's focus on the regional consolidation of retail
automotive dealerships. Accordingly, all such non-automotive operations have been classified collectively as
"Discontinued Operations ."

As a result of the acquisition of Major Auto, which, together with the Company's automotive leasing
subsidiary, Major Fleet, represent the continuing operations of the Company, the Company is now one of the largest
volume retailers in New York City of new and used vehicles. Major Auto currently maintains the following
dealerships, all of which are located in Queens, New York: (i) Chevrolet; (ii) Chrysler and Plymouth; (iii) Dodge;
(iv) Jeep ; and (v) Subaru. The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase . Accordingly, the consolidated results of
operations of the Company include the results from Major Auto only since the date of acquisition on May 14, 1998 .
Such results are not necessarily indicative ofthe results for a full year.

Results ofContinuing Operations-Year Ended December 31, 1998 and Year Ended December 31, 1997

Revenues . Revenues for the year 1998 increased approximately 597,625,000 or 10,200% over the prior
year . Such increase was almost solely attributable to the earnings ofMajor Auto which were $97,587,000 for the
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May 14, 1998 (date ofacquisition) to December6998, Revenues for Major Fleet increased
approxWly $38,000 (4,1%) to $992,451 in 1998 .

Cost ofSales The cost of sales in 1998 of $84.1 million is attributable to Major Auto's operations since its
acquisition on May 14, 1998. ?here is no comparable amount for the prior year.

Gross profit. Gross profit, which showed a net increase of S13 .5 million, or 1,400%, to $14 .5 million for
1998, is almost totally related to the operations ofMajor Auto, the gross profit of which was $13.5 trillion since its
acquisition on May 14, 1998. Gross profit as a percentage ofsales for Major Auto in 1998 was 13 .8°,'0 . Managemem
of the Company believes that Major Auto's profitability during 1998 was enhanced as a result of a strike by the
employees ofGeneral Motors Corporation (the "GM strike') which took place near the time that Major Auto was
acquired by the Company. The Company believes that because Major Auto's Chevrolet dealership had a substantia .
inventory ofnew cars at that time while there was generally a shortage of such cars elsewhere, the Company was
able to realize greater gross margins than it otherwise would have in a more competitive situation. Additionally, the
Company believes that in instances where customers at its Chevrolet dealership were resistant to the price level a
that time, Major Auto was able to direct such customers to its other dealerships where prices for similar vehicles
were more competitive, thus increasing overall sales . It should also be noted iliac the acquisition of Major Auto too:
place at a time during the year where automotive vehicle sales generally rise and after the winter months when suc:
sales generally decrease . For all ofthese reasons, the results for the period May 14, 1998 (date of acquisition) n
December 31, 1998 are not necessarily indicative ofthe results for a full year or for any future period within a year .

Operating expense. In 1998, operating expenses increased approximately 510.5 million from S1 .2 millic
in 1997, almost all as a result of the acquisition ofMajor Auto on May 14, 1998 . Operating expenses attributable t
Major Auto since that date aggregated $10.5 million .

Interest expense. Interest expense, net, had a net increase of 5633,184 to $754,189 in 1998, from intere ,,
expense of $121,005 incurred in 1997 . This is primarily related to the floor plan interest of $203,998 and intere :
incurred in financing the acquisition of Major Auto amounting to $473,429 and, to a lesser extent, $69,113 1 :

interest attributable to the Company, including $43,806 of interest accrued on outstanding debentures, partial:
offset by income of583,951 and a small decrease mMajor Fleet's interest cost.

Discontinued operations. The Company experienced a loss from discontinued operations in 1998
$(979,161) compared with a profit in discontinued operations in 1997 . This is primarily the result of the Company
determination in the third quarter of 1997 to acquire the territorial and other rights and equipment of its existi :
Master Agents . Accordingly, the Company halted sales to Master Agents during the third quarter of 1997 and had
revenue from ibis source in 1998 . Additionally, the Company has been seeking the appropriate economically via'r
means to divest itself ofits non-automotive operations, including its telephony technology, IG-2 project and plasu
operations, In order to pursue such divestiture at the maximum potential valuation, the Company has incurred
costs necessary to maintain and enhance those facets of its business in order to make them marketable. Ali st.
costs are included in discontinued operations.

Results of Operations - Year Ended December 31, 1997 and Year Ended December 31, 1996

Revenues . Revenue from continuing operations for the year 1997, all attributable to Major Fleet,
$953,033, less than a $2,000 increase from the prior year's revenue of 5951,261 . Inasmuch as there were no ot .
continuing operations and there are no costs of sales related to leasing income, the amounts and the change
revenue is equal to the gross profit for the respectiveperiods.

Operating expense. In 1997, operating expenses from continuing operations had a net increase
approximately $488,000 from $727,000 in 1996 to approximately Si .2 million. Approximately $614,000 of
increase was attributable to a full year's operations ofMajor Fleet which was acquired in 1996, offset by a decre
in the Company's operating expense of approximately $126,000 .

Interest expense. Interest expense increased by 592:234 to $121,005 in 1997 compared with rote
expense of $28,771 incurred in 1996. This increase is primarily related to the operations of Major Fleet which
an increase of$102,071 offset by a decrease in Fidelity Holdings, interest expense of$9,837 .
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Priman y as a result of the acquisition of Major Autdte Company's total assets increased to
approximately $49.4 million at December 31, 1998 from approximately $9.4 million at December 31, 1997. For the
same reason, stockholders' equity increased to approximately $16.5 million from $6.5 million at December 31,
1997 . Included in the Company's current assets is $7,074,164 of net assets held for sale. This amount represents the
total of assets less related liabilities from the Company's former Technology and Plastics Divisions, the operations
of which the Company is seeking to divest in an economically productive manner. The acquisition of Major Auto
was financed through a $7.5 million facility from Falcon. See "Description of Business - Automotive Division."

The Company's primary source ofliquidity for the year ended December 31, 1998 was $2,259,858 from its
net income of $528,140, as adjusted by non-cash charges which aggregated $1,731,718 . This net increase in cash
from income was increased by the effect of.

(a)

	

a net decrease in assets of $735,161, primarily from the decreases in Major Auto's
inventory since its acquisition on May 14, 1998 of 51,698,176 and other assets of $414,668,
partially offset by an increase in Major Auto's accounts receivable of $767,119 and Major Fleet's
increase in financing leases of$622,294 ; and

(a)

	

the net decrease in liabilities of $(1,930,347) is primarily related to a decrease in Major
Auto's floor plan liabilities of $(2,892,917) partially offset by an increase in due to affiliates of
$802,859 and a net increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses of$198,648 .

The decrease in inventories cited in (a) above, is primarily due to the relatively high levels of inventory
being maintained by Major Auto at the time of its acquisition by the Company which was immediately prior to the
GM strike. As discussed above under "Gross profit." this inventory was subsequently sold and inventory was
allowed to return to more normal levels .

The Company's investing activities had a net use of cash of $(1,080,126). The most significant
component ofthis use was the acquisition ofMajor Auto, which used cash, net of cash acquired in the transaction of
$(1,018,432) . Additionally, cash of $780,671 was provided by financing activities: (i) the proceeds of $600,000
from the sale of convertible, subordinated debentures to a limited number of accredited investors ; (ii) net proceeds
from long-term debt of $429,599 ; and (iii) an increase in lines of credit of $300,000, partially offset an increase in
due to shareholders of5(689,699) and a decrease in notes payable of $(109,080) .

The foregoing activities, i.e . operating, investing and financing, resulted in a net cash increase of
$759,943 for the year ended December 31, 1998 .

In January 1999, the Company and its subsidiary CBS entered into a financing transaction through a
Securities Purchase Agreement . This transaction consists of an aggregate of $11,350,000 in 12% convertible
debentures to be drawn-in three crutches. The funding for each of the tranches is subject to, among other things, the
Company and CBS meeting certain milestones. The first tranche, representing $2,750,000 in gross proceeds, was
closed. The Company issued to the purchasers, in the aggregate, debentures for $2.75 million, 100,000 shares of the
Company's common stock, warrants to acquire 229,167 shares of the Company's common stock and warrants to
acquire 70,000 shares of CBS' common stock, as well as certain placement fees and expenses . (See "Recent
Developments" and Note 18 ofNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional details .)

The Company believes that the cash generated from existing operations, together with existing cash,
available credit from its current lenders, including banks and floor planning, will be sufficient to fmance its current
operations, planned expansion and internal growth for at least the next twenty-four months.

Year 2000 Issue

The Year 2000 issue arises because many computerized systems use two digits rather than four to identify a
year. Date sensitive systems may recognize the year 2000 as 1900 or some other date, resulting in errors when
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g year 2000 dates are processed. In addition, si ,~,,,y,~ p~roblems may arise in some systems that use
certain da

	

1999 to represent something other than a d~'he effects of the Year 2000 issue may be
experienced,fore, on or after January 1, 2000, and, if not addessed, the impact on operations and financial
reporting may range from minor errors to significant systems failures which could affect an entity's ability to
conduct normal business operations .

The Company recognizes the need to ensure its operations will not be adversely impacted by the inability
of the Company's systems to process data having dates which could be affected by the Year 2000 issue. The
Company is currently addressing the risk with respect to the availability and integrity of its financial systems and
operating systems. While the Company believes its planning efforts are adequate to address the Year 2000 concerns,
there can be no assurance that the systems ofother companies, including suppliers, customers and others on which
the Company's operations rely are, or will be made, compliant on a timely basis and will not have a material effect
on the Company. However, . all such significant systems are being evaluated for compliance . The cost of the
Company's Year 2000 compliance effort is not expected to be material to the Company's results of operations or
financial position.

Item 7. Financial Statements

The Financial Statements are filed as a part of this Annual Report as pages F-1 through F-40
following Part IV.

Item 8. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure .

(a) Previous independent accountants

(i) On February 5, 1999, due Company dismissed Peter C. Cosmas Co., CPAs as its independent
accountants.

(ii) The reports ofPeter C. Cosmas Co., CPAs on the consolidated financial statements for the past two
fiscal years contained no adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion and were not qualified or modified as to
uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principle.

(iii) The Company's Audit Committee and Board of Directors participated in and approved the decision
to change independent accountants .

(iv) In connection with its audits for the two most recent fiscal years and through February 5, 1999,
there have been no disagreements with Peter C. Cosmas Co ., CPAs on any [natter of accounting principles or
practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements ifnot resolved to the
satisfaction of Peter C. Cosmas Co., CPAs would have caused them to make reference thereto in their report on the
consolidated financial statements for such years.

(v) During the two most recent fiscal years and through February 5, 1999, there have been no reportable
events (as defined in Regulation S-K Item 304(a)(1)(v)),

(vi) Peter C. Cosmas Co., CPAs furnished the Company with a letter addressed to the SEC stating that it
agreed with the above statements .

(b) Newindependent accountants

(i) The Company engaged BDO Seidman LLP as its new independent accountants as ofFebruary 5, 1999 .
During the two most recent fiscal years and through February 5, 1999, the Company has not consulted with BDO
Seidman LLP on items which (1) were or should have been subject to SAS 50 or (2) concerned the subject matter of



a disagreement4portable event with the former auditor, (as desod in Regulation S-K Item 304(a)(2). The
Company authorized Peter C . Cosmas Co., CPAs to respond to any and all inquiries of the successor accountant.



PART III

Item 9. Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters and Control Persons; Compliance With Section 16(a) of the
Exchange Act.

The following is a brief description of the professional experience and background of the directors and
executive officers of the Company:

Bruce Bendell. Mr. Bendell has served as the Company's Chairman of the Board since its incorporation in
November 1995, as its ChiefExecutive Officer since May 1998 and as President from May 14, 1998 to December
1998 . Mr. Bendell has served as the President and a director ofMajor Chevrolet and its affiliates since December
1985 .

DoronCohen. Mr . Cohen has served as the President, Treasurer and a director of the Company since its
incorporation in November 1995, except for the period May 14, 1998 through December 18, 1998 during which
period Bruce Bendell served as President of the Company. Mr. Cohen has also served as the president ofthe
Company's subsidiary, CBS since 1995 . From 1991 to 1995, Mr. Cohen served as President and Chief Executive
Officer of Holtman Enterprises, a construction and interior design company.

David Edelstein. Mr. Edelstein has served as a director ofthe Company since May 1998 . Mr . Edelstein has been
in the real estate development business since 1979 . Currently he is the Managing Member of Sutton East Associates
LLC, a real estate development limited liability company and is involved in several sizable real estate projects in
New York and Florida.

Richard L. Feinstein. Mr . Feinstein has served as the Company's ChiefFinancial Officer since December 1997 .
From 1994 to December 1997, Mr. Feinstein maintained his own financial and management consulting practice.
From 1989 to 1994, Mr. Feinstein served as Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of Employee Benefit
Services, Inc. From 1978 to 1989, Mr. Feinstein was a parmer in KPMG Peat Marwick and a predecessor firm .

James Wallick. Mr. Wallick has served as a director ofthe Company since May 1998 . Mr. Wallick has been in the
automotive dealership and financing business since 1971 . He is currently president ofMLC Leasing and Apple
Chevrolet and vice president and a director ofTecFm Corp.

Jeffrey Weiner. Mr. Weiner has served as a director ofthe Company since May 1998 . Mr . Weiner is a certified
public accountant and has been with the accounting firm of Marcum & Kliegman LLP, where he is currently
Managing Partner, since 1981 .

The following persons, although not executive officers ofthe Company, are regarded by management as
key personnel:

Zvi Barak. Mr. Barak, age 46, has served as the Director of Research and Development of the Company's
Computer Telephony and Telecommunications division since April, 1996 . From 1992 to August 1996, Mr. Barak
served as President of Info Systems.

The names, ages
follows:

and principal occupations of the Directors and Executive Officers of the Company are as

Name
Truce

Age Position. Term In OMce
Bendell 44 Chairman of the Board and ChiefExecutive Officer

Doron Cohen 42 President, Treasurer and a Director
David Edelstein 45 Director
RichardL. Feinstein 55 Chief Financial Officer
James Wallick 48 Director
Jeffrey Weiner 41 Director



Moise Benedid. Mr . Benedid, age 49, has served as the P"dent of the Company's Canadian subsidiary
Into Systems since August 1996. From November 1994 through July 1996 . Mr. Benedid served as Vice President in
charge ofmarketing and technical support for TelePower International, Inc., where he was responsible for the sale in
Canada of franchises based on the "Talkie" technology . From December 1992 to November 1994, Mr. Benedid
served as President ofPowerpoint Microsystems, Inc., and from August 1989 to December 1992, he served as
President of Computer Junction, a Toronto-based computer retail store.

Harold Bendell. Mr Bendell, age 51, has served as served as a senior executive of Major Auto since
December 1985 . He, together with his brother, Bruce Bendell, is responsible for the day to day operations ofMajor
Auto.

Bruce Hall. Mr. Hall, age 53, has served as Vice President ofOperations of the Company since March
1998 . From November 1997 to March 1998, Mr. Hall was a consultant to the Company. For the thirty years prior
to that time, he was with Bell Atlantic (NYNEX), most recently as their Director of Operations for the Borough of
Queens, NewYork.

Kimberly R Peacock. Ms . Peacock, age 33, serves as president of the Company's Internet technology
subsidiary, IG27M, Inc. Ms. Peacock has been associated with the Company in various technical capacities since
February 1997, Prior to such time she worked as an independent technical consultant to several Fortune 500
companies and helped found two Internet service providers.

John Pinciaro . Mr. Pinciaro, age 49, serves as Vice-President of the Company's subsidiary Premo-Plant
since January 1, 1997 and will serve as the President of the subsidiary of the Company formed in October 1997 to
exploit the Company's spa fixture technology . Mr. Pinciaro has served as the Chief Executive Officer of
ThermoSpas, Inc., a manufacturer and distributor ofspas, since it inception in 1983 .

Ronald K Premo. Mr. Premo, age 60, has served as the President of the Company's subsidiary
Premo-Plant since January 1997 . In 1993, Mr . Premo founded and has since operated R.K. Premo & Associates, a
manufacturer's representative agency for the plastics industry. From 1987 to 1993, Mr. Premo was a Manufacturer's
Representative for R.W . Mitscher, Inc.

The term of office of each person elected as a Director will continue until the Company's next Annual
Meeting ofShareholders or until his successor has been elected .

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the Company's officers and directors, and
persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of the Company's equity securities, to file reports of
ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). Officers, directors
and greater than ten percent stockholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish the Company with copies of all
Section 16(a) forms they file.

Based solely on its review ofthe copies of such forms received by it, or written representations from certain
reporting persons, the Company believes that during Fiscal 1998, its officers, directors, and greater than ten-percent
beneficial owners have complied with all applicable Section 16(a) filing requirements with the exception of the
following; one late filing on Form 3 was made by each of Bruce Bendell, Doren Cohen, Richard Feinstein, David
Edelstein, James Wallick and Jeffrey Weiner, and one late filing on Form 4 with respect to two transactions was
made by Jeffrey Weiner,

Item 10 . Executive Compensation.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information for each ofthe Company's fiscal years ended December 31, 1998
and 1997 concerning compensation of (i) all individuals serving as the Company's Chief Executive Officer during



the fiscal yeOled December 31, 1998 and (ii) each other exec officer ofthe Company whose total annual
salary and bonus equaled or exceeded $100,000 in the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998 :

(1) Salary in 1998 includes $150,000 from the Company (subsequently paid through the issuance of 39,024 shares
of the Company's Common Stock) . Mr. Cohen waived his salary from the Company for the years ended December
31, 1997 . This salary will not accrue. Mr. Cohen was paid a salary in 1997 of $56,500 from Computer Business
Sciences .

(2)

	

Salary in 1998 includes $150,000 from the Company (subsequently paid through the issuance of 39,024 shares
of the Company's Common Stock) . Mr . Bendel received $81,250 in salary and $127,437 in bonus from Major Auto
since its acquisition on May 14, 1998 . Mr. Bendell waived his consultant's fee from the Company for the years
ended December 31, 1997 and 1996 . This fee will not accrue . Mr . Bendell received $17,280 and $28,080 as
management fees from Major Fleet for management services performed in 1998 and 1997, respectively .

(3)

	

1998 amounts represent a full year of salary and automobile allowance of $500 per month for Mr. Hall who
commencedemployment in December 1997.

(4)

	

Mr. Feinstein was a part time consultant in 1997 and commenced full time employment in January 1998 . Other
Annual amount represents an automobile allowance of$527 per month since July 1998.

(5)

	

Includes $5,000 for life and disability insurance premiums and $18.000 annual automobile allowance.

Option Grants Table

No individual grants of stock options were made during the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998 to any of the
executive officers ofthe Company named in the Summary Compensation Table.

Aggregated Option Exercises and Fiscal Year-End Option Value Table

No stock options were exercised during the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997 by any of the executive
officers named in the Summary Compensation Table. The value of unexercised options held by any such persons as
of December 31, 1998 was as follows for Bruce Bendell (the only such option holder):

Total number ofshares underlying unexercised options

	

50,000
Exercisable options

	

50,000
Unexercisable options

	

-0-
Value of in-the-money options

	

$162,500(1)

Annual Compensation

Other Other
Name and Principal Position Year Salary($) Bonus($) ($)Amoral

All

Compensation($)

DoronCohen(1) 1998 246,500 0 0 0
President and Treasurer 1997 206,500 0 0 0

Bruce Bendell(2) 1998 248,530 127,437 0 0
Chairman and ChiefExecutive 1997 178,080 0 0 0
Officer

Bruce Hall(3) 1998 135,000 0 6,000 0
1997 11,250 0 500 0

Richard Femstem(4) 1998 125,000 0 3,166 0
1997 35,000 0 0 0

Zvi Barak(5) 1998 150,000 0 23,000 0
Director ofResearch and Development 1997 150,000 0 23,000 0



Compensation of Directors

(1) Represents warrants to acquire 50,000 shares of Common Stock issued to Mr. Bendell on October 2, 1996 as a
signing bonus under a management agreement with the Company to manage the operations ofMajor Fleet.

Directors of the Company were not compensated for their services in 1998 . The Company reimburses
directors for their expenses ofattending meetings of the Board ofDirectors .

As of November 7, 1995, the Company's date of incorporation, the Company entered into a Consulting
Agreement with Brace Bendell, its Chairman, pursuant to which he serves as a business, management and financial
consultant to the Company for a period ending on December 31, 1998, subject to successive one-year extensions at
the option ofthe Company. Mr. Bendell receives an annual consulting fee as determined by the Company's Board of
Directors from time to time, but not less than $150,000 . The consulting fee is subject to a yearly cost-of-living
adjustment and may also be retroactively increased based upon the Company's profits per outstanding share of
Common Stock for the applicable year. The available percentage increase in consulting fee as a result of profits
ranges from 5% for break-even results to 150% for earnings per share exceeding S1 .00 per share. Mr . Bendell is also
entitled to a bonus in such amounts and at such times as determined by the Company's Board of Directors. In
addition, the agreement provides that Mr. Bendell is entitled to various fringe benefits and is entitled to participate in
any incentive, stock option, deferred compensation or pension plans established by the Company's Board of
Directors. Mr. Bendell has agreed not to disclose confidential information relating to the Company and has agreed
not to compete with, or solicit employees or customers of, the Company during specified periods following the
breach or termination of his agreement to serve as a consultant to the Company. Mr . Bendell has been serving at will
since the expiration of the agreement pursuant to the same terms. Mr Bendell's consulting fee in 1998 includes
$150,000 subsequently paid through the issuance of 39,024 shares of the Company's Common Stock. See
"Executive Compensation."

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment, and Change in Control Arrangements

Doron Cohen . As of November 7, 1995, the Company's date of incorporation, the Company entered into an
Employment Agreement with Doron Cohen, pursuant to which he serves as the Company's President, Chief
Executive Officer and Treasurer for a period ending on December 31, 1998, subject to successive one-year
extensions at the option of the Company. Mr . Cohen receives an annual base salary as determined by the
Company's Board of Directors from time to time, but not less than $150,000 . The annual salary is subject to a yearly
cost-of-living adjustment and may also be retroactively increased based upon the Company's profits per outstanding
share of Common Stock for the applicable year. The available percentage increase in salary as a result of profits
ranges from 5% for break-even results to 150% for earnings per share in excess of $1.00 per share. Mr. Cohen is
also entitled to a bonus in such amounts and at such times as determined by the Company's Board of Directors . In
addition, the agreement provides that Mr. Cohen is entitled to various fringe benefits under the agreement and is
entitled to participate in any incentive, stock option, deferred compensation or pension plans established by the
Company's Board of Directors. Mr . Cohen has agreed not to disclose confidential information relating to the
Company and has agreed not to compete with, or solicit employees or customers of, the Company during specified
periods following discontinuance of his employment for any reason other than a termination for cause. Mr. Cohen
has been serving at will since the expiration of the agreement pursuant to the same terms. Mr . Cohen's salary in
1998 includes $150,000 subsequently paid through the issuance of 39,024 shares of the Company's Common Stock.
See "Executive Compensation ."

Zvi Barak As of April 18, 1996, the Company entered into an Employment Agreement with Zvi Barak, pursuant
to which he serves as the Company's Director of Research & Development for a period ending on April 30, 2001,
subject to a one-year extension at the option of the Company. Mr . Barak receives an annual base salary as
determined by the Company's Board ofDirectors from time to time, but not less than $150,000. The annual salary is
subject to a yearly cost-of-living adjustment and may also be retroactively increased based upon the Company's
profits per outstanding share of Common Stock for the applicable year . The available percentage increase in salary
as a result of profits ranges from 5% for break-even results to 150% for earnings per share in excess of $1.00 per



share. 1Vfl!6arak is also entitled to a bonus in such amountsat such times as determined by the Company's
Board of Directors and to an annual royalty incentive in an amount equal to 2% of gross revenues received from
sales ofnewproducts developed under his direction In addition, the agreement provides that Mr. Barak is entitled to
various fringe benefits under the agreement, including an annual allowance of $5,000 for disability insurance and
$18,000 for the purchase or lease of an automobile, and is entitled to participate in any incentive, stock option,
deferred compensation or pension plans established by the Company's Board of Directors. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Company established a research and development facility in Israel and, in the event that Mr . Barak
elects to establish residence outside of Israel, the Company has agreed to establish another research and
development facility in the location where Mr . Barak establishes his residence. The Company spent approximately
$25,000 to open the research and development facility in Israel and spends approximately $27,600 per month to
operate such facility . Mr. Barak is obligated to pay the expenses of relocating himself to Israel and to any
subsequent residence. Mr . Barak has agreed not to disclose confidential information relating to the Company's
business and has agreed not to compete with, or solicit employees or customers of, the Company during specified
periods ifhe resigns, is terminated for cause or if his employment agreement expires without being renewed.

Indemnification ofDirectors and Officers

Under the Nevada General Corporation Law, as amended, a director, officer, employee or agent of a
Nevada corporation may be entitled to indemnification by the corporation under certain circumstances against
expenses, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement of claims brought against them by a third person or by or
in right of the corporation . . .

The Company is obligated under its Articles of Incorporation to indemnify any of its present or former
directors who served at the Company's request as a director, officer or member of another organization against
expenses, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement of claims brought against them by a third person or by or
in right of the corporation if such director acted in good faith or in a manner such director reasonably believed to be
in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the Company and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, if
such director had no reason to believe his or her conduct was unlawful. However with respect to any action by or in
the right of the Company, the Articles of Incorporation prohibit indemnification in respect of any claim, issue or
matter as to which such director is adjudged liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance is his or her
duties to the Company, unless otherwise ordered by the relevant court. The Company's Articles ofIncorporation also
permit it to indemnify other persons except against gross negligence or willful misconduct.

The Company is obligated under its bylaws to indemnify its directors, officers and other persons who have
acted as representatives ofthe Company at its request to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law as in effect
from time to time, except for costs, expenses orpayments in relation to any matter as to which such officer, director
or representative is finally adjudged derelict in the performance ofhis or her duties, unless the Company has
received an opinion from independent counsel that such person was not so derelict.

The Company's indemnification obligations are broad enough to permit indemnification with respect tc
liabilities arising under the Securities Act. Insofar as the Company may otherwise be permitted to indemnify its
directors, officers and controlling persons against liabilities arising under the Securities Act or otherwise, the
Company has been advised that in the opinion of the Commission such indemnification is against public policy as
expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable.

The Nevada General Corporation Law, as amended, also permits a corporation to limit the personal liabilir
of its officers and directors for monetary damages resulting from a breach of their fiduciary duty to the corporation
and its stockholders . The Company's Articles ofIncorporation limit director liability to the maximum extent
permitted by The Nevada General Corporation Law, which presently permits limitation of director liability except
(i) for a director's acts or omissions that involve intentional misconduct, fraud or a knowing violation of law and (ii)
for a director's willful or grossly negligent violation of a Nevada statutory provision that imposes personal liability
on directors for improper distributions to stockholders. As a result of the inclusion in the Company's Articles of
Incorporation of this provision, the Company's stockholders may be unable to recover monetary damages against
directors as a result of their breach oftheir fiduciary duty to the Company and its stockholders. This provision does



not, however, acct the availability of equitable remedies, such as in

	

tctions or rescission based upon a breach of
fiduciary duty by a director.

The Company maintains a $5 million liability insurance policy for the benefit of its officers and directors .

Item 11 . Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following tables sets forth information with respect to the beneficial ownership of each class of the
Company's securities as of April 8, 1999, respectively, by () each director of the Company, (ii) each executive
officer of the Company, (iii) all directors and executive officers of the Company as a group and (iv) each person
known to the Company to ownmore than 5% of any class of it securities :

1996 Major Series of

	

1997 Major Series of
Convertible Preferred

	

Convertible Preferred
Common Stock

	

Stock(2)

	

Stock(3)
Name and Address(9)

	

Number

	

Percent

	

Number

	

Percent

	

Number

	

Percent

Bruce Bendell

	

4,689,034(4)

	

44.14%

	

125,000(5)

	

50%

	

900,000(5)

	

100.0%
Doron Cohen

	

2,539,024 (6)

	

29.8%
David Edelstein

	

400
Richard L. Feinstein

	

20,000
James Wallick

	

0
Jeffrey Weiner

	

2,200(8)
All directors and execu-
tive officers as a group

	

7,250,658(7)

	

68.3%

*Represents less than 1% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock.

(1) Based on 8,522,121 shares of Common Stock outstanding on April 8, 1999 .

(2) Based on 250,000 shares of the 1996-Major Series ofConvertible Preferred Stock outstanding on December 31,
1998 .

(3) Based on 900,000 shares of the 1997-Major Series ofConvertible Preferred Stock outstanding on December 31,
1998 .

(4) Includes (i) 10 shares of Common Stock owned by Bruce Bendell's wife and the following shares of Common
Stock which Bruce Bendell has the right to acquire within 60 days : (a) 250,000 shares of Common Stock, the
minimum number of shares of Common Stock into which the 125,000 shares of the 1996-MAJOR Series of
Convertible Preferred Stock beneficially owned by Bruce Bendelll are convertible, (b) 50,000 shares of
Common Stock which Bruce Bendell has the right to acquire upon the exercise of warrants and (c) 1,800,000
shares of Common Stock, the minimum number of shares of Common Stock into which the 900,000 shares of
the 1997-Major Series of Convertible Preferred Stock beneficially owned by Bruce Bendel! are convertible.
Does not reflect a proxy giving Mr. Bendell the sole right to vote an additional 500,000 shares of Common
Stock issued pursuant to the MOU for a period of two years. See "Description of Business Computer Telephony
and Telecommunications Division-Talkie-Restructuring of Nissko Arrangements ." Does not reflect Mr. Cohen's
agreement to give Bruce Bendell a proxy to vote 750,000 of Mr . Cohens shares during the two-year period
commencing on October 14, 1997.

(5) All of such shares of the 1996-Major Series and 1997-Major Series of Convertible Preferred Stock are held in a
trust created under the law of Gibraltar . Bruce Bendell is the principal beneficiary ofsuch trust .



(6)

	

Does notOtMr. Cohen's agreement to give Bruce Bendellexy to vote 750,000 of Mr . Cohen's shares
during the two-year period commencing on October 14, 1997.

(7) Includes (i) 2,210 shares of Common Stock owned by immediate family members of directors and executive
officers as a group and (ii) 2,100,000 shares of Common Stock that the directors and executive officers as a
group have the right to acquire within 60 days .

(8) Includes 2,000 shares ownedby Mr. Weiner's wife .

(9) The address for eachbeneficial owner is c/o Fidelity Holdings, Inc., 80-02 Kew Gardens Rd, Suite 5000, Kew
Gardens, NY 11415.

Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

See "Executive Compensation-Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment, and Change in
Control Arrangements" for a description of (i) the Employment Agreement between the Company and Doron
Cohen, its President, Treasurer and one of its directors, and (ii) the Employment Agreement between the Company
and Zvi Barak, its Director of Research and Development. In addition, in January 1999, Mr . Cohen was granted
piggyback registration rights with respect to 39,024 shares of Company common stock issued to him as
compensation for fiscal 1998. See "Executive Compensation"

See "Executive Compensation-Compensation of Directors" for a description of the Consulting Agreement
between the Company and Bruce Bendell, its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. In addition, in January 1999,
Mr . Bendell was granted piggyback registration rights with respect to 39,024 shares of Company common stock
issued to him as compensation for fiscal 1998 . See "Executive Compensation."

In January 1999, Richard Feinstein, the Company's Chief Financial Officer, was granted standard piggyback
registration rights with respect to 20,000 shares ofCompany common stock issued to him as a bonus for fiscal 1999 .

Following the acquisition of Major Auto by the Company, Brace and Harold Bendell continue to be
responsible for senior-level management of the dealerships. The Bendell brothers and the Company believe that this
continuity of senior management was important in obtaining the manufacturers' consents to the transfer of the
dealerships to the Company. The Bendell brothers' management control has been accomplished through (i) their
ownership of 100 shares of the Company's 1997A-MAJORAUTOMOTIVE GROUP Series of Preferred Stock (of
which shares Bruce Bendell has a proxy to vote the 50 shares of the 1997A-MAJOR AUTOMOTIVE GROUP
Series of Preferred Stock owned by Harold Bendell for a seven-year period which commenced on January 7, 1998)
which carries voting tights allowing them to elect a majority of the Board of Directors of Major Auto, and through
(ii) a related management agreement, discussed immediately below, See "Description of Securities-Preferred Stock-
I 997A-MAJOR AUTOMOTIVE GROUP Series of Preferred Stock" below.

To further facilitate obtaining the required manufacturers' consents, the Bendells and the Company have
entered into a management agreement pursuant to which the Bendells will have the exclusive right and obligation to
manage the automobile dealerships acquired by the Company in connection with the Major Auto Acquisition and
any additional automobile dealerships that the Company may acquire in the future. The management agreement is
for a term ending on December 31, 2002 and may not be earlier terminated unilaterally by the Company. If the
Company continues to own automobile dealerships at the end of the term, the management agreement may be
unilaterally extended by the Bendell brothers in order m maintain the level of management control that will avoid
the need to seek further, manufacturer consents. Should either of the Bendell brothers cease managing the
dealerships, the management agreement provides that ownership of his 1997A-MAJOR AUTOMOTIVE GROUP
Series of Preferred Stock shares and his management rights under the management agreement will be automatically
transferred to the other, and should both brothers cease managing the dealerships for any reason, the shares and
management rights will be automatically transferred to a successor manager designated in a successor addendum to
each dealership agreement or, failing such designation, m a successor manager designated by the Company (subject
to approval by the applicable manufacturers) . As noted in the prior paragraph, Bruce and Harold Bendell will retain
the right to elect a majority of the directors of Major Auto (and possibly other affiliates in the future) in order to
facilitate obtaining the required manufacturers' consents. Should the Boards of Directors of Major Auto and the



Company disa~as to a particular course of action, Major Auto

	

nonetheless be able to take the action in
question, ezcdpnat the management agreement prohibits certa

	

ctions without the prior approval by the
Company's Board ofDirectors. Those actions are (i) disposing of any of the Major Auto dealerships, (ii) acquiring
new dealerships, and (iii) the Company incurring liability for Major Auto indebtedness . Any compensation that
Bruce Bendell is entitled to receive under the management agreement is in addition to any other compensation that
he is entitled to receive as Chairman and ChiefExecutive Officer of the Company.

As part of the Major Auto Acquisition, Major Auto acquired two related real estate components from Bruce
and Harold Bendell for a purchase price of $3 million. See "Automotive Division" for a description of the Major
Auto Acquisition.

The Company has entered into a MOU with the Agent, the Nissko Principals, and with the remaining limited
partner of Nissko, Robert L. Rimberg. Mr. Rimberg performs legal services on behalf of the Company. The MOU
looks toward restructuring the Nissko arrangements as described above under "Description of Business-Computer
Telephony and Telecornmumcatious Division-Talkie-Restructuring ofNissko Arrangements ."

The Company has made a loan to its President, Doran Cohen, in the principal amount of $140,000, bearing
interest at 5.77°/" per annum, uncompounded The loan is evidenced by a promissory note dated December 31, 1996 .
The promissory note provides that the full principal amount of, and all accrued interest on, the loan is due and
payable in a single installment on December 31, 1999.

Bruce Bendell, and Major Chevrolet, Major Dodge and Major Chrysler Plymouth Jeep Eagle, wholly-owned
by Major Auto, have guaranteed the obligations of Major Fleet under a 55,000.000 line of credit with Marine
Midland Bank. In addition, Bruce Bendell and Major Fleet have guaranteed the obligations of Major Auto's
subsidiaries under certain of their agreements with various financial institutions pursuant to which such subsidiaries
sell their vehicle finance contracts and leases. Major Fleet has pledged its assets to such financial institutions to
secure its guarantee . In addition, such subsidiaries have cross-guaranteed and cross-collatemlized their respective
agreements with such financial institutions. See "Description of Business:automotive Sales Division-Dealership
Operations-Vehicle Financing" and "-Leasing Division" for a description of certain transactions between Major
Auto and Major Fleet.

Major Subaru subleases from an unrelated third party approximately 2,500 square feet of office and automobile
showroom space in Woodside, New York . This lease expired on January 31, 1998 and contains no renewal
provisions. The property is currently being leased on a month-to-month basis. The annual rent under such lease was
$69,457.56. Pursuant to an informal arrangement between Major Subaru and Major Fleet. Major Fleet occupies the
space and pays the rental payments.

On October 1, 1998 the Company entered into a consulting agreement with Clemont Investments Ltd., a
consulting firm which provides business advisory services regarding the establishment in Europe of branches or
operations of U.S. based companies. In consideration for its services, Clemont will receive, over a three to five year
period (i) 54,000 shares of Company common stock in connection with the performance of certain consulting
services, (ii) 79,500 shares of Company common stock in connection with providing the Company with certain
business contacts, (iii) 54,000 shares of Company common stock in connection with compliance with certain
restrictive covenants contained in the Consulting Agreement (collectively, the "Clemont Shares"). The Company has
the right to repurchase the Clemont Shares under certain circumstances at a price of up to $4.00 per share. In
connection with the Consulting Agreement, Clemont entered into a put agreement with Bruce Bendell, Chairman
and CEO of the Company on October 1, 1998 pursuant to which Mi . Bendell agreed, under certain conditions, to
purchase the Clemont Shares from Clemont during such period, less any Clemont Shares repurchased by the
Company.

The Company has retained the accounting fur ofMarcum &Kliegman LLP to provide certain accounting and
tax services for the Company and its subsidiary Major Fleet. In 1998, the Company paid Marcum & Kliegman LLP
$48,000 for its services . Mr. Weiner, a director of the Company, is Managing Partner of Marcum & Kliegman LLP.
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Exhibit
Number Descrintion

	

Page

3 .1* Articles of Incorporation of Fidelity Holdings, Inc., ("Company') incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 ofCompany's Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, as
amended, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

3 .2* Articles of Incorporation of Computer Business Sciences, Inc., incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 ofCompany's Registration Statement on Forts 10-SB, as
amended, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

3 .3* Articles of Incorporation of 786710 (Ontario) Limited. incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.3 of Company's Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

3 .4* Articles ofIncorporation of Premo-Plast, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.4 of Company's Registration Statement on Form 10-SB. as amended, filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7. 1997 . N/A

3.5* Articles of Incorporation of C.B .S . Computer Business Sciences Ltd. . incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.5 ofCompany's Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, as
amended, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997, N/A

3 .6* Articles of Incorporation ofMajor Fleet & Leasing Corp ., incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.6 ofCompany's Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997 . NA

3.7* Articles of Incorporation ofReynard Service Bureau . Inc., incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.7 of Company's Registration Statement on Form l0-SB. as amended,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

3 .8* Articles ofIncorporation ofMajor Acceptance Corp . . incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.8 of Company's Registration Statement on Form l0-SB, as amended, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

3.9* By-Laws ofthe Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 .9 ofCompany's
Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

4.1 * Certificate ofDesignation for the Company's 1996-MAJOR Series of Convertible
Preferred Stock, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Company's Registration
Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

4.1(i)** Form of Amended and Restated Certificate ofDesignation for the Company's
1996-MAJOR Series ofConvertible Preferred Stock. N/A



4.2* "tit Agreement for Nissko Warrants, incorporateoeference to Exhibit 4.2 of
Company's Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

4.3* Warrant Agreement for Major Fleet Waaams, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.3 ofCompany's Registration Statement an Form 10-SB. as amended filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission onMarch 7, 1997 . NIA

4.3(1)** Amended and Restated Warrant Agreement, dated October 11, 1997 between the
Company, Bruce Bendell and Harold Beadell, NIA

4.4* Warrant Agreement for Progressive Poiymerics International, Inc. Warrants,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 ofCompany's Registration Statement on
Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
March 7, 1997 . NIA

4 .5** Form of Certificate of Designation forthe Company's 1997A-Major Automotive
Group Series of Preferred Stock. N/A

4,6** Form of Certificate ofDesignation for the Company's 1997,Major Series of
Convertible Preferred Stock. N/A

4.7** Form ofRegistration Rights Agreement between the Company and Bruce Bendell. N/A

4.3** Stock Pledge and Security Agreement, dated March 26 . 1996, between Doron
Cohen, Bruce Bendell, Avraham Nissaman, Yossi Koren. Sam Livian and Robert
Rimberg. NBA

4.9** Form ofRegistration Rights Agreement between the Company, Castle Trust and
Management Services Limited and Bruce Bendell. N/A

4 .10** Foam ofthe Company's 10% Convertible Subordinated Debenture due 1999 . N/A

4.11**** Certificate of Designation for the Company's 1997-bLA10R series ofConvertible
Preferred Stock. N/A

4 .11****** Form of Warrant N/A

4 .12****** Form of CBS Warrant N/A

4 .13****** Form of Debenture NIA

10.1* Employment Agreement, dated November 7, 1995 . between the Company and
Down Cohen, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 .1 of Company's Registration
Statement on Form 10-SB. as amended, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

10.1(1)** Amendment No. 1 to EmploymentAgreement, dated as of November 7, 1995
between the Company and Doron Cohen. NIA

10.2* Consulting Agreement, dated November 7, 1995, between the Company and Bruce
Bendell, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 .2 ofCompany's Registration
Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A



10.2(i)**" AmendmentNo . t to Consulting Agreemen
B4Ol.

as of November 7, 1995
between Fidelity Holdings, Inc. and Bruce N/A

10 .3 * Agreement for Purchase ofPatents, dated November 14, 1995, between the
Company and Progressive Polymerics, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 ofthe Company's Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

10.3(i)* First Amendment, dated September 30, 1996, to Agreement for Purchase of Patents,
dated November 14, 1995, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 .4 ofCompany's
Registration Statement on Form 10-SB as amended, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997, N/A

10.5* Agreement, dated March 25, 1996, between Nissko Telecom, Ltd. and Computer
Business Sciences, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 ofCompany's
Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997. N/A

10.6* Asset Purchase Agreement, dated April 18, 1996, between the Company and Zvi
and Sarah Barak, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 .6 of Company's
Registration Statement on Foam 10-SB, as amended, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997. N/A

10.6(i)** Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement dated August 7, 1997 . N/A

10.7* Employment Agreement dated April 18, 1996 between the Company and Dr . Zvi
Barak, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 .7 of Company's Registration
Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 7, 1997. N/A

10.8* Employment Agreement dated October 18, 1996 between Computer Business
Sciences, Inc. and Paul Vesel, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 .8 of
Company's Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

10.9* Indemnification Agreement dated November 7, 1995 between the Company and
Doron Cohen, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 .9 of Company's Registration
Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

10.10* Indemnification Agreement datedNovember 7, 1995 between the Company and
Bruce Bendell, incorporated bv reference to Exhibit 10.10 of Company's
Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

10.11* Indemnification Agreement dated December 6, 1995 between the Company and
Richard C. Fox, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of Company's
Registration Statement on Form l0-SB, as amended, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

10.12* Indemnification Agreement dated March 28, 1996 between the Company and Dr.
Barak, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of Company's Registration
Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A



10.13* Ind frcation Agreement dated March 28, 1996 Company and Yossi
K mcoryomted by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of C

berw~e
y's Registration

S'telfrent on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

10.14* Plan ofReorganization for acquisition of Major Fleet &Leasing Corp . dated August
23, 1996 between the Company, Bruce Bendell and Harold Bendell, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.17 ofCompany's Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, as
amended, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

10.15* Patent Purchase Agreement dated December 30, 1996 between Premo-Plast, Inc. and
John Pinciaro, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 ofCompany's
Registration Statement on Form 10-SE, as amended, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997. N/A

10.16* Employment Agreement dated December 30, 1996 between Premo-Plast, Inc. and
John Pinciaro, incorporatedby reference to Exhibit 10.17 of Company's
Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

10.17* Employment Agreement dated January 27, 1997 between the Company and Ronald
K. Premo, incorporated byreference to Exhibit 10.18 ofCompany's Registration
Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

10.18* Plan and Agreement ofMerger, dated April 21, 1997, the Company, Major
Automotive Group, Inc., Major Acquisition Corp . and Bruce Bendell, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.19 ofCompany's Registration Statement on Form 10SB,
as amended, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A

10.18(1)** Amendment to Plan and Agreement ofMerger, dated August 1, 1997, between
Fidelity Holdings, Inc., Major Automotive Group, Inc., Major Acquisition Corp . and
Bruce Bendell. N/A

10.18(ii)** Amendment to Plan and Agreement of Merger, dated August 26 . 1997, between
Fidelity Holdings, Inc., Major Automotive Group, Inc., Major Acquisition Corp . and
Bruce Bendell. N/A

10.18(iii)** Amendment to Plan and Agreement ofMerger, dated November 20, 1997, between
Fidelity Holdings, Inc., Major Automotive Group, Inc., Major Acquisition Corp. and
Bruce Bendell. N/A

10.18(iv)**** Amendment to Plan and Agreement of Merger, dated March 20, 1998, between
Fidelity Holdings, Inc., Major Automotive Group, Inc., Major Acquisition Corp.,
and Bruce Bendell. N/A

10.19* Stock Purchase Agreement with Escrow Agreement attached, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.20 ofCompany's Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, as
amended, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997. N/A

10.20* Management Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 of Companys
Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997 . N/A



10.21* Employment Agreement with Moise Benedid, incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.22 ofCompany's Registration Statementon Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 1997. N/A

10.22** Partnership Agreement between Nissko Telecom Associates and the Company. N/A

10.23** Memorandum of Understanding, dated September 9, 1997, by and among Computer
Business Sciences, Inc., Nissko Telecom Ltd., the CompanyandRobert L. Rimberg. N/A

10.24** Letter ofIntent, dated June 6, 1997, between the Companyand SouthWall Capital
Corp. (formerly known as Sun Coast Capital Corp.) >_ ._ _ . . ._ . . . . . . . _ _ _ . . . N/A

10.25** Letter ofIntent, dated September 1997, between the Company, Lichtenberg Robbins
Brick, Inc. and Lichtenberg Motors Inc. N/A

10.26** Consulting Agreement, dated February 18, 1997, with Ronald Shapss Corporate
Services, Inc. - N/A

10.27** ValueAdded Reseller Agreement betweenSummaFour, Inc. and Computer
Business Sciences, Inc., as Reseller. N/A

10.28** Lease Agreement, dated March 1996, between 80-02 Leasehold Company, as
Owners and the Company, as Tenant N/A

10.29** Master Lease Agreement, dated December 26, 1996, between MajorFleet &
Leasing Corp., as Lessor, and Nissko Telecom, Ltd., as Lessee . N/A

10.30** Sublease Agreement, dated March 1995, between Speedy RA.C ., Inc., as Sublessor,
and Major Subaru Inc., as Sublessee . N/A

10.31** Lease Agreement, datedNovember 1, 1991, between Gloria Hinsch, as Landlord,
and Major Chrysler-Plymouth, Inc., as Tenant N/A

1032** Store Lease Agreement, dated June 10, 1992, between Bill K ICartsonis, as Owner,
and Major Automotive Group, as Tenant N/A

10.33** Lease Agreement, dated June 3, 1994, between General Motors Corporation, as
Lessor, and Major Chevrolet, Inc., as Lessee. N/A

10.34** Lease Agreement, dated August 1990, between Bruce Bendell and Harold Bendell,
as Landlord and Major Chrysler-Plymouth, Inc., as Tenant N/A

10.34(i)** Extension ofLease Agreement, dated August 14, 1997, between Bruce Bendell and
Harold Bendell, as Landlord and Major Dodge, Inc. (formerly known as Major
Chrysler-Plymouth, Inc.), as Tenant N/A

10.34(ii)** Extension ofLease Agreement, dated December 16, 1997, between
Bruce Bendell andHarold Bendell, as Landlord and Major Dodge
(formerly known as Major Chrysler-Plymouth, Inc.), as Tenant N/A

10.35** Lease Agreement, dated February 1995, between Bendell Realty, L.L.C., as
Landlord, and Major Chrysler-Plymouth Jeep Eagle, Inc., as Tenant N/A

10.35(i)** Extension ofLease Agreement, dated August 14, 1997, between Bendell Realty,
L.L.C., as Landlord and Major Cbrysler-Plymouth Jeep Eagle, Inc., as Tenant N/A



10.35(ii)** n of Lease Agreement, dated December 16, 194tween
Realty, L.L.C ., as Landlord and Major Chrysler-Plymouth

Jeep Eagle, Inc., as Tenant N/A

10.36** Lease Agreement, dated February 1996, between Prajs Drimmer Associatm, as
Landlord, and Barak Technology Inc., as Tenant N/A

10.37** Sublease Agreement, dated January 8, 1997, between Newsday, Inc., as Sublessor,
and Major Fleet &Leasing Corp ., as Sublessee. N/A

10.37(i)** Consentto Sublease Agreement, dated January 16,1997, between 80-02 Leasehold
Company, Newsday Inc. and Major Fleet and Leasing Corp . N/A

10.38** General Security Agreement between Major Fleet &Leasing Corp., as Debtor, and
Marine Midland Bank, as SecuredParty. N/A

10.39** Retail and Wholesale Dealer's Agreement, dated March 30, 1995, betweenMarine
Midland Bank, as Bank, and Major Fleet&Leasing Corp., as Dealer. N/A

10.40** Wholesale Lease Financing Line ofCredit between General Electric Capital
Corporation, as Lender, and Major Fleet & Leasing Corp ., as Borrower. N/A

10.41** Chrysler Leasing System License Agreement between Chrysler Motors Corporation,
as Licensor, and Major Fleet& Leasing Corp., as licensee . N/A

10.42** GMAC Retail Plan Agreement between General Motors Acceptance Corp. and
Major Fleet & Leasing Corp., as Dealer . N/A

10.43** Fidelity Holdings, Inc. 1996 Employees' Performance Recognition Plan. N/A

10.44** Secured PromissoryNote, dated December31, 1996, between DoronCohm as
Maker, and Fidelity Holdings, Inc., as Holder. N/A

10.45 ** Dealer Master Agent Agreement and License, dated February 1996, between
Computer Business Sciences, Inc. and ProgressivePolymerics Internatioml, Inc., as
Master Agent N/A

10.46** Dealer Master Agent Agreement and License, dated February 1996, between
Computer Business Sciences, Inc. and Cellular Credit Corp . ofAmerica, Inc., as
Master Agent N/A

10.47** Dealer Master Agent Agreement and License, datedFebruary 1996, between
Computer Business Sciences, Inc. and America's NewBeginning, Inc., as Master
Agent N/A

10.48** Dealer Master Agent Agreement and License, datedFebruary 1996, between
Computer Business Sciences, Inc. and Korean Telecom, as Master Agent N/A

10.49** Dealer Master Agent Agreement and License, dated February 1996, between
Computer Business Sciences, Inc. and Philcom Telecommunications, as Master
Agent N/A

10.50** Management Agreement, dated August 23, 1996, between Major Fleet, Bruce
Bendell and Harold Bendell. N/A

10.51** Wholesale Security Agreement, dated April 26, 1990, between General Motors
Acceptance Corporation ("GMAC") and Major Fleet N/A

10.51(i)** Amendment, dated February 14,1991, to Wholesale Security Agreementbetween
GMAC and Major Fleet. N/A



10.52**

	

Direct Leasing Plan Dealer Agreement, dated July 24, 1986, between GMAC and
Major Fleet

	

N/A

10.53**

	

Retail Lease Service Plan Agreement, dated April 3, 1987, between GMAC and
Major Fleet

	

N/A

10.54"

	

Contribution Agreement dated as of October 6, 1997 between the Company, Brace
Bendell andDorou Cohen.

	

N/A

- 10.55**---Letter ofCommitment dated March 16, 1998 fromFalcon Financial, LLC to Major Auto
Acquisition, Inc. -- -

	

-

	

-

	

N/A

10.56**** Security Agreement' dated May 14, 1998, made byMajorAcquisition Corp ., Major
Automotive Realty Corp., and Falcon Financial, LLC.

	

N/A

10.57**** Guarantee, dated as ofMay 14, 1998, made byFidelity Holdings, Inc.
in favor ofFalcon Financial, LLC.

	

N/A

10.58**** Amended and restated secured promissory note, dated may 14, 1998 and
betweenMajor Acquisition Corp., and Falcon Fimatcial, LLC.

	

N/A

10.59***Consulting Agreement among Fidelity Holdings, Inc-, Major Automotive
Group, Inc. and Clemont Investors Ltd., dated October 1, 1998 .

	

N/A

10.60******Placement Agent Agreement, dated as of January 25,1999, between
Fidelity Holdings, Inc. and The Zanett Securities Corporation, Claudio
Guazzon4 David McCarthy, and Tony Milbank

	

N/A

10.61 ******Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of January 25,1999, by and
amongFidelity Holdings, Inc., Computer Business Sciences, Inc., Zanett Lombardier, Ltd.,
Goldman Sachs Performance Partners, L.P., Goldman Sachs Performance Partners, (Offshore)
L.P ., David McCarthy and Bruno Guazzoni.

	

N/A

10.62******Registration Rights Agreement dated as ofJanuary 25,1999, by
and among Fidelity Holdings, Inc., Zanett Lombardier, Ltd., Goldman Sachs Performance
Partners, LP., Goldman Sachs Performance Partners, (Offshore) L.P ., David McCarthy
andBnmo Guazzoni.

	

N/A

11 .1

	

Statement re : computation ofper share earnings .

16.1***** Letter from Peter C. Cosmas Co., CPAs, dated February 9, 1999 .

	

N/A

N/A

* Previously filedwith the Commission as Exhibits to, and incorporated herein
by reference from, the Company's registration statement on Form 10-SB
(File No. 0-29182).

** Previously filed with the Commission as Exhibits to, and incorporated herein
by reference from, the Company's annual report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 1997
(File No. 0-29182)

21 .1 * List ofSubsidiaries ofthe Company, incorporatedby reference to Exhibit 22.1 of
Company's Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, as amended, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March7, 1997 .

27.1 FinancialData Schedule .



"*"Previously filed with the Commission as Exhibits to, and incorporated herein
by reference from, the Company's quarterly report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended September 30, 1998
(File No. 0-29182)

Previously filedwith the Commission as Exhibits to, and incorporated herein
by reference from, the Company's current report on Form 8-K, dated May 14,1998 .
(File No.0-29182) :

Previously filed with the Commission as Exlubits to, and incorporated herein
by reference from, the Company's current reporton form 8-K, dated February 5, 1999 .

_ (File No.0-29182) .

Previously filed with the Commission as Exhibits to, and incorporated herein
by reference from, the Company's currentreport on form 8-K, dated January 26, 1999 .
(File No.0-29182).

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

During the last quarter ofFiscal 1998, the Company did not file any Reports on Form 8-K.



Signatures

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company caused this,
report to be signed on its behalfby the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized

Fidelity Holdings, Inc.

Dated: April 13, 1999

	

By-.Ls/ DoronCohen
Doron Cohen, President

In accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalfofthe Companyand in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

DateSignature Title

/s/ Doron Cohen President, Treasure and Director April 13, 1999
DoronCohet

/s/ Bruce Bendell Chairman of the Board and Chief April 13, 1999
Bruce Bendell Executive Officer

/s/ David Edelstein Director April 13, 1999
David Edelstein

/s/ Richard L. Feinstein Chief Financial Officer April 13, 1999
Richard L. Feinstein

/s/ James Wallick Director April 13,1999
James Wallick

/s/ Jeffrey Weiner Director April 13, 1999
Jeffrey Weiner
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FIDELITY HOLDINGS, INC . AND SUSSIOIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Current Assets :
Cash and cash equivalents
Net Investment in direct financing leases, current
Notes receivable - officer shareholder
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Due from related parties
Other current assets

Total current assets
Net investment in direct financing leases,

net of currant ?or-ion
?z0perty and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other intangi'ale assets - patents, customer lists,

favorable lease and franchise value
Otter assets

Total assets
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_

	

90, ?3t
3,780,31_ 4337

':00 53,,700

231----------- -----------
'Total

	

Z7, 6CC,'99

	

_ 376,507

SEPT . 30,
1998

ONAUDITED

DECMME.4 31,
1997

AUDITED

$ 1,086,819 S 217,191
1,859,771 1,0`44,575

150,500 148,400
5,'0'07,757 1,650,919
12,603,254 164,60'1
1,053,772 -_
1,941,875 375,172

-----------
24,368,748

--- ------
41200,918

1,020,673 687,-06
1°6,377 1,236 .5-3

5,087,440 2,'.38,911

6,349,151 429,571
955,357 109,3_-.

-----------
5 ;2 .947,746

-----------
S 3,401 .3 ;3

_ :_ . "_ .__ _ 150,300
3,499,940 339 .377

Stock'. .̂alders' acui:':
?re_terred Stack, .01 tar "ralue :

2,000,000 shares a-thori:ed,
250,000 shares issued and outstandi=_
i . .̂ 1998 and 1997 2,5 "50 2,500

?refarre_d stock., .01 Car ':aloe :
1997 t4ajo-, 900 .300 snares issued and
outstanding i. . 1-993 none

i-
. . 1997 000 __

COrtnon stock . .01 oar value
-0,000,000 shares au:horized .
7,574,'000 shares Issued and
outstanding '1-a 1998 and
6,395,700 in 1997 75,746 68,957

Additional paid in capital 13,242,951 5, 414,293
Cumulative translation adjustment 389 297
Retained earnings 1,949,061 1,038,00'38

Total stockholders' equity
- - -------
15,279, 647

-----------
6,524 .735

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity
-----------
542,947,746
----------

-----------
$ 9,401,343
--
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regional consolidation of the retail automotive industry, acquired, from a
related partv, the Major Automotive Groun of dealerships ("Major Auto") and
related real estate for approximately $14 million in cash and stock.
Additionally, as a holding company, Fidelity '.Holdings, Inc . i s involved in the
acquisition and development of synert_c =__Rnological and telecommunications
businesses and seeks to capitalize on other ocportunit_es .

As a result of the acquisition of Major Auto, which comprises the Company's
Automotive division, the Company is one of the largest volume retailers in New
York City of new and used vehicles . The Automotive division consists of the
following Major Auto dealershios, all of which are located in Queens, New York:
(i) Chevrolet ; (ii) Chrysler and Plymouth ; (iii) Dodge ; (iv) Jeep ; and (v)
Subaru . The acquisition was accounted for as a purchase . Accordingly, the
consolidated results of operations of the Company include the ---suits from Ma--or
Auto only since the date of acquisition on Mav 14, 1998 .

Results of Ocerations - Nine-Month Period Ended Septem:;er 30, 1998 and 1, 997

Revenues . Revenues for the nine-month period ended Secte:nCer 30, 1998 _..creased
approximately $660 .9 million or 1,700% over the comparabie prior period to
S'64,311,214 . Revenue for the comparable rind is __9i was
arimarv source of _ e increase in ::evenues was --he

	

S- 62 .7 mill
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Gross profit . Gross profit showed a net increase of :6",547,11'6, or 312 .1%, - .,
$8,771,004 in the nine months ended Septeniber 30, ;999 --ram $2,129,854 _.. the
corresponding prior year's period . In the 1997 period, all of the gross profiz
was generated by the Computer Telephony and Telecommunications division. . The
gross profit from the Automotive division accounted for $8,359,700 of the 1998
net increase . This Automotive division increase was oartially offset by a
decrease in the gross profit for the Computer Telephony and Telecommunications
division -in the 1998 nine-month period of $(1,712,554), or (80 .48) to S417,304 .
Gross profit as a percentage of sales in the Automotive division was 13 .83 since
the acquisition of " Major Auto on May 14, 1998 . Gross profit as a percentage of
sales in the Computer Telephony and Telecommunications division decreased to
47 .0% in the 1998 first three quarters, compared with gross profit of 77 .48

i^
..

the comparable prior period . This, again, is the result of the curtailment of



higher gross profit sales to Master Agents that commenced in t. .̂e third quarter
of 1997 .

Selling, general and administrative expense . Selling, general and administrative
expenses ("SG&A") increased a total of $5,238,883, or 290 .2%, cc $7,044,093 in
the nine months ended September 30, 1998 from 51,805,210 frcm c.._
comparable period in 1997 . Of this net increase, $5,'037,825 re_--r-es to the
Company's Automotive division acquired on May 14, 1998, a decr=ease of 5(289,263)
relates to the Computer Telephony and Telecommunications division and a decrease
of $(109,679) is from the Leasing division . SG&A for the Computer Telephony and
Telecommunications division decreased from $1,276,557 for th=_ first nine months
of 1997 to $987,294 for the nine months ended September 30, 1998, a decrease o?
(22 .7%) . This decrease is reflective of the reduced level of aczi-ii'tv associated
with the Company's Master Agents in the first three quarters cf 1998 . The
decrease of $(109,679), or (20 .79) in SG&A to $418,974 for the Leasing division.
in the first three quarters of 1998 from $528,0`53 in t .._ __^parable prior cericd
is reflective of both operating efficiencies and a _educed level of activities .

interest expense . Interest expense increased by $551,539 to Sf5"� 144 _.. the
first nine months of 1998, from interest expense cf 505 _..______ -n :.._
comparable period in 1997 . This is pY_...a____7 _elate_ __ _ ..= f__ _
in t.-.e Company's Automotive divisicnof S23:,763 and _..tee=s-
t_n____nq c..e acauisiticn of Ma~cr Auto amounting t .. =191, - .-, cartial-_r^ c__s-_c
by _ decrease _.. the Leas . .̂g d- "risior.'s _--._rest cost a= a ___"i_t c_ ....___aloe
activit-7 _.. that division .
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decreased S(450,430) ,0430), or (58 .90 . This :_sulted __m, the C
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Curtailment q_ sales to Master 2 e.^as . Re7enues for t..- 1aaSind -_,_5_:..
increased by G77,745, or 27 .1%, t_ $364,7,S _.. the ___rent

	

__ ___ . .. :23 - . ., ._
tie prior ear's comparable
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Cost of Sales . ...̀e net test of sales _. .crease _or c-e tnre_e r.cnc*, s ended
September 30, 1998 of almost $3_ .3 mi11ion, or almost

	

_s ._
attributable to the Automoti-re division which '.. .̂ad a cost of goods sold of
$31,296,'096 in the 1998 third. quarter . This increase was

	

_tiaily offset by =
decrease in cost of sales in the Compute : Telephony and Telecommunications
division . The cost of sales in that division in the three-month 1998 period was
$165,547, compared with $195,619 in the comparable 1947 period . This decrease of
$(30,072), or (15 .48), is consistent with the decrease in revenues _elated to
the higher margin products sold by this division .

Gross profit . Gross profit showed a net increase of $4,858,102, or 854 .43, to
$5,426,711 i. .̂ the three months ended September 30, 1998 from $568,609 in the
corresponding prior year's period . In the 1997 period, all of the gross prcfi-
was generated by the Computer Telephony and Telecommunications division . The



gross profit from the Automotive division accounted for $5,278,460 of the 1998
net increase . This Automotive division increase was partially cf=set by a
decrease in the gross profit for the Computer Telephony and Telicommuni cations
division in the 1998 third quarter period of $(420,358), or (73 .33) to $148,251 .
Gross profit as a percentage of sales in the Automotive divisicr was 14 .4% in
the three months ended September 30, 1998 . Gross profit as a perzenrace of sales
is the Computer Telephony and TelecCP"3n4nicatiens division decreased to 47 .28 in
the 1998 third quarter, compared with gross profit of 74 .4% is t .e comparable
prior period . This, again, is the result of the curtailment of higher gross
profit sales to Master Agents that began in the third quarter cf 1997 .

Selling general and administrative expense . SG§A expenses increased a net total
of 53,876,105 or 575 .5%, to $4,549,607 in the three months endem Seat=tuber 30,
1998 from $6673,502 for the comparable ceriod in 1997 . Of r',-4s net increase,
$3,829,115 relates to the Company's Automotive 'division ; a._ _-crease o= 5178,82=
relates to the Computer Telephony and Telecommunications division- and a decrease
of $(131,832) is from the Leasing division . SG&A for the Computer Telephony and
Telecommunications division increased '_rpm $509, 425 for tha .
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=,___x_mata_lr S9 .= million at 7_camber 31, __97 . '.,_ the same reason,
stcc :<hoiders' equity increased to acproxi:aately ._~ .3

	

from 36 .3
ac December 31, 1997 .

The Company's primary source of licuidity for tie nine months ended September
30, 1998 was $2,325,414 from its net income of $910,373, as adjust-ad by nen-caS
charges which aggregated $1,415,04? . This net increase is cash was partially
offset by the net effect of (a) a decrease in liabilities of -9,329,954
(primarily related to Major Auto's floor plan notes), less (b) the net decrease
of assets of $66,110,251 (primarily from the decrease in the Automotive,
division's inventory of $5,815,999 and a decrease in accounts receivable o£
$1,535,270, following the acquisition of Major Auto), as partially offset by
decreases in financing leases and other assets of $548,763 and 690,155,
rescecti "rely . The combination of record new and used cars sales for Major Auto
during this period, coupled with a strike at Genera? Motors, which restricted
the Company's ability to obtain replacement cars for inventory during May and
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June were the primary reasons for the significant inventory and floor planning
decreases and an initial -related increase _.. accounts receivable . The changeover
in model years at the end of the summer kept inventory low, but the Automotive
division receivables that had built up were subszantiallv collected by tae end
of the period. The net result of all of the foregoing was a use of cash is
operating activities of $894,299 .

The Company's investing activities had a . .̂_t use of cash of $0',610,799 . The most
significant component of this use was the acquisition of Major Auto, which used
net cash of $6,838,901 . This use was partially offset by a decrease in property,
plant and equipment aggregating $228,102 . All of this was more than offset by
net cash provided by financing activities, which aecregazed 18,374,716, from the
net proceeds of long-term debt . The primary sources or- sucn debt were (1) the
loan of $7,500,000 from a third-party which was used to acquire Major .'-_uto and
its related real estate and (2) the ^roceeds of $600,000 _F_-cm the sale .,f
convertible, subordinated debentur_s~to a ___.._zed nuzcar of accredited
investors .

The forego-inc activities, i .e ., operatinc, Lnvestinq and financinc, res7lted _._
a ._et ,.ash. _.. .._ease of $8869,628 for _. ._ .._ .._ no.---s _....__ ..=ctember 3C, :?98 .
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. ._ .v Autzmoti"re d_'i_Sion, t]get .er 'dit- . . .._St_ , ca_~ .
_____..t __n__rs, _ncludinc bank= and f_ . .._ __ an- t:e
.._-_. .t ..__ Cft?__ng, as 'dell as

	

sec_r_-__S c===_-pas Slltt_ :Lent =_
.'.-___..t CC°rat10 .̂5, _a._nv_ __ns_On _n ..

	

,_ : .,-. . ___ a-
_east t .._ -ex- twenuv--cur . . ._ ._= s .

_ ._e Z==-.v _=ccanizes =ne .need = . . ___-__ its

	

_a__-S w__1 ...,t __ =_*:ersel*_.
=cz_- t-nabi1i= _f = . .__

	

_ ; - =ze^.s =_:=-_e_3
__ after January 1 2000 2"G" he C._..- ._c_ . .___

	

_ _

	

..

	

ac-__ss_-z
z .-.s risk W_tn r?- __ z_ z.-._

	

-

	

s.-_-
a._- cara-in= svstams . While z .-.e..-:7z-n.; ------- ___-
ade

	

=z_ t .. address tae Year 2000 zcn_s_ . =

	

=ere ca.. .._ .-. ., _ssura-.__
svstams ..f other companies on w-i= 7n_ Company's

	

-_az_ons __1v a__, or will
be wade, ccmplianz on a timely basis and :,___

	

_ -at-_r--al '_fleet or. t .__
Company . However, all such sig-_f_=a. .̂t -ysz=ms a__ ___ , =evaluated for
cc- Lance . _..̀e cost of the Commanv'_ Year 2000 c.,

	

_anc_
_:f:=

is .-. .,z
expected to be material to the",Comcanv'sresu_ts of y perm-icn sicns or financial

s_--ion.

	

- _

The Company is not engaged =n any litigation ether than as previously
reported .

Item 2 . Changes in Securities

None

item 3 . Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None

PART :_ - v_ -R =NcORMAT=CN



Item 4 . Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None

Item 5 . Other Information

As part of its strategy to expand =cs automotive onerazicns abroad, on
October 1, 1998 the Company entered into a consulting agreement with Clemont
Lnvesments Ltd . ("Clemont"), a consulting firm which provides business advisory
services regarding the establishment in Europe of branches or operations of U .S .
based companies . In consideration for izs services, Clemont will receive, over
three to five year period (i) 54,000 shares of Czmcany common stock in
connection wit , the performance of certain consuaine services, (ii) 79,900
shares of Company common stock in ccnnec=ion wit.n providing t~e Company w_th
certain business contacts, and (iii) 59,000 shares of Comma. .̂v zommen st=ck in
connection with compliance with certain restrictive cove. .̂a . .̂ :s contained __ . th=_
Consulting Agreement (collecti-rely, the "Shares"' . the Compa-y '.'.'.as t :ne __ __ t_
repurchase the Shares under certain circ:mstarces a= -

	

_ca _ : up to S4 .00

	

__
s :tare

	

"Reourc^ase

	

?s a. .̂ _-c_emery t_ C_e-ont t ., enter t :_

	

_

Consuit_nc Agreement, Ciemcnz ex=ecuted a _ acr=e-en- _enc=___,
---airman, ?resident and CEO of t._- C- =rv _ . . Oct_-_r _, __ :_ - rsua_t __

Sendeil agreed, under certa-n= cond-t_=.S, t_
__..ase the Shares from C=_^.cnt at th?

	

t... .
gre_m_nr cer_cd, less any s.=.__e_

	

_ .-._

:-em ''7 . =xhibi-s and Reccr-S on --r:71 i_ -K

_ . . . ._ ..__ -'i .J_ . Cat-'

	

_ . . : , -

.

	

__ .., . ~_ . . ._ng~__ D=l_ _c..e--__

S_2:-=.. ., 7.Lz

_.. accordance with die __ _ __ement5

	

.-._t, t .
__cist_ant caused this _=port to be si; __ or. ___ _aha_f by = ._

	

'cnc?rsi^ __,
thereunto du1V au-hcri2°_c .

_=DZL=" CLCINGS, _NC .

Date : November 1 - , 1998

	

/s/ 3_u .._ 3_ . .____
----------------------------------------

truce Eendell,

	

__esig_._ .'CEO
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EXECUTION COPY

CONSULTING AGREEMENT

THIS CONSULTING AGREEMENT, made as of the 1st day of October, 1998, by and
between :

FIDELITY HOLDINGS, INC ., a Delaware corporation having its executive
office- at 80-02 Kew Gardens Road, Kew Gardens, New York 11415 (heraina--ter
r=eferred to as "COMPPVY") and its subsidiar_7, MAJOR AUTOMOTIVE GRCU?, INC .
(hereinafter "MAJOR") .

AdND

CLE:'^CNT INVESTMENTS LTD ., a Gibraltar _ rncratior. _aving its

	

_ncinal
office at 292" Ma__. Stra_=, Gibraltar !aer=_=..aft__ ________ t_ as ~OPISULTA:1= .

C^MP N'r

ni
___ . . . .__---, a.._ .,t..__

	

3us_ .-~=__ . and .as ~_ --, and is
7a-a=n ___ _ ,

=NSUL7A.NT is .r can=c__

	

-..Z_- a_ _ .. __

	

r07:Qe

	

adz=: .,
3e_ -,_ z .._

	

_ecard_nc -- -3 est3Z_1Sn. °_ .̂t _ . . _ ..r-

	

.._ z_anCnes or ccelat_Cn3

	

__

	

_
_ ._ .-CaacC c_ -n_es, an.-.. as the ress-lt . .- 3_tY7_t_es _.. ante

	

-t_. ... .._ _ . ._$
..a5 __7e1 _ ._ ,ar_J ..=

_-_ . 7t_ . _9_at_n7 t . .

	

3us_ne55, a.._ _ "._ . .
:<-cw1edge ma .7 be .iahiv useful to :LAJCR a. .̂d as

WHEREAS, as the result o

	

performed in -=n-_cioaticn of this
CCnsult_nc ACreement relating to tie Autcmct_ve Business, -..ONSULTA'47 has
Ce7a_

	

.. a lest O- Ootent_al Ccn-acts, Cl__n_ - , C_StrTe_ :, st__t°7__ _rartn__-,
and oth°_r businesses or

	

.title_ Who or which may "^_ desirous o2 e :aer-nc into
pus_:.ess :e-la--ions wit:,,, =AJGR lt_1e "LIST") ~Jnlc-.' LIST M=_JOR ces :r?s tp accu_r? ;

WHEREAS, C-NSULT?_NT believes t nat c -- e prior °_xper1°_=e and..U=-tress

-ack "grcllnds and contacts p its management, employees and a =iiiat°_s can be o=
value .. the COMPANY and the COMPANY reccgni-es the benefits acoruisg to _tsalf
From CONSULTANT's association with the COMPANY and has agr=eed to employ
CONSULTANT as a consultant to COMPANY on the herein terms and conditions,
intending the CONSULTANT to rely on COMPANY's agreement thereto ;

WHEREAS, COMPANY desires to retain the on-going contact_ whit.. CONSULTANT
may develop as the result of t. .̂e performance of services hereunder and retain
solely the benefits which may be derived from the efforts of CONSULTANT on
behalf of COMPANY bv having the
exclusive right to the consulting and advisory services of CONSULTANT relating
to automotive industry and COMPANY's Automotive Business and to restrict



CONSULTANT with respect to its activities relating to the Automotive Business ;

WHEREAS, the parties .have agreed upon the t=-=s of such arrangements and
desire a written, formal contract to evidence their understandings ;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of tae-mutual ozomises, covenan-s and
forebeararc=_s contained herein, and intending to be legally bound, the parties
have agreed as follows :

I
SUMMARY

1 . SUMMARY OF AGREEMENT . This Agreement is divided into four (4) parts :

Part _- .

	

Consulting Services to MAJOR ragardirg the Automotive Business ;

Part III : Conveyance of the LIST ;

?art 11 :

	

Exclusivity/Restr_c-_re Covena:as ; and

___- e :

	

Miscellaneous

	

.�_lions ,-_-

	

__a___ _, ;t__ ear-S .

___ -_ _
_ ., .":?ANY

	

_ .̂:p_o~.-

	

_CDiSUL .?~i= a=

	

.

	

an- advisor,

	

a..~

	

"=-
. .e_=_

	

_ __oymen-, UP= 7:� __fans a.-. . . C=t___ors ..____-af=__ S__
C2YSUL=.'- -

__-.-.__ as

	

__
.._

	

anv ad,/ wi_. .

	

_..-r- '° ..-:__ . .::. _:
--------C..-_a_-__ . .,C?iJVL_ c1= S~:all 02 _re :'CnS :b_-_

	

ant _ ..2
_-5 C`dn

	

__ .̂or-s _. . . .

	

°_.:men- ..- 'Aa-es,

	

e5 a.._
___

	

c'3.-.-=, L. ._ ..
2. . . ..-

	

a'vrC1_ -axes Janr re-7=C: CndZCSS ;

	

_n_ -n2
_ns'urance, _ncl°ding worzrenIs compensation

_ .

	

.M .

	

(a)

	

This Consult_nc Agreemen- shall .._come _ :f_ .,-eve uac . .
=_xecu-ion, except that tae consulting services s:.all comment= o.. January _
_99-, or sooner =t tae onc_on Of t^e CCMPaNY wi- wr_--en notice to C0NSUL7:_v" .

Di O=r- __ Of - ..is CJnslllt :ag ngr_ement shall CCn-_hue and ex-St _'__ a -er_Oa
cf thre=_ (S) .rears from the e_-____-re data . ?art -11 cf _ail Consulting ?.cr=_ement
shall continue and exist for the periods specified in the Paracrazas thereof .

4 . COMPSNSATION-SASE AM HARDSHIP . (a) For the basic services rendered
under this ?art == of this Consulting Agreemment (i ._ ., for regular consulting
and advisory services), COMPANY shall pay CONSULTANT a base fee in the form of
_ ..fty-four Thousand (54,000) shares of the COMPA&NY's Common Stock . Such shares
shall be issued immediarely, in the name of CONSULTANT, upon the execution of
this Agreement as thirty-six ( :6) certificates for 1, :00 shares each, so as to
establish CONSULTANT as a shareholder as of the date of issuance as to all
54,000 shares . However, CONSULTANT shall not be deemed vested with ownershia o
such spares until delivered to CONSULTANT as provided herein . The certificates
shall be held in escrow by Robert Salad, Esc . who shall deliver a c=ertificate
for 1,500 shares to CONSULTANT monthly, in advance, for the services to be
rendered for that month, commencing on January l, 1999 for the ser"ric=-s to be



rendered in the month of January, 1998 (or sooner at the COMPANY'S option as
provided in Section 3 hereof) . CONSULTANT shall not be entitled to vote any of
the 54,000 shares, including the shares held in escrow pending delivery of such
shares to CONSULTANT as provided herein until such shares are vested . Any
dividends declared and or paid with respect to delivered and vested shares shall
be paid directly to CONSULTANT . Any dividends declared or paid with respect to
undelivered, unvested and escrowed shares shall be paid to Robert Salad, Esc_ .
and shall also be held in escrow pending delivery and shall follow the deliver.' ;
i.e ., proportionately delivered to CONSULTANT as the shares are delivered .

(b) The marries acknowledge that in negotiating this fee and its equal
installment payment they recognized that the consulting and advisory services
will probably not be,performed is equal monthly segments, but may be substantial
during the early portion of the term and less thereafter as MAJOR's
relationships and communications lines are established . Thus, part of the
compensation for earlier services will be deferred

and the lessening or
termination of services shall not constitute a breac : or t=ermination. hereof, but
the level fee shall continue . Furthermore, in view of mAJOR's and COMPA.NY's
desire that CONSULTANT's services with respect to the auromcrive industrv be
excl "asively for the benefit of

	

any =ail_'._ by 24?,iG3 t0 assc protects
pct

	

.._erred - breach of 'his -

	

=ement by CONSULTNTT .

(c`

	

_:_ parties recognize z'. .̂at = .= c_rr=_nt celitical a.._ economic climates cf
Curoc° a__ _ s--.,__,

	

-.._
_nvcl"7e t -.e

	

_ ;7r: ar.-_e of 0n-__to se_ __ez unaer .,_-=__-_t,

	

.1ar-5 - '

	

,

	

_n_
pcSSi__y n--at=_I_

	

na .

	

",.___ per=.,_ . . .- .___ .._ =::es__,__eS
_= a_t_a_

	

gave'_

	

_

v

and

	

___ :__

	

.__

	

Suc

	

areas,

	

for = ::

	

the
_ _' ._ .a __ _= any ser-7ices,t-_

	

_t___ t::ail e_tablis: .̂ a _'e-rel .._

ccmo°nsat;_ .. for operaz_ .-.s un=a_ s~_..
s- a__ ta :<a _ ..t_ =nsi__razlon

	

t�= __ . .̂dit_cns =_ ..I___b__ an., t^°_ value cf
_.._ ser,_ces, a.._ shall be _n

	

o an.y _cs:S as _rove ec

_ . OUT_=S . CONSULTANT shail cer_orm consulti' _. ._ _.. ._s .,- :_r->c_es ___
.-AJCR with r°scect to eszablish"enr and expansion. c f its Autcmczi "'e 3usiaes~ _n
Russia and Easzarn Europe (tee

	

CONSULT?i4T shay_ lave no
_esgcnsibil_t _or, and shall not have =nv _^voivement _.., matters -=zectinz t ..e
Company cutside of the Territcry unless -otherwise direct°_d ' .,I wz4z inc -y - n=
?resident . CONSULT.'-.NT shall act, w,_-n-, and with respect t. . such "_'_____ .r "_', as -
business consultant and advisor t.,uAvCR, °''maniac s=:-vices as ukJCR Shale
request or d__ect, includina but pct li.,i___ to :

(a) As MAJOR shall feauesc or dir=ect _. . writing, CCNSULT_NT stall seek to make
MAJOR and its Automotive Business known to the financial and business community
in Russia and Eastern Europe and to the financial community interested in or
capable of financing MAJOR's dealerships and distributorships or consumer
purchases, as well as the business and financial media and the public generally .

(b) As MAJOR shall request or direct in writing, CONSULTANT shall assist; in
contacting, establishing communication with, and introducing MAJOR's executives
to, financial institutions and investors potentially interested in (i) securing
a franchise or entering into a relationship with MAJOR for the establishment o-
a dealership or distributorship, or (ii) providing floor plan financing to uAjOR
or one of its importers, dealers or distributors, or (iii) providing consumer
financing for the purchase of automobiles, trucks or ocher motor vehicles from
MAJOR, or one of its dealers or distributors .



(c) As MAJOR shall request or direct in writing, CONSULTANT shall serve as a
liaison between MAJOR and the Russian and Eastern Eurooean automotive industry
and relevant government agencies, and CONSULTANT shall provide such analyses or
the Russian and European automotive markets as MAJOR may request .

(d) As MAJOR shall request or direct in writing, advise MAJOR with respect to
its and its dealers and distributors sales and marketing arrangements and plans,
including : specific marketing and sales focuses by country or region ; public
relations and advertising programs, media selection, industry trade shows, and
expenditures therefor; employment of import brokers, transportation. companies,
sales representatives and distributors ; pricing and sales terms ; product feature
emphasis ; product bundling and un-bundling; licensing, franchise, dealership and
distributorship agreements ; and other factors relating to MAJOR's Automoziv=_
Business .

(e) As imAjOR shall request or direct __ . writing, assist MAJOR is finding,
recruiting, hirinc, compensating and retain-z-1- dealers, distributors, a.=.d sales
and marketing personnel .

(f) As :==..'oR s :̂a11 =equest or .._fact _..

	

assist CCMPAN° _n sn:a_rci-g
Ous:ness and prodUCt srengths ano we_Snesses, acv_sing O. .̂ CcC:pe__= : :.. :na =. ._
Current aut=c-i-se mar ::ets _.. the var--us C.�.rt__=_s,

	

__,_ .Zing a
-sine_ss p lan for the gecgrach_c

H?JOR s-al_ __-pest or ______ _- :ari=i_ .̂c

	

assist :"+_?_OR _- sec-_: :
_=-_ta_

	

f_. .a .._i-,g

	

_., _.. . .._ .._

	

_.-...

	

_____

	

=_. .a ..__

	

.

	

:__

.' . =s _"L= -�.. S . .___ ____ __ __ ______ __ ..rut_- . , assist :=?=C=. _ . . ___a___= ..:

	

s . .
..__'_. . _.._ Cap, __=ZS'ntr=~__=

	

__
c-adidatas =.._ assist

....d n=tc=lace ..___ _otential

.._ . .._ _=.^.C Croduct 2x=osur°_ and advise w_=~ r inept tJ securinC .=edia __ :__=

	

a.. ..

_ Csure .

(~1 CONSULTANT shaii perfortl such otaar ccnsu1tira and adv sCr7 :_=_as as
MA=CR's Management may _easonabiv _ecuest _- . wr_ti1g, CCns :sz_n= Na . . __._
or=_goi ng duties .

aotwit. .̂standing the foregoing, CONSULTANT shall cause its emr1ovees t .,
devote uo to fifty (508) percent of their business time and attention to the
COMPANY's matters, if so requested in writing .

5 . EXTENT AND PLACE OF SERVICES . CONSULTANT shall devote such adequate,
reasonable, and proper time, attention, and energies to tae business of MAJOR as
shall be necessary or consistent with the performance of its duties hereunder .
It is understood that, expect as provided by Paragraph 10 in Part IV below,
CONSULTANT has and/or may have other employment or consulting arrangements and
that this engagement is neither exclusive nor -full-time . The consulting and
advisory services of CONSULTANT shall be performed off-shore, i .e ., outside of



the United States .

7 . WORKING FACILITIES . CONSULTANT shall provide its services from its own
offices the cost for which offices shall be at CONSULTANT's own expense . MAJOR
shall provide such local and regional site offices and such personnel support as
may be mutually agreed upon from time to time .

8 . EXPENSES . (a) CONSULTANT, in providing the foregoing services, shall
advise MAJOR in advance of the performance of such services, of the costs
anticipated to be incurred in the performance of such services and shall
establish with MAJOR a costs budget . MAJOR shall be responsible for all budgeted
costs of providing the services including, but not limited to, out-of-pocket
expenses for travel, entertainment, postage, expr=ess delivery and messenger
service, telephone/ facsimile charges, as well as compensation to third party
vendors, consultants, advisors, and agents . Such costs shall be in addition to
any additional compensation as provided is Paragrachs 4(a) and 4(c) above .

(b) Except for costs budgeted as provided above, CONSULTANT is not authorize_ __
incur expenses or. behalf of, or chargeable to, COMPANY, with respect to tha
business ravel of _its management, employees or affiliates, including
_ransporta=_on, lodging, -food, entertainment,

__~. except withi .̂ such g _~e

as may be established form
-_me=

., tame by t. ._ °card o=

	

of
as specially agr=led upon, _.. ad-ranc_, for anv~speci-f__ cro;ec- . COMP3N "f sha_-
___-yurse CONSULTAN' -for humor-=_a expenses wi=. ._ .. such guidelines or _._

-=o. .̂

	

cy C':15 :::.:1_f",

	

-from t__._

	

_ ., time,

	

c

	

_ . . _te^d=ea
:coo::nt _= suci =xpenc_-_re_ _n s .__ . . - .,_._ as CCMPA.`f:

	

t::c=_=..__
_t_.9_

	

"CC==

	

..-

	

t-.e

	

_ ^enn_t__SS

	

a5 -.a "1
1
l._

Y7, Y'I= OF L I ST

-

	

on_ .. o-f - ?-___Men:,
.-._s exa~_-_d t - e 1=O_,

	

__

	

agars of _ts cc.._=..-_,

	

and ac-=^-:s

	

suc-

	

1== .
.__=___d__ w_-.. -n_ S _____ _..___Z-_.___

	

tnat CONSULTANT mates , o

	

. .
._

	

i

	

_n"_,' ScC.': J --e=SCns C= e--_t_-2s __-tc .. S a-_ ; . .t__
_.-_

	

a

	

__s_ne5S a__C

	

_ . .,

	

cnt

	

n=-: .�̂ ?cANY,

	

C..~ _t

	

-----

	

..a

	

= .._

	

_33tCn5_

	

___'_
cf COMPIUNY to -fu_tn_r contact suc,

	

rscns and entities, negotiate 'Riti t'.°', .
and reach any agreement or relations-_p .

(b) CONSULTANT represents and warrants :

_) alth.eug:. compiled by ~ts of----ales, officers, airectors, agents and/or
consultants, CONSULTANT is -:..̂e owner oz such LIST and has the autnor_ty t.,
convey such LIST to ~LAJCR ;

(ii) such LIST contains tie names and addresses of eac :̂ and every contact,
potential cli=ent, potential customer, potential. strategic partner, and other
businesses which may be interested is entering into a business relationship wit_"

MAJOR perta-ning to its Automotive Business, and CONSULTANT has not withheld the
names and addresses of any potential contacts, clients, customers, strategic
partners, or business contacts which could be useful to MAJOR with respect to
its Automotive Business .

(iii) CONSULTANT has not previously conveyed, or disclosed, the names and
addresses on such LIST to any otter of its consulting clients, has not entered
into any other agreement or understanding for the conveyance or disclosure of
such LIST, such LIST was not compiled by reason of funding or a contractual



commitment from any other consulting client, and there are no liens, claims,
encumbrances or charges of any kind pertaining to such LIST .

(iv) Upcn the conveyance e_° such. LIST hereunder, CONSULTANT shall treat sue.-.
LIST as the exclusive property of P^_AJOR and shall not itself use, or use,
disclose, or convey any of the names and addresses on such LIST for its own
benefit ar for the benefit of any person or entity, whether or not a consu_ti_c
client .

(b) CONSULTANT, on behalf of itself, its affiliates, shareholders, officers,
directors, employees, agents and consultants, hereby conveys, sells, transfer
and assigns all of its right, title and interest in and to the LIST to MAJOR,
free and clear or, any liens, claims, e.-c ,.mbrances and charges, of any kind
whatsoever .

(c) In consideration for the conveyance of the LIST to MAJOR, COMPANY shall
issue to CONSULTANT, .:pop the execution. hereof, Seventy-nine Thousand eive
Hundred

	

(7°,=00)

	

shares of _ts Common Stock .' Such issuance shall be
'

	

.: .__ a.-._
templets oa.nnent of the LIST, there shall be no further compensatior.d::e tt
CONSULT._ . . _._ the . event that COMPANY anal/or M~JOR s,-all negotiate any acre^e. .̂t
or develop a. .̂y relaticnsai: wet_ . -any ..̂aced _nerscn o_ _nz_ty, and such
3r.arss S -.a__

	

_.._.. ._ . . ___.'._ .. pV C_NSUL-.z-..4T uzc= conveyance .._ the ____ a. . ._
rv_t ::CCt : . ._ __Qulrea

	

at =n'7

	

ser'T:ca_s tv_tn __

	

_t tne____ .

: 77 0: :-_NS7jLT- :TG E_R'/=__..
?~iD

a..._ 3aan_3,

	

____' t . ._ torn . .._ r . ._ __.___ _a_: _f
tc_ ._ :3s '__'_13C _. . _.__- _- arc':e, ant :7r a

	

r_od of two (c~
_ .._ a '___e.. __ _c_3_S.er

	

=CC-3, _t Sha__ not,
a._ 7__i=._ .. aaS_sorv serv:_9s t , .._ __ ..-,_ ... .

a,
.

_

	

t__..

	

t rya'

	

engaged in the

	

Ctt..̂.tti70 ~T'Siness .
..C?iSU=_

	

...,t, a__?_- __ _nd_re=t _ t__ - att,

	

a-
nerscr., ___. . .

	

contact anv �t_.__ cersen .,_ _nt_ty encaced _ . .
the autamcti-e indusz :y fo'r the purpose of orovidi_c consult_

	

cr ad":iscr%
sar-;ices,

	

or infor...aticr.,

	

that are the same' as cr similar to,

	

any ser-icas .._
_. .formation c-ovided to -Y_=_-OR bvCONSULT.'-.NT her=_'trder .

__ . ?ICi+-D.SCLOSVRS .._ NCCRMAT:ON . CONSUL?ANT ___ocn_zes and ac ::owl=_dces
-hat, t___ _ _ :ne c_~rse of its =mpiovment hereunder, it will hay=_ access t_ '
valuable

	

pri=_tare _nfcrmation ra_latina to MAJOR and :its Automot -l-re 3'_s :_a_sS l
a subst_aia_ _portion. ..= wnicn may be deveicned or creat=ed by -

CONSULTANT

performance of _t_ ser^;_ces hereunder, and that suet::.,.formation constitutes
unicue assets of the business of MAJOR and the COMP.A~NIY . To the extent that sue.-.
proprietary information is developed by CONSULTANT pursuant to the performance
of its consulting ser-ices under Part II above, CONSULTANT hereby assigns to
MAJOR, without further consideration to CONSULTANT, the entire __cht title and
interest in and to tae such work product and in and to all proprietary .ric:nts
therein. or based thereon, and CONSULTANT agrees gnat the work product 'shall be
deemed to be a "work made for hire" . Neither CONSULTANT not any of its
affiliates, employees, officers, directors, agents and consultant wi11, during
or after CONSULTANT's employment, personally use or disclose all, or any part
of, such proprietary information to any person, firm, corporation, association.,
agency, or other entity except as properly required in the conduct of the



business of MAJOR and/or the COMPANY, or except as authorized in writing by
MAJOR, publish, disclose or authorize anyone else to publish or disclose, any
secret or confidential matter relating to any aspect of the business of M"?JCn
with which CONSULTANT'S service may in any way acquaint CONSULTANT . Sn the e-e..̂t
of a breach, or threatened breach, by CONSULTANT, of the provisions of . .ai .7

?aragraph, COMPANY and/or MAJOR shall be entitled to a oreliminarl, temcera-
and permanent in unct:on restraining CONSULTANT from disclosing in whole o_ - . .
part, any such proprietary information and/or form rendering any services to any
person, firm, corporation, association, agency, or other entity to whom such
information, in whole or :n part, has been disclosed or is threatened to be
disclosed . .°urthermore, nothing herein shall be construed as prohibiting COMPANY
and/cr MAJOR from pursuing any other equitable or legal remedies available to __
for such breach or threatened breach, including the recovery or damages fros.
CONSULTANT .

12 . NCNSOLICITA°_ION COVE.IANT . Cur-'ac the term of t_tis Agreement =" . .. for

pericc .,= --wo (2) years after __^,e termination of this Agreement C'ONSUL'-Z-1' S . .a--

not S_____t, .._rec=_ . or _ ..______-y, ov any means an of _:_ :M.--OR' :
"_^<^zcti-' c_stomers, .,_ emp_cve__, ea___ _.,_ =tself c= a- . 01:-er _ _s .. . . __

.~~

	

BI

,v__ . . ___:

	

=nd. a =_ ;_ :erzent` ,

	

:)

	

__"i°__ :_-	,

	

'cartno_,

	

_end°_r,

	

ace. .t,

	

"_

.=_t'e__-=_S

	

7__

	

aSSC___=_0:;1 a^_. cds_ness _,_
- t__=_' n_=_ .

	

C_ ==3

?av CCNSOL_ANT a ='__ , ._ _tt - :tur _nousand ! : . ~00) _ . . :.___ __ = ..^,2 C'--M=_N"[ _
CO:IL4:On StCCY . SuC

	

Sndr-_' shall __ issued, In .:.2 name CL CCNSuLi ?d;,
i ..mlec_aCeiv uncn the ex2Cut-on of c _11s r1.cr?°_me . .̂t as t ..__tv-siz
_ .._ _ -00 s :._r2s each, _ as - ., estdbllsh CODISULTAI`IT as a shareholder as ..= t_._
date :,= lszuanca as to all -d,000 s-ar=_s . cwever, CONSUL-AIN- sha_1 not :._
deemed vested salt

	

ownershi_o o- such shares until delivered to CONSU"iN- as
prcv:dee herein .

The
ce_t_=icacis snail -be held _. . escrow by Rccert Salad, _- .

who si .̂all deliver a c°_rti_ :cate f or

	

,500 shar°_s to CONSULTANT mcnt ay,
Contenc-nq on Jan'1ar7 . -0 : : for sooner at the COMPANY'S cot-ion as orev-aed _ . .
Section 3 hereof) . CONSULTANT she'-'- nor be entitled to vote all S_,000 shares,
including all shares held in escrow, pending delivery of such shares to
CONSULTANT as provided herein until such shares are vested . Any dividends
declared and or paid with respect to delivered and vested shares shall be paid
directly to CONSULT;?IT . Pnv dividends declared or paid with respect to
undelivered, unvested and escrowed shares shall be paid to Robert Salad, <sc .
and shall also be held in escrow pendina disposition and shall follow the
disposition ; _ .e ., proportionately delivered to CONSULTANT as the shares are
delivered,

(b) _." addition cc the foregoing, any shares allocated as fee compensation fcr
the _oer=ormance of consulting and advisory services under Part i2 which COMPAN'_
shall not consider to have been "earned" by the performance of actual consul .̀_" .
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(b) Each party hereby indemnifies the other against, and agrees to hold the
other harmless from, any losses, claims, damages, or liabilities arising out of
the eerformanc=_ of the consult_nc services, except insofar as such losses,
claims, damages, or 1labilities (or actions in respect thereof) arise out of or
are based upon specific breaches of this Agreement or _fraud, gross .negligence,
or malfeasance .

1? . WAIJSR OF BREACH . The waiver by either party of a breach of any
provision of this Agreement by the other party shall not operate or fee construed
as a waiver of any subsequent breach by such other party .

18 . GENE-IT . The riches and obligations of COMPANY and/or MAJOR under t".is
Agreement shall _nun=_ to tae cenefit of, and shall be binding upon, their
successors and assigns . The protection of ?art IV shall inure to tae benefit of
COMPANY, MAJOR and any successors and assigns .

19 . =_92TATION OF LIABILITY of CONSUL^_?NT . The

	

of CONSULT?NT t_
the COMPANY and/or _-_JOR :._ the event of a breach of --is ;.qreemenz -v the
CONSULTANT shall :._ limited to the shares issued to C7NSULTf-.N.̂ _=ursuant to?art_t_

servicas

suO:e^t __ _. n__:_ ,, and r_ cent nv

	

ma__ __
:t=_tc C` t .--._ ._t .-:e . . par: r .

= : .

	

__.

	

....

	

..?.___?= .~_ .
__

	

n__t_ _
c -n _ ._ ov t12 cart

_'^Se3 7 _ -^° _3:d5

	

_==_ ..t -_
_31,' _. . __ t-erect . _' t:_ event Ct aW-

:-_ _nta ' ctati_n

	

__no__t_ AZ' n Z: Cfe2 :2nt,

	

_-..__
__ _'

____c::_? .._

	

Se >xc'_ .ai-re__
vested _.. _.-._ =cures .._ ____a_-_r :.having , risdic___n _ :__ t .-._ sac-ect matter
_.. .̂d each o-_' t-e tar-__es hersbv wai-res anv

	

to ,_ .:'a or - _isd_=-__n __ . t _

other place .._ Court a . . . .. __r_ "rocabiv Su--mrt t . . _. . ..

	

_'.`! Court

23 . COu?iTE3?.ARTS/ "=CSI:92Lc . T, -- s Agreem=ent may b=_ exeg_ted in a

	

nu:,.ber
of -dentica : gJl:. .̂tarDdrtS, dal.: of ahiz.. when so . . ..____°_d and deli,:er°_d S al_
.+_ deemed t . . .._ an original and all of wnicd taken nocather . .___ CCn5ta7te bet
one and c-e same _,str'-Lnent . -his Agreement may be executed - facsimile anal
sun.,. fags Mila signatures shall be deemed to be originals.

24 . ASSIGNMENT/DET:ECATION . Excect for delegation of duties to officers,
directors, =employees, agents and consultants, CONSULTANT shall! not delegate __
duties hereunder to any other entity . Subject to any applicable securities laws,
rules and redulations, CONSULTANT may assign or anticipate _ts ____pt of any
shares hereunder, prior t

	

.._livery by the Escrow Agent,

	

subject to ' the
provisions cf Paragraoh 1 : above . COMPANY nay not assign its rights hereunder t . .
any party other than MAJOR.

IN WITNESS FiHEREOF, the carries hereto, int=ending to be legally bound,
have hereunto set their hands and seals as of the day and year hereinabove



written .

ATTEST :

Is" Christine Feiner

Secretary

S2C_ _ _a_'"J

- -------------------------

AT_LJT :

---------------------------
Secretary

FIDELITY HOLDINGS, INC .

8y : /s/ Bruce Eente :_
----------------------------------
Bruce Bendell, C`airman

7 p " f5~ Rocert .a_a_
----- --- - - -- ---- - ---- - - - - - --------

THIS SCHEDULE CONTAINS SUMMARY FI9PVC2.'-?, _TNFORMATION XT-RFCTE? FROM T::7-

	

-
CONSOLIDATED 3P_. :-.NCE SHEETS AND CONSOL=DATED STATEMENTS OF OPE3FTICNS AND
RELATED FOOTNOTES OF _FIDELITY HOLDINGS, INC . AND SUBS! DIARZES AS O-' .---ND FOR T .-.=
NI14E MONTHS AND THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1998 AND 73 QUALIFI-D TN IT_S
ENTIRETY 3Y REF-RENCE TO SUCH FINANC ?L STATEMENTS AND FOOTNOT=S .
<iLEG-ND>
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. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMSION
Washington, D.C . 20549
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the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
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Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported)

FIDELITY HOLDINGS, INC .
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Nevada 00029182 11-3292094
(State or other

	

(Commission

	

(IRS Employer
jurisdiction of incorporation)

	

File Number)

	

Identification No.)

80-02 Kew Gardens Road, Kew Gardens, NY 11415
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code) : 718/520-6500

PART 11 . OTHER INFORMATION

Item 5 . OTHER EVENTS

On January 26, 1999, Fidelity Holdings, Inc ., a Nevada corporation,
("Fidelity" or the "Company") closed on an initial $2.75 million financial

transaction as part of an overall $11 .35 million debt facility . The followingsummary of this transaction is qualified
in its entirety by the terms of the

related agreements and instruments fled herewith as exhibits to this Form 8-K .

The Transaction

On January 25, 1999, the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, Computer Business Sciences, Inc ., a Delawar
corporation ("CBS") entered into aSecurities Purchase Agreement with certain purchasers named therein (the"Purchasers"
pursuant to which the Company and CBS agreed to sell up to 2,750 Units (the "Units"), each Unit consisting of (a) in the firE
tranche, (i) a 12% Convertible Debenture. of the Company in the principal amount of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) of th
Company (the "Debentures"), convertible on certain termsand conditions into shares of the Company's common stock, pE
value $0.01 per share (the "Common Stock"), (ii) 36.3636 shares of Common Stock, (iii) warrants(the "Warrants") to acquir
83.3333 shares of Common Stock and (iv) warrants (the "CBS Warrants") to acquire 25.4545 shares of common stock, p-
value $0 .01 per share, of CBS (the "CBS Shares"), and (b), in the second tranche, (i) a Debenture in the principal amount
One Thousand Five Hundred Sixty-Three and64/100 Dollars ($1,563.64) and (ii) Warrants to acquire 130.3030 shares
Common Stock and (c) in the third tranche, (i) Debentures in an aggregateprincipal amount of One Thousand Five Hundre
Sixty-Three and 64/100 Dollars ($1,563.64) and (ii) Warrants to purchase 130.3030 shares of Common Stock . Theshares
Common Stock issuable upon conversion ofor otherwise pursuant to theDebentures are referred to herein as the "Conversic
Shares" and the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of or otherwise pursuant to the Warrants are referred
herein as the "Warrant Shares."


